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LV= by numbers 2013

. Cap1tal resourc(y

£81m

General insurance
operating profit

£22m

t ‘ ) Mutual bonus

Group operating profit

£156m =2om

) operating profit
Group profit before tax

11.1%

With-profits investment
performance

12%

Enterprise Value
growth

LV= Head office, Bournemouth, BHL 2NF




Loday n1Raens

- 5.5m 5,800

Employees
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Who we are

_— ] H Throughout our 170 year history, our focus on the customer has
LV IS a Ieadlng mUtuaI been key to the products and services we have offered and 1s
offeri ng ara nge of the guiding principte behind the on-going success of the Society

. today To achieve this we aim to put the customer at the centre
Insu ra nce y InveStment of everything we do and live by our three brand promises

and retirement products.

We are the UK’s |argest Easy to do business with

frlendl_y soclety, with more Great value

than five miliion members A caring aooroach

and customers. We exist g app

tO grow the Vaiue Of our Liverpool Victonia was founded in 1843 and the guiding principles
H H left b fi d till b d b tod

business for the benefit Lt e e o e e

of our membe rs. a privileged few and for many decades we were most commonly

associated with providing a methed of saving to people of modest
means Today we follow a similar principle, helping people to
protect and provide for the things they love, although on a much
larger scale and through a wide range of financtal services
including insurance, nvestment and retirement products

We offer our services direct to consumers, as well as through
independent financial advisors and brokers, and through strategic
partnerships with a wide range of organisations We also own

a number of other financial brands including Britannia Rescue,
Highway Insurance and Frizzell

1843 1871 1940

William Fenton founded The board Staff fire brigade
Liverpool Victoria and staff
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Founded in 1843

UK's 3rd largest
private motor insurer

Helping people
look after what
they love in life Market leader for

income protection in
the advised market

Leading mutual

5.5m members
and customers

Liverpool
Vnctorlaér

The benellts are mutual

\ FRIZZELL A

N

LIVERPOOL VICTORIA

1980 1996 | 2007 2013

The mainframe Liverpool Victoria Liverpool Victoria Brand awareness
computer and Frizzell merge rebrand to LV= +70%

Hoday adsensg
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Strategic Report

We choose

to observe the
requirements

of the Department
for Business
Innovation and
Skills (BIS) narrative
reporting regulations,
which require the
preparation of a
strategic report,
even though we

are not formally
required to do this.
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Group Finance Director’'s Review

Overview

_ _Resulis for 2013 _
lnvestment performance
Capital management
Liquidity management

Enterprise Val_ue

Conclusion

General Insurance
Life

Heritage

Risk Management

Our Corporate Responsibilities
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Chairman’s Statement

Mark Austen

Chairman

| am pleased to be part of a business that
has Its members and customers at its heart.

i am reporting on my first year as V= chairman
and | am as proud as ever to be part of a business
that has its members and customers at its heart

The regulatory backdrop for the last 12 months
has been one of significant change We started
the year dealing with the introduction of the gender
directive and retall distribution review which
drove a change in customer buying habits in our
life business In April we saw the introeduction

of the Legal Awd, Sentencing and Purushing

of Offenders {LASPO} legislation which was
implemented to stop spiralling personal injury
costs In car insurance claims In anticipation

of the impact of this, car premiums across the
market reduced, however the full impact of the
legislation has been slower in changing claims
costs than initially expected Furthermore within
our main markets there have also been a number
of competitors choosing to take advantage

of the more positive financial climate and have
floated all or part of their business This has
increased volatility In some business lines
Finally, we have had the floods in the last two
weeks of 2013 and into the New Year of 2014

Despite the above, LV= has now grown to hecome
a major player in its chosen fields We are a leading
motor insurer with a top three position, the top
provider of adviser-sold mcome protection and
have strong market positions in home insurance,
SME Insurance, enhanced annuities, pensions
drawdown, and equity release | am pleased

to report that from this strengthening position

In 2013 the group has made a pre-tax profit of
£156 million, an increase of 51% compared to
2012 Ths 1s a particularly good achievement

in the envirgnment we were faced with
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" paid over the
ast thrée years

Our goal, as always, 15 to increase value in
the business for the benefit of our members.

Our poal, as always, Is to Increase value

in the business for the benefit of our members
and | am delighted to be able to confirm that we
shall be paying a mutual bonus for the third year
runnming The bonus of £22 mithion for 2013 brings
the total bonuses paid or allocated to eligible
members dunng the year to over £100 million
We have achieved this by focusing our business
on doing the right thing for the people that

buy our products and services, our customers
and members Compantes like LV= can only
achieve success by putting themselves In

the shoes of their customers and ensuring

that the people serving them, our employees,
are empowered 10 do the nght thing

When floods were forecast in December,

our claims team proactively contacted all our
customers in areas where floods were predicted
and advised them of what to do to mitigate any
posstble damage We then called them once

the weather had hit to see if their property was
damaged so we could quickly deal with the claim
and arrange alternative accommodation If required
Each customer who was affected was assigned
a claims handler who was empowered to agree
settlement straight away

Since 2007, and the introduction of a new brand,
we have trebled in size from 1,700 employees

to 5,800 people across 17 locations throughout
the UK We have centres of excellence including
offices in Bnistol, Bournemouth and Ipswich
ensuring the very best people ¢an join V=

in their career of choice Every year we interview
all our staff to get thewr views on how the company
15 run and what we can do better both for them
and our customers In 2013, and for the second
year running, we have been externally recognised
by Towers Watson as a high performing organisation
reflecting the positive culture we have created

In my role as chair of the board | am committed

to ensunng the highest levels of governance

and | try to ensure that we at least match,

if not exceed, the governance standards that
would be expected in a proprietary company

Board changes during the year included welcoming
David Neave as a new non-executive director and
some changes to the Nomination and Remuneration
Commuittees Dennis Holt, my predecessor,

stood down as chairman at the AGM in May 2013
I'would hke to take this opportunity to thank
Dennis for his great stewardship over his tenure

2013 also saw us raise capital in the bond
markets for the first time in our history,
which was a great success and was five
times gversubscnbed and means we are
I a very strong position for the future

To date financial services reform has focused
almost excluswvely on financral stability | hope
that the reform agenda will soon change such
that reform 1s more outward looking and geared
towards ensunng that the wider needs of society
are adequately served by the financial sector
There has unfortunately been little progress

in our Government supporting further measures
to create an environment where mutuals can
flounsh as they are encouraged to do tn several
other major economies We are fully committed
to mutuality but we continue to face challenges
In mapping our future with some certainty

Particularly 1n a recovenng economy LV= |5 well
placed to help customers with our focus on
offering good value, relevant products, backed up
by award-winning custemer service Qur vision 1S
to be Britain’s best loved insurer and in so daing,
| am confident that we shall continue to create
value for the benefit of our members | would like
to thank all our current members and customers
for their continuing loyalty to LvV= and our great
employees for their commitment and hard work
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hief Executive’s Statement

Miac

Chief Executive

We focus on delivering strong returns for members,
while managing and protecting our capital position.

| am pleased to report that V= performed well In
2013 Our continued growth 1s encouraging and
our Increase tn operating profit to £105 milhion
{2012 £88 million) has been achieved despite
challenging market conditions As a mutual

our efforts are focused on driving increased
member value and our vision to be Britain's

best loved insurer

During the first half of 2013 we went to the capital
markets for the first time in the Society's history
and successfully raised £350 million of capital
This has helped increase the solvency of the group,
which at the end of 2013 was £720 mullion on a
regulatory reported basis compared to £186 million
at year end 2012

I am delighted that both our general insurance
and life businesses have generated cash during
the year

As LV= s a mutual and not quoted on the stock
market, Enterprise Value s our measure of the
financial value of the business We also use
Enterprise Value to tell us If we are growing
long-term value for the benefit of our members

The methodology and approach we use I1s
independently verified every three years to ensure
It continues to be relevant in terms of best practice
and management and member alignment

A trienmal review was carned out in 2013, and
the methodology was updated to reference market
based valuations and trends that are appropriate
and relevant to our businesses

The group's Enterpnse Value for 2013 represents
an increase of 12% on 2012 We have also
maintained strong cost disciplines

Cur focus for 2013 has been on achieving

steady profitable sales in our chosen market lines
There has been considerable pressure on rates on
some of our product lines, particularly notable in
motor insurance and in annuities in the first half

of the year We therefore took the decision to focus
our business on the most profitable segments

This meant that in some lines we saw premium
decreases but we are confident this was the right
strategy giwven the market conditions at the time

Qur customer and member numbers now stand
at 5 5 million across a diverse number of products

Our brand continues to go from strength to
strength with over 70% awareness, and our focus
on excellent customer service gives us a clear
differentiation from our competitors 1n what 1S

a crowded market

General insurance

The general insurance business IS now capital
generating and returned £36 mullion back to

group In 2013 1t achieved an operating profit

of £81 million in 2013 of which £15 millron was
underwriting profit (2012 £5 mullion) which includes
a positive run-off from prior years We continue

to grow our customer base and we now have over

4 4 million general insurance policies inforce

Our road rescue business grew by 44% during
2013 Also, we now insure over 650,000 homes
Further complementary product lines were launched
dunng 2013 in motorcycle, classic car and caravan




Chief Executive’s Statement 13

terprise Malu
h

' Brand awsreness

70%

Looking at our commercial ines business

we now insure over 190,000 commercral
properties and 107,000 commercial vehicles
Commercial premium income 1s performing
strongly and i1s up 23% compared to 2012,
with our SME business up 27% year-on-year

Dunng the year we saw motor premiums reduce
across the whole market in anticipation of a
reduction in personal injury costs as a result of

the new LASPO legisiation As a result gross written
premiums remained refatively static at £1 45
billion However we believe that premiums are Likely
to readjust to more sustainable levels in 2014

We continue to focus on offering an excellent

level of customer care and this 1s borne out In our
customer satisfaction rate, with 77% of customers
who were surveyed saying they are very or extremely
satisfied This strategy has also helped us achieve
our excellent renewal rates of 79% on car insurance
and 77% on home insurance

Active, but conservative management of the
nvestment portfolio dunng 2013 produced
a total return of 3 2%

Life

in the Iife business we are reporting an increase
in underlying operating profits compared to 2012,
despite slower sales, which were partly as a result
of legislation changes impacting the market place

Within retirement solutions we've seen strong growth
N pensions of 14% compared to 2012 which helped
contnbute to an improved underlying operating profit
of £18 mithon Annuity sales dipped in the first half
of the year, however in the latter half sales improved
The annuities market 1s very competitive and we are
pleased that during the year we maintained our
profit margins LV= offers a range of at retirement’
products including pension drawdown, enhanced
annuities and equity release

In March 2014 the Chancellor announced a
number of changes to the way retirees access
their pension savings We believe that annuities will
continue to have a place within the new retirement
income landscape although we anticipate that
other options will now be given more consideration
V= offers a wide range of ‘at retirement’ products
and 1s well positioned to respond to these changes
However, we anticipate significant *ptanming blight’
over the next year as consumers defer decisions
until the new regime takes effect, and this could
lead to a significant reduction in annuity sales

Our protection busingss has seen a slight decrease
In sales, but given market conditions we are pleased
with our performance and underlying operating
profits of £11 mullion (2012 £15 million) We are
the market leader for advised income protection
and durnng the year launched a new sick pay direct
product which we hope will open upg the protection
market to a new segment of customers

Heritage

Strong investment performance 1n the second
half of 2013 has resulted in the with profits
fund achieving an investment return of 11 1%,

out-performing market benchmarks by 2 5%
Operating profit of £18 milhion compared with

a loss of £64 mithon 1n 2012 )1s principally the
result of the non-recurrence of adverse model

and valuation changes experienced in 2012
With-profits investments remamn an attractve

long term plan for certain customer demographics
and we are commutted to mantaining this part

of our business and ensuring our products are
relevant for both today's and temorrow s consumers

We regard managing the business on a cost
effective basis to be a strategic prionty, and whilst
our costs are competitive we continue to undertake
imitiatives to improve productivity

Qur people and awards

We believe that excellent customer service can
only be achieved by happy employees and in 2013
staff engagement at V= was 83% compared to
the benchmark for high performing organisations
of 80% These standards mean V= Is once again
above the high-performing standard set by

Towers Watson

2013 was another excelient year for market
recognition with a number of our products winning
awards including a Moneywise Award for most
trusted liIfe insurer and a Consumer Moneyfacts
award for home insurance

We continued to recelve accolades for customer
service including best customer expenence in the
UK Customer Expenence Awards, the great place
to work award in the CCA Excellence Awards and
best return on customer investment in the ICS
Customer Services Awards

Looking ahead

In a competitive market LV= has been able to
dehver improved profits due to the quality of our
customer service and the value of our products
Our general insurance business continues to trade
satisfactonly in 2014 and we believe that motor
rates will enter a penod of modest hardening over
the next 12 months as the benefits to claims costs
from LASPO changes have been over anticipated
by many players Prospects for our life business

in 2014 have an unusually high degree of
uncertainty followtng the recent budget changes

to the retirement market Over the longer-term we
believe that our broad product range, strong brand
and financial strength will allow us to prosperin a
retirement income market that offers consumers
greater choice

Despite the challenging market conditions, | am
confident that our successful business model and
strong competitive position in our chosen markets
leaves us well placed for continued growth In 2014

The LV= Strategic Report on pages 8 to 51 was

approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2014 and signed on its behalf by

/-

Mike Rogers, Chief Executive
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Our Sirategy:

Our goal
To grow

member
value
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As a mutual organisation we exist for the benefit of ocur members

Our goal of growing member value 1s underpinned
by our vision to be Bntains best loved nsurer Offering affordable well designed
We believe that developing products of benefit Great value preducts with the highest guality
for our customers and offening a high quality of of service.
service will translate into enhanced profitability
for our members
Providing everyone we deal
We approach business in a way that combines with with timely, clear and
the trusted behaviours of a mutual with the Easy to do accurate information and
competitiveness you would expect from a business with J advice. and making sure
successful plc Our 5,800 employees are core they can contact us quickly
to our busingss and we have created a posttive, and easily.
motivated workforce to ensure they offer the best
possible service to our members and customers
We call this being Sharp with a Heart’

BOUBUIAADD

Treating everyone with respect
We live by three core brand promises and empathy.
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Product set and corporate structure

General Insurance
1

Life
|

Personal Commercial Retirement Protection
- MM:;;e ] _—_I;;'m—ess Insura;\cewm “ Annu1t;c;s - o “““5"(; o
Motor Motor Equity Release Term/Life Assurance
e 2T neome o
e | oormase *ncomeDrawdown | | Criwcoltiness |
Bnitannia Rescue Hire & Reward Whole of Life

Motorcycle Fleet

Distributed directly and via intermediaries

Specialist Vehicles Van

Heritage

I

Pension Income

Flexible Guarantee Bond Plus Annuity

Distributed directly and via brokers Distributed directly and via intermedianes

Finance
Human Resources
Group Risk
IT

Internal Audit

The & gpram represents the major product ines wo currently se'l

We have g sifpificant nurober of additionat preduct Enes that are closed
to new business inchuding our Industrial Branch whole of 1fe policies
Ordinary 8ranch pensions and products so'd by RAPFN
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'Mutual bonus of .

£22m

announced for 2013

We have

5.bm

Members and
customers

“‘We received
ob applications . .7~

Our mission 1s 1o help people

look after what they love n life

The products we sell fall into three

broad categones

+ protection and retirement products
covering people’s lives and incomes,

+ nsurance for those more tangible ttems people
love their vehicles, their home, therr business,
their pets and thewr hohdays, and

* savings and investment products

We have structured our business around three
core business hnes, with support functions such
as finance and HR in the centre

The mix of products we offer enables us to benefit
from diversification of nsks, achieve economies
of scale, and helps mitigate against the impact

of adverse market conditions which emerge from
ume to time within specific products or distribution
channels We believe that our mutual business
model positions us well as a provider of choice
for consumers as we are able to focus on putting
the customer at the heart of everything we do

We are focused on bullding the V= brand further
and increasing 1ts appeal to our core customer
base, consumers aged over 45

Strategically LV="s goal 15 to grow member value
This allows us not only to provide security to our
members’ investments but has also enabled us
to pay a mutual bonus, rewarding with-profits
members for their ownership of LV= and the nsk
taken in supporting the estabhishment and growth
of the group’s trading businesses

QOur strategy has remaned consistent during 2013,
however to support the execution of the strategy
we raised £350m of capital in the form of tier two
debt, which we raised at a very competitive rate

of 6 5% pa We rarsed the capital for two purposes
firstly to ensure that we are able to maintain

a strong and efficient capital structure and
secondly to support our continued business growth
We have no plans for transformational mergers

or acquisitions, however should an appropriate
opportunity present itself to accelerate delivery

of our strategy we would consider using some

of the debt proceeds to fund this

Like all insurers V= invests the premiums

we recewe to generate an investment return

In 2011 we outseurced our asset management
business to Threadneedie Asset Management,
to enable us to focus on our core nsk based
insurance businesses Threadneedle Asset
Management manages our investments under
a mandate that 1s regularly reviewed to ensure
that we strike the right balance between rnisk
and return Details on our risk appetite can

be found on page 39 and our investment mix
on page 24

The group uses reinsurance to transfer the nsk
of insurance losses that are outside our

nsk appetite, reduce our regulatory capital
requirements, improve pricing ¢ompetitiveness,
improve the quality of our earnings by reducing
volatiity and benefit from the expertise and
knowledge of the retnsurers

Our General Insurance business

Our general insurance business operates in both
personal and commercial lings and gperates a
muiti-product, multi-channel strategy in the UK

Qur core strengths in nsk pricing and claims
handhbng, and our muiti channel model enables

us to access a broad range of customer segments

We have a high level of expertise In pnicing and
underwnting and this has allowed us to gain
stgnificant market share in the UK personal
motor market where we are now the third largest
provider Our strategy going forward 1s to build
on our success In motor and increase our
footpnnt to top five positions in home and

SME business insurance

The general insurance business provides one of the
key platforms for building the V= brand We make
significant, ongoing investments in promoting the
brand through the main media channels and believe
that strong brand awareness IS key to our success
The role of our fresh and vibrant brand i1s not simply
to stimulate sales and renewal actvity but also to
reflect the values which underpin our relationships
with our customers and our people

Qur direct business s 1n personal ines only,
where our strategy 15 to lead with a high quality
{5 Star Defagto-rated), compettively priced car
product and then extend our relationship with
customers by offenng them home, travel, pet
and other personal lines insurance products
which provide the same great value as our motor
insurance and provide us with diversification
benefits Our pricing strategy 1s underpinned

by a commitment to fairness which means

that we mit the use of new business discounts
In order 10 ensure that existing customers are
not disadvantaged

This focus on treating the customer fairly

runs through ali of our customer propositions,
including the sale of add-on products (such as
home emergency and legal expenses cover)

which are always sold on an opt-in, rather than
opt-out basis This approach, combined with fast
and farr claims settlement, resulted in 77% of
customers saying they are ‘very’ or ‘extremely’
satisfied and we are routinely rated as an insurance
‘best buy' by leading consumer organisations

In the broker channel we are active in both personal
and commercial lines In personal lines, the broker
channel enables us to reach customers through
intermedianes and their affinity partners This not
only generates profitable underwnting income but
also allows us to achieve scale benefits in our core
motor and home segments
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Qur commercral hines business provides us

with valuable diversification as the personal

and commercial underwriting cycles tend to be
asynchronous Qur commercial hines products
include small to medium sized business Nsurance
covenng property and motor nsks Qur high levels
of customer service together with a consistent
underwnting and pncing strategy have enabled

us to build a respected commercial lines business
from a standing start in 2007 and we see attractive
opportunities to develop this business to become
a much more significant part of the general
insurance business over the medium-term

Detail on the perfermance of the general insurance
business can be found on page 28

Our Life insurance business

Our Iife insurance business 15 a UK-focused
protection and retirement income specialist

We use our expertise In assessing nsks to
protect customer incomes in the event that they
are unahle to work due to 1liness or accident,

to provide funds following death and to provide
incomes for customers tn retirement We target
areas of the market where our core strengths
allow us to offer strong customer propositions,
generally \n markets with good growth potential
with attractive margins and where we can achieve
relevant scale The combination of the retirement
and protection businesses provides capital,
distnbution and strategic synergies

The UK I1s expenencing a number of clear trends
for its retiring and retired population people are
lving longer, there 1s a shift from defined benefit
to defined contnbution pension schemes and
retirees are demanding greater value and flexibility
in their income options These trends are resulting
In a need to offer a better range of choices in how
and when retirement incomes are accessed

Our retirement business 15 strategically pesitioned
to benefit from these trends through our retirement
Income proposition, a range of decumulation
products that offer solutions individually or blended
to provide flexible solutions for retirement We are
well posittoned in income drawdown and the
enhanced annuity market, which can offer better
value than a standard annuity to customers with
hfestyle or med:cal conditions This product

set 1s supported by our well regarded personal
pension and SIPP products Qur equity release
products allow customers to benefit from the

value In their home These work synergistically
with our annuity business, allowing us to utilise
equity release mortgages as an asset to back

our annuity habilities

The overall protection market has lower growth
opportunities than the retirement market and
although there 1s an identified ‘protection gap'
where customers have insufficient protection,
customer demand 15 relatively mited

However, moves to simplify protection products
and increase the direct market are expected

to continue, as are on-goIng nitiatives by the
government and ABI to raise awareness of the
need for protection products Rather than aiming
at the whole protection market, we focus our
efforts on areas where we have strong capabilities,
particularly in income protection where our
expertise has led to a market leading position
We are also leading development in simplified
praposttions, with the launch in June of our

Sick Pay income protection product which

has been well recewved by the market

Our Iife Insurance business operates a
multi-channel distnbution model, including a
range of intermediary networks, panel positions,
portals, corporate partners and direct distribution
A significant proportion of both retirement and
protection sales come from intermedianes,
particularly the larger networks and panel
distnbutors In protection, direct distribution

15 also an important channel including both

our corporate partners and our in-house sales
capability, notably for our 50+ product

In March 2014 the Chancellor announced a
number of changes to the way retirees’ access
their pension savings We believe that annuities
will continue to have a place within the new
retirement Income landscape although we
anticipate that other options will now be given
more consideration L= offers a wide range of
‘at retirement’ products and s well positioned
10 respond to these changes

Both our retirement and protection businesses are
complemented by our Financial Advisory Service
which offers an advised retirement panel to
customers as well as LV= protection product sales

The retirement and protection businesses

are underpinned by core strengths in product
innovation, nsk expertise, high quality sales and
service teams and the ability 10 react quickly and
knowledgeably to changes n the external market
Our ‘best loved’ vision compiements both business
areas, providing a clear view of how we wish to

be viewed by our customers and in itself provides
a point of differentiation based on our ingrained
mutual ethos

Detail on the performance of the life insurance
business can be found on page 32
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Our Heritage business

Whilst growing our successful general and life

Insurance businesses, we also maintain a keen

focus on our heritage business which is the

traditional heart of the Society Our hertage

business comprises

«  With-profits policies, including new
with-profits saies

s QOther policies originally written by the Royal
National Pension Fund for Nurses (RNPFN)
before 1ts transfer to LV=n 2001

Many of our in-force hentage products are no longer
actively marketed However, we have developed
newer with-profits products including a with-profits
bond and a with-profits pension annuity which

we sell through our life distribution network

The hentage business has a number of strategic
priorities We look to provide superior returns on
our members' asset shares by making investment
decisions which optimise their returns for an
appropriate risk profile Over the last few years,
we have had a strong track record of returns

We also believe that with-profits products have

a role to play addressing needs of consumers
who require both return and security and therefore
we focus on continuing to write matenal volumes
of new with-profits business which has the added
advantages of enabling our members to benefit
from scale while maintaining one of our core
strategic principles of sustainable mutuahty

We are aware that, despite our success In

wnting new business, the with-profits industry

as a whole has been decliming over the fast
decade and, as a result, we have instituted very
robust cost management to ensure that the cost
to our members of administering their pohcies

Is kept at an acceptahle level To this end, we also
consider acquisition opportunities to bolster the
scale of the with-profits business as they arise
While our members’ interests obviously come first
In determining the attractiveness of any transaction,
we believe that we are able to offer other mutual
and propnietary with-profits books a good home

In & Society that 1s wellcapitalised, has robust
new business flows and has strong operational
capabilities in administenng policies and providing
top customer service at a competitive cost

Detail on the performance of the heritage business
can be found on page 36
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Key performance indicators

Our key performance indicators are chosen to measure performance against our goat of growing member value, and our vision of being

Britain’s best loved insurer

_ Explanation of measure

Grow member value

Performance

Enterprise
Value

As LV= s not quoted on the stock market, Enterpnse Value i1s our
measure of the value of the business Any rise or fall in Enterpnse
Value will tell us if we are growing member value A formula

1S used to calculate our Enterprise Value and the methodology

1s independently reviewed every three years The formula 1s the
sum of the value of our genera! insurance business, our life
business value plus the value of the remainder of the group

The general tnsurance business 1s valued based on the average

of market comparable multiples of net tangible assets and IFRS
earnings The fe business |1s vaiued based on the average of market
comparable multiples of our embedded value estimate and new
business value add adjusted for any expense overruns The Long
Term Incentive Plan for senior employees 1s based on growth n
Enterprise Value Further detall on this can be found in the Directors'
Report on Remuneration on page 72

Herntage This 1s measured with reference to the return made on the man
with-profits Lv= with-profits fund, which I1s an investment fund where we combine
fund our with-profits investors' money and manage 1t on their behalf

performance The fund normally invests in UK and overseas shares, fixed interest
securities including Government stocks and bonds, property and
cash We compare our performance to a benchmark which 1s a
composite measure of how the fund or asset types might have been
expected to perform For instance, the benchmark for UK equities
1s the FTSE All Share Total Return Index See page 24

QOperating Operating profit for the group represents profit before investment

profit fluctuations, centrally managed costs, amortisation of intangibles and
finance costs A full definition of operating profit 1s provided on page 90

Capntal To ensure the sustamability of the Society we monitor our regulatory

strength capttal cover ratio This is the ratio of our capital resources to our

capital resources requirement We also monitor our capital coverage
on a realistic basis

Enterprise Value growth between '
2012 and 2013 was 12%

The return on the with-profits '
fund in 2013 was 11 1%

This compares to the benchmark

return of 8 6%

2013 operating profit was £105m '
compared to £88m in 2012

At the end of 2013 our regulatory .
capital cover ratio was 178%

as compared to our 2012 year

end ratio of 121% This follows

our successful capital raise

Britain’s best loved insurer

Best loved
insurer

Our vision Is to be Britain's best loved insurer We use an
independent market research agency to undertake a regular
survey of general consumers which includes customers of LV=
and other competitors and ask them which insurer they love the
most We also monitor various other metrics including customer
satisfaction levels, whether we treat customers fairly under the
FCA guidelines, positive press coverage, and prestigious business
awards achieved throughout the year We use a combination

of these to assess our performance against our vision to be
Britain’s best loved insurer

Staff
engagement

Our staff are key to us delivering our best loved vision so we look

to achieve a level of staff engagement which (s above that of high
performing organisations (as defined by Towers Watson — a global HR
consultancy firm) In order to assess how our staff feel about working
for LV= we ask all staff to complete an annual survey

The independent survey of ’\"’/\
consumers reported that as
at Q4 2013 we were the 4th
best loved insurer in the UK

Within general insurance
77% of our customers
report that they are very
or extremely satisfied

When we ask our life
customers ‘how did your call
leave you feeling?’ the answer
was, on average, 9 3 with

1 being disappointed and

10 being delighted

At the end of 2013 the .
engagement level of our staff

was B3% compared to the

benchmark for high performing
organtsations of 80%

Our board also assesses the progress against our strategic agenda, the way we manage nsks plus a range of other financial and
qualitative measures covering the significant aspects of our business Additional performance indicators are reported 1n the indwviduat

business sections of this report
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Group Finance Director’'s Review

Philip Moore

Graup Finance Director

We focus on delivering strong returns for members,
while managing and protecting our capital position.

Overview

Following a sustained penod of market volatility,
2013 has seen significant stability return to the
markets reflecting growing confidence in the UK
economy and the future of Europe, the FTSE 100
index has grown 14 4% finishing the year at 6,749
and credit spreads have narrowed significantly

In the first half of the year we were therefore

able to take advantage of our continued growth

and the improving market conditions to raise capital
in the form of subordinated debt of £350 millien

to strengthen our balance sheet and to support
future graowth opportunities

Whilst economic conditions have proved positive,
the trading environment has remained highly
competitive for both the life and general insurance
businesses Nevertheless, we can once again
report an improved financial performance this year
with the group continuing to perform well and the
investment returns of our with-profits members'
assets outperforming market benchmarks

L= therefore continues to meet 1ts financial
aims of delivering good returns to members,
while ensuring a strong capital position on
which to base future growth

Operating profit in 2013 of £105 million
(2012 £88 millicn) reflects another year of
profitable growth from the group as a whole

The £53 million improvement in profit before

tax to £1.56 million (2012 £103 million) reflects
the growth in operating profit and also positive
short-term investment fluctuations 1n our life
and hentage bustnesses, which accounted for
£43 million of the improvement year on year

Resuits for 2013

The table opposite summarnses the operating
profit contribution from our businesses
Operating profit for the general Insurance
business comprises the trading results from
insurance activity {underwriting profit) and
investment returns For the Iife and heritage
businesses, operating profit includes the
trading performance of new and existing
insurance business (underlying operating profit),
the impact of actuarial model and valuation
changes, and also a margwn for prudence In
the Iife valuation assumptions (such as credit
default allowance) However, the difference
between actual investment returns and those
expecied are shown below operating profit

in short-term investment fluctuations
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- Operating profi

" Surplus cé_pitél

_£7ﬂ20 |

- With-profits Investments.

£105m

Results for 2013

2012
£m 2013 restated*
General insurance 81 117
Life 18 48
Hentage 18 (64)
Group (12) (13)
Operating profit’” 105 88
Accounting policy differences (2) (12}
Short-term investment fluctuations 105 62
Centrally managed costs (19) (22)
Finance costs {15) (1)
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles {18) (12)
Profit before tax™ 156 103
Mutual bonus (22) (21)
Income tax expense (10) (34)
Pension scheme actuarial loss net of tax (9 (145)
Transfer to/(from) the Unallocated divislble surplus 115 (87)

Life aperating profit has been restated to reflect the change in methodciogy apphed for credit default expenance reporting Previously favourable
experience emerging in the reperting peried in respect of credit default was reported in short term investment fluctuations This is new reported
as addional margin for credit defautt nsk withsn operating profit 2012 operating profit has been restated accordingly (£4m Increase)

A defimtion of the measures we use 1o review our business performance 1s prowded in the glossary section on page 80

The general insurance business has continued

to perform strongly delivering an operating profit in
2013 of £81 milkion Growth in underwnting profit
(from £5 million to £15 million) benefited from both
favourable claims expenence and also profitable
expansion in chosen market segments, notably
motor, which saw an increase In the number of
policies underwntten Investment returns, however,
have fallen from £112 million to £66 million
reflecting the return to more sustainable fevels
after a particularly strong result in 2012

The life business saw an increase in underlying
operating profit of 12% to £29 million primanly
driven by the product lines of enhanced annuities,
equity release and pensions This 1s particularly
notable given the increased competition in certain
markets in which we operate

The overall decrease n life operating profit
reflects the non recurrence of the significant
beneficial impact of changes in actuanal models
and valuation assumptions seen in 2012

The hernitage operating profit reflects the net
trading profit or loss of the with-profits business
The growth in operating profit is principally the
result of both the non-recurrence of adverse
model and valuation changes (in 2012 and
tmproved cost efficiencies

Group operating profit includes unallocated
group overheads and also the return on the
group’s free capital The loss in 2013 reflects
recurring group overheads

Qur profit before tax of £156 millicn shows

growth of £53 million reflecting

* Growth In operating profit,

+ Strong short-term investment performance
reflecting market value gains, in particular
benefiting from improved equity performance
and narrower credit spreads in the annuity
husiness bond portfolio, offset by

¢ Finance costs relating to the newly
raised £350 millon of subordinated
debt at a coupon rate of 6 5%

The pension scheme actuarnal loss of £9 mullion

In 2043 (2012 £145 million toss) calculated

under IAS 19, 15 the net movement on the scheme’s
invested assets (predominantly debt secunties)

and changes n financial assumptions used to

value the scheme's habilities As at 31 December
2013 the scheme reported a deficit of £16 milion
{2012 £10 mithon deficit) calculated under

1AS 19 As the scheme 1s adeguately funded,

deficit contnbutions ceased n March 2013

The general insurance, life and heritage
performance 1s explained tn more detail
In the retevant business review sections
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Assets under management @
Hentage WP Fund performance @
Hentage LVFS with-profits fund performance Benchmark® performance @

262 208 293 262

49

48 11 (¢33 196 109 30 54 05 04 111 88

OVEFS‘E__B'S b
quity |

Assels under management .
Other group assets fund performance™” Fund performance % @

With-profits 2013
280 Asset class breakdown

214
@ UKEquity 32
@ Overseas £quity 14d.
£1,704m @ UKGus 28
@& Bonds 1%
48 Property 8.
Arternative a
Cash %
£4.111m
17
£85m
69

Other group
assets 2013

k. Asset class breakdown

75
£572m
05
@ UK Equity 6%
@ Overseas Equity 2“‘ .
® LGt 24
£6,988m % Bonds 587
272 Property 1%
Alternative 0
Lash 8%

*  Benchmark performance s caloulated usind a b'end of recognized MaIncs wh ch rear onably cxpresent the market lovel performance tor the mocof assets included in the Hentar WP fund
*+ Other group assets are assets invested by the general insurance and Iife business
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Investment performance

Threadneedle Asset Management — 2013 was
the second full calendar year with Threadneedle
managing LV="'s investments and this strategic
partnership continues to prove very successful
with five of the seven asset classes for the
LVFS With-Profits Fund achieving or exceeding
their market standard benchmark

With-profits — The Liverpool Victoria Friendly
Society (LVFS) With-Profits Fund returned an
absolute performance of 11 1% Outperformance
has mamnly been driven by the fund s exposure

to UK and overseas equity markets Property
assets also produced strong relative gains
Threadneedle delivered good relative performance
for our with-profits members, which was some

2 5% points above a market-defined benchmark

Other group assets — Outside of the LVFS
with-profits fund the majonty of assets are
invested in UK gilts and UK corporate bonds
2013 has been a tougher year for fixed income
investments with markets anticipating the
scaling back of central bank accommodative
monetary policy in the UK and US

Capital resources

Capital management

Capital 1s managed on both economic and
regulatory bases to ensure we have suffictent funds
to meet our business objectives, the promises

we have made to our members and policyhclders
and regulatory requirements Capital 1Is monitored
and managed both at a group and entity level

We operate through three main companies

+ LVFS Is the parent company of the group and
the company where we write the majority
of our life insurance business LVFS 15 also
the sponsor of our staff pension funds

« Liverpool Victoria Insurance Company (LVIC)
and Highway Insurance Company (HICO) —
these are the companies which write our
general Insurance business

We seek to deploy capital where we believe the nsk
15 properly rewarded Asset and hability matching

15 extensively used and nisks are hedged where

we believe we would otherwise receswve insufficient
return for the risk taken or to reduce volatility

We report our capital position on a regulatory basis
using current European legislation which defines
the capital requirements an organisation must
meet The two different bases reported below are
= Peak 1 (a traditional valuation basis), and

« Peak 2 (more realistic for with-profits business)

£m 2013 2012
Admissible assets’ 8,835 7,866
Add capita! requirements of regulatory related undertakings 253 254
Mathematical reserves (after distnbution of surplus) {7,121) (6,686)
Regulatory current habilities (663) (354)
Available capltal resources 1,304 1,080
Capital requirements of regulatory related undertakings (253) {254)
Capital resources within RNPFN fund™ {194} (180
Peak 1 capital requirement {253) (239)
Peak 1 excess regulatory capital (excluding RNPFN™") 604 407
With-profits insurance capital component (230) (221)
Peak 2 excess regulatory capital (excludng RNPFN'") 374 186
Subordinated debt (after costs) 346 _
Pillar 1 excess regulatory capital including subordinated debt 720 186

* The admissible assets shown abave are caicutated on a regulatory basts and therefore differ from the total assets under management
** RNPEN denotes Royval National Pansion for Nursas which 1s a nng fenced fund The free assets attnbutable to this fund are reported as insurance

contract habilities of the Society

During 2013 the main movements In Pillar 1 regulatory capital were

£m Pillar 1
Excess capital at 31 December 2012 186
Opening adjustments 10
Economic variances 105
Claims vanances 4
Expense variances (18}
New business {7)
Impact of changes to valuation assumptions (16)
Movement in group undertakings’ 110
Interest on subordinated debt (14)
Mutual bonus (22}
Subordinated debt (after costs} 346
Change 1n Risk Capital Margin 21
Other 15
Excess capital at 31 December 2013 720

* Movement in group undertakings relates Lo the change in the net asset vaiue of the subsisanes due mainky te prafits generated

and movements between admissible and inadmissible assets
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Risk appetite
We have embedded our approach to sk management through our nsk appetite This defines a corndor
of capital we wish to maintain by risk and entity and we regutarly monitor and report our position agamnst
our nsk appetite If capital moves outside of our defined risk appetite we have a pre-determined and
documented series of management actions which we will take to restore the position

Capitat management actions 2013

During 2013 we have taken a number of actions to mprove our capital position and to reduce the
sensitivity of our capital position to market movements Examples of actions taken

+ Increasing capital through the raising of subordinated debt,

» Hedging the equity element of management charges on our unit inked business

Stress and scenano testing

In addition to calculating capital on the required regulatory regime, we undertake a series of stress and
scenario tests to ensure the robustness of our solvency position in regard to different levels of new
business growth, movements In Investment markets and changes n other assumptions such as the
expected ifetime of our enhanced annuity customers

In looking at movements in Investment markets we consider a number of single stresses (e g equities
falling by 40%) hut more importantly because investment markets are highly correlated we consider how
they will move together in stressed conditions For example falls in equity markets will generally also see
rises tn credit spreads on corporate bonds We build a distribution of expected market events and we test
a number of points on the distribution 1 e 1 in 10 year events, 1 in 100 year events, 1 in 200 year events
In addition we run a number of ‘real world’ scenaros such as a repeat of the credit crunch of 2008 and
2009, where we know the exact economic conditions which affected the investment markets, and this
enables us 1o test the robustness of our business model should these conditions be repeated

We use the outcomes of the stress and scenano testing to develop the management actions we would
undertake If our capital or other performance measures move outside of our defined rnisk appetite
The impact of some of these stresses 1s given in note 4 of these accounts

Liquidity management
Liquidity management 1s required to ensure that the group has sufficient financial resources available
to meet s obligations when they fall due

The group generates cash from profitable trading in the general insurance business and from realised
margins on in-force long-term insurance policies Surplus cash 1s used to fund new business growth and
central costs Investment fluctuations will also affect the hquidity of long-term insurance funds

When reserves are strengthened or released at a fund level, assets are either transferred from or paid

to the LVFS Estate Fund The transfer of assets into or out of the funds will reduce or release assets to
be used as surplus cash In addition, surplus capital 1s held at subsidiary level to ensure that indmadual
entities are adequately capitalised and have sufficient hquidity to meet their obligations as they fall due

The group manages hguidity primarily through its asset and liablity management process which ensures
that, on a fund by fund basis and also at legal entity level, assets are held to match habilities by amount
and by maturity

Operational liquidity optimisation

The table below summarnses the operational hiquidity generated for LVFS on a stand-alone basis
Operational hiquidity 1s generated from movements in free assets in the year (including cash and cash
equivalents and surplus assets within funds in excess of matched habilites} Operational iquidity
excludes amounts attributable to RNPFN and also intra-group capital investments and repayments

LVFS operational liquidity optimisation

£m 2013 2012
Life 24 (22)
General insurance surplus cash remitted in the year 36 38
Group itemst) {18} (16)
Tax paid (4) {13)
LVFS inflow/{outflow) before non-recurring items and mutual bonus 38 (13)
Subordinated debt raise @ 346 -
Non-recurring items™ 174 22
LVFS net inflow before mutual bonus 558 9
Mutual bonus {22) (21)
LVFS net inflow/(outflow)* 536 {12}

(1) Group 1tems compnse centrally managed tosts and also the net impact of the hentage with-profits business

(2) Cash generated by subardinated debt raise Is disciosed net of £4n atinbutable transaction costs

(3) Includes net impact of assumption changes and investment gains of £114m buy out payments of £(35)m and £86m of dividenes and captal
repayments from nongeneral msurance subsidiaries

(4) Excludes intra group capttal invesiments and repayments
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Following continued growth in profits the general nsurance business returned funds of £36 million
to the group

in 2013, as a result of improved margins and lower than anucipated volumes, the Life business has
generated sufficient cash to fund new business and generate additional available hquidity within LVFS

Erterprise Value

Enterprise Value 1s an internal valuation measure It provides one way of measuring progress against
our goal to grow member value for the benefit of members and also the value created by the trading
businesses The chart below shows the growth in the group’s Enterpnse Value in 2013

Enterprise Value growth in 2013 %

Overall growth of 12% has been driven by both the general insurance and life business units
General insurance growth 1s dnven by positive trading profits and hence higher net tangible assets
Similarly, Iife’s continued profitable growth has translated into a further rise in embedded value
Enterprise Value growth for hentage and group 1s the result of improving hentage profitability and
a reduction In group costs

Conclusion

Overall 2013 has proved to be another successful year for V=, ncreasing operating profit and
continuing to compete strongly in challenging markets We have been proactive in strengthening
our capital base, continue to manage risk actively, and have focused on maintaining a robust
business model We feel confident that we are therefore well placed to continue growing profitably
In our target markets
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General Insurance

B

Managing Dircctor of General Ins

ANCSe

u!

We now have 4.4 million in-force policies across
an increasingly broad range of product lines.

2013 was a challenging year for UK general This act contained legislation to ban the payment
insurers as motor rateés continued to weaken and of referral fees in relation to personal injury
investment returns remaned subdued in line with claims and was intended to reduce the frequency
low interest rates Despite these conditions, our and cost of spunous claims Many insurers were
general msurance business delivered continued early to anticipate the benefit of these changes
growth In target market segments and we now have and premium rates in motor decreased sharply
4 4 mithon in-force policies acrass an increasingly across the market The benefits of the legislation
broad range of product knes Cur most significant have however been slow to matenalise and 1t now
business line remains car insurance and we are the appears that the market has over-estimated the
third largest private motor insurer in the UK with level of price reductions that might be justified
around 13% market share, based on the number As a resuit of these unduly competitive market
of vehicles insured In this line of business, our conditions, we chose not to chase unprofitable
improved pricing capability and claims management business and are therefore reporting a small
enabled us to reduce average premiums for reduction in motor premium income We helieve
customers by 9% duning 2013, allowing us to market rates are likely to readjust to more
rematn competitive 1n a price-pressured market sustainable levels in 2014
We are also becoming an increasmgly significant
player in other lines, particularly home insurance In recognition of the challenging motor market
and business insurance for SMEs Dunng the year we maintained strong cost disciplines through
we added aver 273,000 new policies across our controlling acquisition costs and operating
product range expenses, which contributed 1o an improved
combined ratio of 98 8% (2012 99 7%)
The two core businesses of direct and broker now Even though overall expenditure has gone up
underwntie 3 O million and 1 4 million policies at a rate lower than that of the increasing policy
respectively Both businesses contributed to voiumes, the lower earned premiums have led to
operating profit at £46 mithon and £35 million a shghtly higher expense ratio in 2013 compared {
respectively Our underwniting profit of £15 million to 2012 2013 combined operating ratio benefited
reflects a relatively benign year overall for home from a favourable pnor-year reserves run-off of
Insurance claims, despite adverse weather in £41 milhon, which contnibuted 2 8% to the overall
December, positive prioryear claims run-off and combined ratio improvement In contrast, durning
tight cost control on the motor account as margins 2012 prior-year reserves increases of £18 million
came under pressure had an adverse impact on the ratio of 1 2%
2013 was a year of significant regulatory activity Active but conservative management of the
and the most important change was the enactment investment pertfolio during 2013 produced a
of the Legal Aid, Sentencing and Purishment of total return of 3 2% which 1s lower than reported
Offenders Act (LASPQ) which took effect from Apnl in 2012 (5 8%) but a satisfactory result in ight

of investment market benchmarks
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Results for 2013

£m @ 2013 @ 2012
Underwrnting result 15 5
Investment return 66 112
Operating profit 81 117
Centrally managed costs (2) {6)
Amortisation of intangibles (2) {2}
Profit before tax 77 109

23 8%

Expense ratio

98 9%

75 1%

Combined ratio Loss ratio

£46m £64m £35m  £53m £81m  £117m

31m 30m 4 4m 4 1m

Total \

in-farce

Motor

inforce Operating

Direct Broker

operating operating " 7
policies policies profit orofit profit :
P
&
o
o
S
® 2013 ® 2012
Direct operating profit £46m £64m
Broker operating profit £35m £53m
Loss ratio 75 1% 77 0% g
Expense ratio 23 8% 22 7% g
Combined rato 98 9% 99 7% §
Investment returns’ 3 2% 5 8% o
Direct premium income £824m £830m
Broker premium income £621m £655m
Pre-tax return on capial 10 6% 17 7%
o
Motor in-force policies 31im 30m ;':j_ .
Total in-force policies 4.4m 4 1m é '
* Quoted pross of expenses a.
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Direct

The direct business continued to grow, Increasing
the overall number of in-force policies by 11 3%
to 3 0 mullion, despite gross written premiums
being marginally lower than in 2012 Within home
insurance, where customers are less mchned

to shop around ang there 18 a high level of price
competition, the direct business grew by 5 7%

to 560,000 in-force policies and premium income
rose by 2 3% to £132 millien

Within our other lines of business, including
travel and pet insurance, we Increased our
inforce pelicies to 95,000 from 77,000

at the end of 2012

Our road rescue business Britannia Rescue saw
particularly strong growth In policy count, up 44%
during 2013 This was primarily due to strong
corporate partnershup sales Dunng the course

of the year, we took the decision to update the
name of the business to LV= Bntannia Rescue,
leveraging the increasing strength of the LV= brand

2013 also saw the launch of three additional direct
personal ines products in the form of classic car,
motorcycle and caravan/motorhome insurance
policies Although we have previously offered all of
these via our broker business this 1s the first time
they have been offered direct under the 1V= brand
Early sales indications have been very positive and
we are confident that these will prove profitable
hines of business for us in the years to come

Broker

The broker business wrote £621 milhon of
premiums in total, with both commercial and
personal lines contributing to operating profit

Our commercial business continued to grow
strongly and we now insure over 190,000
commercial properties and 107,000 commercial
vehicles Commercial premium income overall was
up 23% compared to 2012, and within that our
SME premiums grew by 27% year-on-year

We see excellent opportunities for continued
profitable growth in SME insurance in 2014 and
thereafter This 1s a market where our proposition
of personal service, combined with an empowered
and responsive regional network and first class
claims support really makes a difference to our
broker partners

In personal hines, 2013 was a year where we
majored on rolling out our home product to a wider
range of brokers and IFAs Home insurance sales
through the broker channel were exceptionally
strong and 15 2% up overall relative to 2012

In broker motor, we found that price competitton
rendered certain segments unprofitable and we
allowed a degree of portfolio attrition to take place
in order not to write at an inadequate margin

We launched a number of new technology
initiatives, serving both personal and commercial
lines partners, ensuning that those brokers that
want to trade with us electronically are able to do
so effectively and efficiently Our firm belief 1s that
brokers will be best served by us offering a full
range of channels and allowing brokers to choose
therr preferred method of interacting with us

Qur service proposition

Customer service remains a key differentiator for
V= Our customer satisfaction levels remained
amongst the best in the market, averaging 77%

for the year as a whole (these scores exclude
responses where customers were merely ‘satisfied’
and refiect only those who were ‘very’ or ‘extremely’
satisfied) Underpinning these satisfaction scores
we continued 1o experience high levels of customer
retention ~ benefiting from retention rates of 7%
on car insurance and 77% on home insurance

Recognition of our service commitments continued
in the form of a multitude of industry awards,
including the Eurcpean Call Centre Awards, the
Claims Excellence Awards and the UK Customer
Satisfaction Awards We also continue to be one
of Which? magazine’s recommended providers

for car insurance

The insurance industry also recognised L=
with award wins in the Briish Insurance Awards,
the Insurance Times Awards and the Insurance
Fraud Awards

Looking ahead

Our focus on putting the customer at the heart of
our business and ensunng our products, service
and claims experience are market-leading has built
a loyal customer base and a strong reputation

The insurance industry continued to attract
regulatory attention during 2013, with the pace of
change requinng our sustained focus We continue
to work closely with our regulators and in-house
risk team to ensure that LV= s well positioned to
deal with any forthcoming legistative and regulatory
changes that may impact our business | am
confident that these capabilities will position us
well to secure continued profitable growth 1n 2014
and thereafter




Strategic Repor{ Governance Our Accounts
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Cash returned to the group
Total in-force policies

Premiumincome

£1.
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Richard Rowney
Managing Director
of Life and Pensions

We are the market leader in advised income
protection and a top five provider for pension
drawdown, enhanced annuities and equity reiease.

Resuits for 2013

Underlying operating profit of £29 milhon,
a 12% increase on 2012, has been drven
by sales momentum which built into the second +12%
half of the year, margin imtiatives and a focus
on strong cost control Over the last three years
we have delivered underlying operating profit
growth of 15% (compound annual growth rate)

underlying
operating profit

Life underlying operating profit 1s calculated Underlying operating profit
before adjusting for the impact of additional

margin for credit default and other risks and

model and valuation changes to get to operating

profit This i1s the key profit metric used by life

management to measure the performance i '

of the Iife business See non-GAAP glossary 2012 £26m
on page 90 i

2012
£m 2013 restated* v
Operating profit 18 48
Accounting policy differences (2) (12)
Short-term investment fluctuations 49 40
Centrally managed costs (1) (2)
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles (16) (6)
Profit before tax 48 68

Life operating profit has been restated to reflect the change m methodology apphed for credit detault expenence reporting Previously expenence
emerging in the reporting penod in respect of credit default was reported in short term wsiivestment fuctuations This 1s now reported ais additional
margn for credit default nisk withen operating profit 2012 eperating profit has been restated accordingly (£4m increase)
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Operating profit of £18 milwon (2012 £48 million)
fell as a result of a smailler credit from model

and valuation changes Operating profit in 2012
contained a number of one-off items including

a £23 mithon release of tax reserve and a

move 1o duration dependent discount rates,

which resulted in a £17 million credit to profit

Favourable short-term investment fluctuations
of £49 million reflected the further narrowing
of credit spreads dunng 2013

This results in a reduction in profit before
tax from £68 million to £48 million

The life business continued to progress delivery
against its strategic objectives during 2013 It has
been a challenging year for the UK life insurance
sector with lower sales volumes in some areas
reflecting the pull forward of 2013 business into
2012 due to the Retall Distnbution Review and
the gender directive We are pleased with the
performance of our hfe business in this context

Retirement

Qur retirement business 1s well positioned to take
advantage of evolving demographic trends and the
changing needs of retirees

Dunng 2013 we continued to evolve our product
set in response to these trends and in ine with our
customer's needs For example, for our Protected
Retirement Plan product we replaced the hreak
clause with a conversion option that gives the
customer the opportunity to exit at farr value at any
time dunng the term, provided they are advised
that this 1s the nght thing to do In Equity Release
we launched our high value loan proposition that
offers a bespoke service for advisers where the
customer 1s borrowing more than £250,000 and
with properties worth more than £1 million

As stated above, the retirement market in 2013
experienced headwinds which impacted some
product areas This was notable particularly in

the enhanced annuity market which accounts for

a large percentage of our annuity sales In this
context we took the strategic decision to manage
capital consumption in the first half of the year by
controlling sales volumes and then built volumes
In the second half This strong second half resulted
In sales 17% higher than the same penod i 2012
and 59% higher than in the first half of 2013

In pensions, we were pleased to see a strong
performance in new business with sales,

on an annual premium equivalent basis,
breaking through the £60 million barner for
the first ime This excellent performance
reflected the strength of our drawdown and
fixed term annuity products, key elements

of our broad retirement income offering

Protection

In protection we am to be a top five provider
competing on quality of proposition to customers
We focus on market segments where we can clearly
demonstrate value to our customers rather than
commoditised volume based segments

Qur ability to innovate in new product propositions
was highlighted with the development of Stck Pay
Insurance, a new direct product that has attracted
the attention of several corporate partners

The simpiicity and clanty of the proposition makes
it particularly consumersniendly Furthermore,

we continue 1o be the number one mcome
protection provider of choice for iIndependent
financial advisers

Although overall sales in protection are down,

we are pleased with performance, taking into
account the adverse market conditions as a result
of the tax changes and gender rules In this difficult
context we demonstrated the strength of our
protection business by increasing our market share

Qur service proposition

Customer service s key to the Iife business
and s driven by the LV= vision {o be Britain's
best loved insurer Qur impact on our customers
1s demonstrated by a survey of hfe customers,
when we asked, 'how did your call leave you
feeling?' the answer was, on average 9 3 with

1 being disappointed and 10 being delighted

Our life business had a very successful year in terms
of external recognition in 2013, winning in total 26
awards These included notably a five star rating

In the Life and Pensions category at the Financial
Adviser Services Awards, our Protection business
winning the Gold Standard Award for Indmvidual
Protection for a sixth successive year and Retirement
Solutions winning the Gold Standard Award for
Individual Pensions for the third year in a row

Looking ahead

After a challenging year for some of the markets
we operate in during 2013, our view 1s that the
impacts of the Retail Distribution Review and the
gender directive will reduce In 2014 We expect
further changes in the retirement solutions market
following the Chancetlor announcitng a number of
changes to the way retirees access their pension
savings In the March 2014 budget

We believe that there are trends in the retirement
market, such as a growing number of retirees

of whom many will continue to demand flexible
retrement income solutions V= offers a wide
range of ‘at retrement’ products and 1s well
positioned to respond to these changes

In the protection market we see a steady
market growth outlook, partly driven by product
innovation and a recovering mortgage market
QOverall we helieve that with a clear focus on our
customers, our Life business 1s well positioned
for continued growth
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New business

Annuat Premlum

New business margin Now business

Equivalent contribution
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m % % £m £m
Annuities 55 69 32% 28% 18 19
Penstons 64 56 3% 4% 2 {2)
Protection 29 32 8% 23% 2 8
Total life 148 157 15% 16% 22 25
New business margin
Annuities and pensions margins improved from 2012, reflecting our strategy of a balanced focus
on both market share growth and also acceptable returns
Protection new business margin fell from 2012 driven by lower volumes and price competition following
the regulatory and tax changes introduced at the start of 2013, partially offset by strong cost control
Internal rate of return and payback penod
Internal rate of return Payback perlod
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % years years
Annuities 15% 9% 7 10
Pensions 13% 9% 7 7
Protection 17% 15% 8 5
Total Iife 15% 10% 7 8

Our improved internal rates of return and payback penods reflect our strategy balancing a focus

on acceptable returns alongside market growth

Definitions

Annual Premium Equivalent

The value of annualised regular premiums

from new business plus 10% of single premiums
on new business written during the penod

New business contribution
The contribution to underlying operating profit
as a result of new business written

New business margin
The new business contribution as a percentage
of sales on an Annual Premium Equivalent basis

Internal rate of return {iIRR)

The discount rate at which the present value

of all expected future revenue |s equal to the
expected imitial investment to wnite the business

Payback period

The length of time required for the expected
cash flows from new business to equal the
amouni of cash required to write the business




Underlying operating profit

£29m

uoday oiFeiens

Annual Premium Equivalent

£148m
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Heritage

Current heritage
policies in-force

total 770,193,

of which 724,685

are with-profits policies.
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Heritage with-profits investment return 11.1%
+2.5% >

benchmark
Market benchmark return 8.6%

Our heritage business comprnses LVFS's with-profits business (both ordinary branch and industrial branch)
along with some non-profit business and unit-inked business, most of which was acquired from the

Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses ("RNPFN') Most of the group’s herntage products are no longer
actively marketed, although we continue to sell with-profits products including a umtised with-profits bond
and a with-profits pension annuity Current heritage policies in-force total 770,000, of which 725,000

are with-profits policies

Results for 2013

£m 2013 2012
Operating profit/(loss) 18 {64)
Short-term investment fluctuations 38 35
Centrally managed costs - {5}
Profit/(loss) before tax 56 {34)

2013 was a positive year for the hernitage business with sales in our unitised with-profits bonds, marketed
as Flexible Guarantee Bonds, up 38% on last year, exceeding expectations at £85 million (APE £8 5 mullion)
and the with-profits pension annuities achteving in excess of £10 million (APE £1 O milhon) Total new
business sates were £96 milion (2012 £62 million) Improved sales and good cost control contrnibuted to
an improved underlying operating 1oss of £1 milhon (2012 loss of £4 million) Operating profit of £18 million
was mainly due to favourable model and valuation changes

Strong investment performance in the second half of 2013 has resulted in the with-profits fund achieving
an investment return of 11 1%, out-performing market benchmarks by 2 5% and also leading to a favourable
short-term investment fluctuations balance of £38 million and overall profit before tax of £56 million

Heritage with-profits pay-outs and industry comparison
Recent maturity and surrender values for 1VFS with-profits policies show that LV= continues to perform
In the top quartile when compared against industry pay-outs

= @
Upper quartile @

4]
=1
LN
=
I
1)
[yl
el
[:)
]
5]
2
=1

£7.577 [avEhK

o TS
£7.,409

15yrs

A5yrs
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Pension

{regular)

Endowment
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Notes

1 The payouts are based on the follawing policies
£ndowment - Pehcyholder aged 30 at entry, monthly premiem of £50 maturing 1 February 2013
Pension {regular) - Policyholder retnng at age 65 monthly premium of £200 matunng 1 January 2013
Bond ~ An investment of £10,000 as at 1 November 2013

2 The industry payouts are taken from the most recert past performance surveys and relate to matunties dunng 2013 and 2014 The sources are
Endowment — Money Management survey puplished 28 Mareh 2013
Pension (regutar) — Money Management survey published 6 March 2013
Bond - Money Management survey published January 2014
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Risk Management

Steve Haynes
Chief Risk Officer

The role of nsk management
The effective management of risk supports the delivery of our strategy, protects the value that we create
for members, and helps us to identify opportunities where we can make better use of our capital

Cur nsk management approach 1s based on the group's enterprise sk management framework and has

the following core objectives

« To set out the nsks that the group 1s able and wishes to accept,

« To maintain a risk management and governance framework that in particular assesses and manages
the nsk-return trade-off, and

+ To measure and monitor the group s nsk exposures aganst the board's approved risk appetite
statements and nisk imits

LvV="s approach to risk

The board has established through a set of statements the rnsk principles and practices the business
15 expected to adhere 1o These statements are reviewed at least annually and reflect both the group's
strategic plans and the nsk strategy The statements approved by the board in 2013 are set out below

In conducting its business V= adopts a group-wide perspective on risk, and aims t0 avold undue
concentration, operate within its sk appetite, ensure fair treatment of customers and be competitive
in our chosen markets

Lv= wil! take on nsks that it has the capability to understand and manage and which support the
group's aim of optimising value for its members, delivering expected policyholder benefits and ensuring
it manages the with-profits business in line with the Pnnciples and Practices of Financial Management

LV= has an appetite for insurance risk in the life and non-hfe sectors As LV= has long term habiliues,
it also retains illiguidty premium through its investment strategy

V= takes on market nsk in our non-life business, in its with-profits funds in ine with Policyholder
Reasonable Expectations (PRE), and In its pension funds If nsk free rates are low, LV= may seek
market nsk with its mutual capital to earn a higher return

As an insurer LV=15 exposed to other risks {such as persistency, expense, operational, etc)
and it manages these to optimise the risk-adjusted return
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The effective management of risk supports
the delivery of our strategy, protects the
vaiue that we create for members, and helps
us to identify opportunities where we can
make better use of our capital.

LV="s risk management and governance framewaork
The group has a strong nsk culture which 1s based on the risk management and governance framework
The key goals of the framework are
« To ensure a consistent measurement of risk and capital that enables the group to optimise the
nsk return trade-off,

+ To mimimise ambiguity by defining the roles, responsibilities and reporting procedures of the risk
and capital decision makers in the group, and

+ To dentify, assess, and manage the matenal nisks to which LV=1s expesed and to operate a rohust
contral framework to maintain these risks within nsk appetite

Risk appetite

The amount of nsk that the group i1s willing and able to accept 1s measured and moritored by the
board estabhshing a nsk appetite statement and an associated nisk tolerance and hmit for each
major risk dimension

The board approved the following risk appetite statements in 2013

Dimension Risk appetite statement

Capital and Lv= will hold sufficient solvency capital and liquidity to ensure that the
liquidity group can continue to trade following a significant adverse movement in markets.

The volatility of LV="s garnings is consistent with the reasonable expectations

Earnings of with-profits policyholders and other stakeholders.

The group will always seek to uphold its brand image to be
‘Britain’s best loved insurer”,

V= has no appetite for regulatory weaknesses or failings that lead

REgmatory to censure actions.

Operational The group seeks to minimise operational risk events across the business.

and capability

V= will seek to ensure that our treatment of customers and our behaviours
are designed to deliver fair customer ouicomes.

Conduct
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Roles angd Responsik’ ties i)
Risk relationships, roles and responsibilities Rene

Set strategic objectives -

Monitor performance LV= Board
Set risk appetite

Set and uphold values

Set risk policies

Board Risk Committee

Second line: Chief Risk Officer

Set business standards

Monitor perfarmance

Qversee risk and capital

management

Provide challenge Group Executive Risk Committee
Recommend risk

management activity

First line: CEQ and business

* Qversee risk management

« Monitor risk and capital profile

* Monitor business performance

* Operate in tine with risk policies

» Report to the second line Group and Business ALCOs
and board

Business Risk Committees

Risk governance

The roles and responsibilities for nsk management are based on the three hnes of defence model
The business units and support functions are responsible for nsk taking, implementing the rnsk
management framework and embedding the nsk culture (first hne of defence) The nsk function is
accountable for overseeing and chaltenging the dentification, measurement, management, monitonng
and reporting of key risks and for developing the nsk management framework (second line of defence}
The internal audit team provides an independent assessment of the risk framework and the internal
control processes (third hne of defence)

The business units and support functions are responsible for ensuning that the controls are effective
and reporting to the board on any control weaknesses

The Board Risk Committee helps the board to oversee risk and nsk management across the group
The business units and support functions have established Asset and Liability Committees {ALCOs)
and Risk Committees to assist them in the execution of therr first line of defence responsishities
To support the execution of the second hine of defence responsibiliies the chief nisk officer chairs
the Group Executive Risk Committee and 1s a member of the Group ALCO These relationships are
summarised in the diagram above

To help ensure a consistent and rigorous approach to risk management across the group, the risk |
function has established a set of formal risk policies and nsk standards These policies and standards

detail the management and control requirements for the group and are reviewed regularly to ensure {
they align with any changes in the external environment or in the business strategy

As part of this approach the business units and support functions are required to regularly identify
and review their nsk exposures and risk controls Where any risks are outside of appetite action plans
are put in place which are rewiewed and monitared by the Group Executive Risk Committee

The nsk function then aggregates and reports the group's nsks along with an assessment against the
risk appetite and nsk hmits to the Board Risk Committee This reporting also assesses emerging risks
and the resulis of the thematic reviews performed in respect of the group’s products and processes
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Princtpal nsks and uncertainties
A common risk categonsation basis 1s used across the LvV= group to ensure a consistent record of
the names, descriptions and structure of the group’s nsks The principal risks to which LV=1s exposed

are shown below

financial
markets risk

Credit
counterparty
nsk

Life
insurance
nsk

General
Insurance
risk

Liguidity nisk

QOperattonal

risk

Conduct risk

Strategic nsk

The nsk that anses from
adverse fluctuations or
increased volatility in asset
values, asset income or interest
rates This includes credit
spread widening

The nsk of financial loss as a
result of the default or faiture
of third parties to meet ther
payment obligations

The risk that arises from the
inherent uncertainties as

to the occurrence, amount
and timing of Iife insurance
liabihities (for example adverse
movements in mortahty,
longevity, and persistency)

The risk that expernence 1S
adverse compared to current
best-estimate assumptions
underlying the underwnting
result (for example adverse
movements in claims,

or catastrophe expenence)

The nsk that V= and/or its
subsidianes, though solvent,

do not have sufficient financial
resources avallable to meet ther
obligations when they fall due

The risk of financial loss
resulting from inadequate

or falled internal processes,
people and systems, or from
external events

The nsk that Lv="s actions and
behaviour may result in poor
outcomes for customers

Risk of not achieving the group's
strategic plan as a result

of internal {e g neffective,
inefficient or inadequate senior
management processes) or
external factors (e g economic,
legal, political changes) that
serve to undermine either the
strategy itself or its execution

Management and mitigation examples

Active asset management and hedging
Pension fund de nsking
Asset and hability duration matching

Investment restrictions on sovereign
and corporate exposure to some
Eurozone countries

Investment restnictions on aggregate
and fund credit quality

Counterparty hmits and monitoring

Clearly controlled and defined pricing criteria
Product mix management to optimise capital
stramn versus return

Use of reinsurance to mitigate mortality/
morbidity/longevity nsks

Use of reinsurance to reduce the impact
of catastrophe and large claims risks
Use of data, models and analysis

to controt pricing and nisk selection
Review and analysis of claims and
reserve development

Asset liability matching
Cash flow reporting and forecasting
Active asset mix management

Attestation process that reports to the
board on the effectiveness of controls
Risk event reporting and root cause
analysis processes

Customer centnc strategic goals

Robust metrics and controls to achieve
customer service targets

Annuat review of product governance, pricing
and service processes

Annual planning process

{5 year business plans produced}
Regular tracking and reporting of key
strategic nsks to the board

Annual strategy revtew with the board
and external input and challenge
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Risk management during 2013

Risk environment and profile

A central theme n the UK financial market over
the last year has been the transition to niskier
assets by investors, driven by increased confidence
that the Euro will survive the financial ¢nsis and
that central banks and governments will continue
to support the global economy This confidence
resulted in a 19% increase in UK equittes, a 4%
fall in the value of UX government bonds and

a 12% return from high yield corporate bonds

The UK insurance market remained extremely
competitive with the public 1ssue of shares in
Partnership, Just Retirement, Esure and Direct
Line Group ensuring a strong focus on market
share In addition the UK pensions and annuities
markets have had to adjust {o the new post
Retail Distribution Review world and all insurance
products to the loss of gender as a rating factor
The prevalence and uncertainty of Periodical
Payment Orders in the UK motor insurance
market also continues to drive uncertainty

into the reserves of general insurers

From a regulatory perspective, the UK insurance
industry i1s undergoing a penod of unprecedented
change which includes

+ an Increased focus on corporate and customer
conduct from the newlycreated Financial
Conduct Authonity (FCA},

s the ongoing review of the motor iInsurance
market by the Competition Commissian and
the change in practice driven by the Legal
Aid Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders
Act (LASPO),

« the thematic reviews undertaken by the FCA
into the annuity and pensions markets, and

¢ the return of Solvency I, which 15 now very likely
to impact the solvency of European insurers
from 1 January 2016

+ The proposed changes to the UK pension
regime announced by the Chancellor in the
2014 Budget Statement

LV= believes its products, service standards, and
behaviours are designed to achieve good customer
outcomes but there 1s the risk that industry-wide
guidance, the proposed changes to the UK pension
regime, or rulings from the FCA may adversely
impact on sales, product design, and pricing

The nisk profile of the group did not change
significantly during 2013 and the biggest risks V=
faces continue to arise from adverse movements
in financial markets and adverse trends in general
insurance underwnting and claims

During the year the group completed a number
of actions to iImprove the management of its
nsks including
* adetailed review of the use of reinsurance
to manage general insurance reserving risks,
« an extensive programme of control
improvements to further reduce the nsk
of material data loss, and
= an overhaul of the risk governance framework
covering all boards and committees

Performance of the Board Risk Commitiee
The pnncipal role of the committee 1s to consider
the nisks faced by Lv= and advise the board

The committee met four times in the vear and
It was the chairman's practice to meet separately
with the chief nsk officer ahead of meetings

Its main activittes during 2013 included

+ Agreeing and montonng risk strategy, nsk
appetite and mdmdual hmits for specific types
of nsk (e g financial markets nsk and credit nsk)

« Reviewing and assessing the nsk oversight
provided by management in connection with
current and emerging risk exposures

* Assessing the mpact of management’s strategic
plans on the nsk profile of the group

« Monitoring the effectiveness of management
n identifying and recording the principat risks,
and the extent and effectiveness of the stress
tests and scenario analysis performed on these
principal rnisks

« Gaining assurance that an appropnate culture
in relation to the management of risk continued
to be maintained, with particular focus on
performance measurement

+ Overseeing the group’s regulatory compliance

» Assessing and adwising on the conduct rnisk
framework and on the extent to which the
group was minimising the risk of adverse
customer outcomes

+ Overseeing the risk elements of the group’s
Asset and Liabihty Committee (ALCO)

» Receving reports from the chief nsk officer
and the head of compliance ¢n a wide range
of 1ssues, Including regulatory change

« Reviewing and challenging the progress of
improvement in information security controls

In ine with the Combined Code requirement,

the committee reviewed its effectiveness during
2013 Dunng 2014, the committee will focus on
the continued implementation of an own risk and
solvency assessment, the internal model validation
process, the use of risk-based performance
measures and reporting, and the operation

of LV="s conduct nsk framework
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As a leading financial mutual
we take our responsibilities as
an ethical company seriously.
Our approach to conducting
business In a responsible
manner is embedded in

our culture and supports

our vision to be Britain’s

best loved insurer.
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Complaints Complaints Cutcome in
received referred to FOS Lv="s favour

General
Insurance

Life’

Heritage

Legacy
businesses’”

Treating customers fairly

We put customers’ interests at the heart of how we
do business, and adhere to the Financial Conduct
Authonty's (FCA) principles of Treating Customers
Fairly (TCF) This informs six key inputs in support
of our commitment to treat our customers fairly

at all umes

right culture

right targeting

right infarmation

right advice

right delivery

right post-sale treatment

N hWNE

Each year all our employees undertake compulsory
training to understand the principles of TCF and
how to ensure the outcomes are met

We regularly ask our customers whether our
products and services meet their expectations

At the end of last year our research told us that

we had achieved top five status for ‘best loved’,
‘caring’, ‘easy to do business with’ and great value’

Complaints

We aim to provide an excellent standard

of service to our members and customers,
but recogrise from time to time that there
may be occasions where service falls below
expectations OQur policy 15 to deal with any
complaints promptly, fairly and honestly

This includes root cause analysis, identifying
actions we can take to prevent complaints
of the same or similar nature oceurnng again

If we are unable to resolve the matter satisfactorily,
the complainant will be advised to refer the matter
to the Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS})

FCA and non-FCA complaints received Iin the year
are summansed In the table below

48,441 689 85%
1,856 65 87%
873 26 97%
3,019 78 63%

tncludes protection retirement solutlons tied adviser whole of market

Includes bank

Member relations

We take a proactive approach to member relations
and run a programme of regular communications
with our members

We maitl all our 1 1 million members in the

run up to our AGM to invite them to the meeting
and to ask them to vote on the resolutions heing
presented Members can vote by post, in person,
or onling We also send our with-profits members
a business update each autumn to inform them
about company developments

We operate the online LV= Community through
which we send regular emails to over 11,800
users with the latest LV= news, offers and

the opportunity to take part in research
Participants give us valuable input and
comments on new developments, such as
product design or customer service processes

We also operate a Member Panel, currently
compnising of 32 members This group meets with
our chairman, the executive team and other senior
managers to learn about our recent performance,
strategy, and future plans and to provide input and
challenge The board will continue to monitor the
effectiveness of this interaction and make further
changes as appropriate

We offer a range of free and exclusive benefits
which our members can take advantage of

The Member Care Line handled over 1,700 phone
calls in 2013 from members seeking medical,
counselling or legal advice

We also provide a Member Support Fund
which offers financial grants to members who
find themselves, through no fault of their own,
In financial difficulties Regquests for help are
assessed by a small independent committee
of members 64 grants were awarded during
the year which amounted to over £61,000

A new development in 2013 was the introduction
of a Member Community Fund A small group

of V= members — the Member Community Fund
Committee - review nominations from members
who wish to nominate a good cause, charity or
individual to benefit from funding The committee
recommend good causes to receive £10,000 each
quarter where this support will make a positive
impact on the commumity For more details please
see our chantable donations on page 50

Members are also entitled to discounts on
a range of our products, such as 10% off
car and home insurance
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£61,000

Member Support
Fund grants

- of potential losses p

" ‘pfotected through. -
< finahciak cfime

“I would like to thank you for the grant to enable me to
purchase a new washing machine. It proves to me that there
are some wonderful people who are willing to help people
who are In need of a helping hand sometime n their life”

Supplier management

Our commercial partnerships are a key factor
for us in achieving competitive excellence so we
expect suppliers to support our ethical approach
te the way we do business

We therefore ask all suppliers to follow our
‘ethical suppher pohcy’, which among other things
asks them to comply with all laws and regulations,
not to exploit child labour and not to discnminate
against their workforce In order to make sure

this happens, a number of steps are taken

Thase include (but are not hmited to) due diligence
of potential supphers during the tender process
and business assurance audits with supphers

to monitor compliance

Responsible investment

V=15 commutted to tnvesting responsibly
This commitment 1s shared by Threadneedle
Asset Management (TAM), our partner who
15 responsible for managing our investments
TAM follow governance and responsible
investment principles and procedures based
on the United Nations backed Principles

for Responsible Investment and the UK
Stewardship Code as well as best practice
corporate governance guidelines

1t 1s our joint belief that well-governed companies
are hkely to outperform in the long run and
therefore TAM considers a holistic understanding
of nsks and opportunities associated with
certain companies, sectors or themes, as part
of generating sustainable returns for their clients

TAM'’s governance and responsible investment
team has worked alongside their investment
professionals since 1998, facilitating integration
of material environmental, social and governance
analysis into the investment process

Financial cnme

We take a no tolerance approach to financial
crime and have a specialist team whose sole aim
1s to protect V=, our customers, members and
employees against its harmful effects We have
invested significantly in establishing our expertise
in this area and our systems and controls allow
us to ensure LV= 15 protected against all aspects
of financial cnme Our efforts include, but are not
limited to, the creation of dedicated investigations
teams to respond to claims and policy fraud, the
capture and processing of intelligence to prevent
and detect fraud, and working closely with external
organisations like the Insurance Fraud Bureau,
the Insurance Fraud Enforcement Department
and CIFAS We have also set an exampie to
would-be fraudsters by pursuing and winning
ground-breaking cases in the High Court when

we believe people have tried to defraud us
Overall, our robust and careful management

of financial crime protected LV= from potential
fraud losses of £40 milhion in 2013

Environment and emissions

We are committed to the continuous protection of
the environment and LV= takes its environmental
responsibility senously in order to protect our
environment for future generations to enjoy

Some of the ways we do this are

Actively promoting and invesung in efficiency
measures In our offices

Ensuring all offices are 'bintess’ with recyching
facihities available to staff

Effectively reducing the use of water by using
water savers

Placing energy efficiency as a significant factor
In the purchase, lease or refurbishment of any
V= office

Minimisig waste and promoting recycling
wherever possible

Monitoring our environmental performance

Adhering to a code of conduct and
ethical standards

Encouraging our people to use gnline
conferencing technology to minimise travel
between our offices

Supporting national events hke Walk to Work
Week and National Bike Week
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As a
responsible
employer we
aim to support
our employees
and provide

a safe and
motivating
environment
for them to
work in and
progress

their careers.

Our people

The average number of people we employ within the
group and its subsidianes and our total employee
costs are shown in note 42 of the accounts

We pride ourselves on being an employer of
choice and we ask our peopte to hve by our
values including treating people like farmly’
and don't wait to be asked As a responsible
employer we aim to support our employees and
provide a safe and motivating environment for
them to work In and progress their careers

Attracting and retaiming people with the right
skills and behaviours s paramount to our future
and we recewved around 27,000 applications for
roles dunng 2013 In turn we are committed to
supporting our people in achieving their potential
and ambitions

This includes providing them with the tools and
resources to do their Job and creating a culture

of continuous improvement On offer are internal
and external training courses, and coaching and
role progression programmes such as our in-house
academies, all of which are designed to enhance
our people s abilibes and the potential to further
their careers, wherever that may be Cur employee
turnover 1s 12% compared to the industry norm

of around 30% and in 2013 751 people moved
into aiternative roles within the business

We recognise that our employees have different
requirements and goals and we are committed
to supporting them in balancing their work
responsibiities and personal life The V=
benefits package encompasses contractual
benefits, as well as flexible and additional
benefits Our ‘My Choice scheme offers
employees the choice of up to 14 additionai
benefits, such as dental cover, critical liness
tnsurance, buying and selling holiday and
childcare vouchers

Employees are eligible for the annual
performance-related bonus scheme

The bonus paid 15 determined by individual,
team, business unit and group performance
This encourages the involvement of employees
at all levels in the group’s performance

We operate a popular staff intranet site,

‘Heartbeat’, that provides our employees with a

wealth of information Each head of department
and hne manager provides updates to their teams

1n person or via other channels such as the intranet,

sa that everyone 1s kept informed of the factors
affecting the business performance {(save where
prohibited by regulations on inside information)

Our chief executive, Mike Rogers, runs regular
‘Open Mike sessions across all the group's offices
These provide an opportunity for all employees

to meet him, and find out more about what's

gong on around the business

The regular employee magazine, ‘Live’, also
provides a range of articles on actities and people
at LV= as well as updates from senior management
and interviews with people across the businesses

We are committed to consulting with our employees
and providing information to keep them up to date
on any significant developments in the workplace

A ng part of this process includes gving them the
opportunity 1o express therr views on 1ssues that
affact theirr employment with us

Each year all employees are invited to participate
in an online, anonymous employee opinion

survey to gauge how they are feeling about working
for us The results are independentiy collated

and analysed Actions are then agreed to look

at any areas of improvement

The Employee Consultative Forum (ECF) exists to
help make LV= a better place to work and accords
with the Information and Consultation Regulations
(2004} The ECF1s composed of employee elected
volunteers who represent all our empioyees
Whether it's influencing change on policies

or helping employees who are going through a
tough time at work, they offer help and support

We have a strong focus on diversity, which
includes disatilty In addition to our diversity

and equality policy, we operate a disabihty pohicy
that includes aspects of recruitment and setection
of people with disabtlities as well as support,
development and opportunities for existing
employees with disabilities

We seek to ensure that disabled applicants receve
full and fair treatment and are considered solely on
therr ability to do the job Disabled applicants who
meet the essential cntena of the job description
and person specifications are, wherever possible,
Interviewed and assessed for posts For all
employees with a disability we look at their needs
and make any adjustments where we reasonably
¢an to help them carry out their job and provide
appropriate training and support

The success of our business I1s largely dependent
on our abihty to attract and retain the best people,
within a culture that embraces diversity and equality
Having a committed and motivated workforce 1s
something we're immensely proud of and can be
attrnibuted to several important and continuing
initratives within Lv=
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Equality

We pledge to treat all our employees with the
dignity, respect, and the consideration they deserve
This includes a promise to treat our current and
potential employees equally, irrespective of their
gender, racial or cultural background, disability,
age, marital status, religious beliefs, sexual
onentation, or involvement in trade union actvity

Diversity and inclusion
Qur people are as diverse as the customers
we serve and we embrace their unigueness

We believe that these differences complement
our vibrant culture We have therefore launched
a project specifically looking at diversity and
incluston across our workforce

Led by our executive team, our diversity and
inclusion programme involves our people In

a number of focus groups and centres around
five key areas

Gender - We share the belief that gender balance
15 vital to our success We understand the need
to address the gender balance at both a senior
and board level

Sexual orlentation - We want LV=to be a place
where our people feel comfortable being open
about their sexual onentation or gender 1dentity
if they choose to

Multi-cultural - Increasing global mobility and
migration 1s creating a rich mix of cultures, faiths
and hentages within commuruties and LV=

alike This gives us the opportunity to embrace
how others see and experience the world and
encourages new ways of thinking

Multi-generational - Understanding the products
and services our customers want at each Iife stage
1$ central to our business In a time when several
generations can often be seen working side by
side, understanding and respecting therr differing
expectations 1s cruclal

Disability — Simple adjustments make sure that

our workplaces and services are fully accessible to
everyone Inclusive attitudes are just as important
and ensure we focus on ‘abilty’ first and foremost

Community work and charity donations
Our commitment to making a real difference
within the communities where we live and work
continued during 2013, and with the support

of our employees we made a positive impact
through our community fundraising, sponsorship
and investment programmes

Community investment

Our community investment approach focuses

on providing financial and volunteering support
to the communities surrounding our 17 offices
Two years ago we established a network of
regional commumity committees run by our own
pecple, giving them the empowerment and
accountability to decide where we can lend our
support most effectively Throughout the year they
assess requests from good causes in ther local
communities and decide If and how to help them
Last year they distnbuted £165,000 helping over
280 local chanties, good causes and projects

We also invested £60,000 in our schools
programme mentonng more than 760 students
about the world of business, financial affairs and
helping them with interview skills

Also this year we donated two minibuses to
charities near our Brentwood and Ipswich offices

Investing time and skills locally 1s just as important
as funding Last year we supported our people In
matching more than 800 hours of their own time
to valunteer in the community

Over the last three years AGM votes have raised
£55,000 for charities with the money donated
based on the number of votes we received In
2013, Rainbow Children s Trust received £20,000
after a nomination from one of our voting members

New for 2013, our Member Community Fund
1s designed to help good causes close to our
members hearts Four times a year we’'ll give
away £10,000 to something or someone
norunated by one of our members

“Dogs for the Disabled 1s
delighted to be the first
recipient of an LV= Member
Community Fund grant and
we're very grateful for this
amazing gift of £10,000.”

Corporate Partnership Manager Cathryn Simpson
at Dogs for the Disabled
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Community sponsorships

We have a number of community partners which
help broaden the reach of our support For the
last 15 years we've supported LV= Streetwise,
an interactive safety centre which helps chitdren
learn about dangers in and outside the home
Last year around 13,000 children visited the
centre V= KidZone our beach safety scheme,
helped reunite 148 lost children with their
families in Bournemouth over the summer

As a sponsor of the entrance pavilion at the Mary
Rose Museum on Portsmouth s Historic Dockyard
we're helping to preserve the iconic ship and her
artefacts for future generations Our support for
Fietds in Trust 1s helping to safeguard outdoor
recreational spaces across the UK, 12 of which
have been secured near our larger offices

Lv= 503 Kit Aid 1s a one-of-a-kind scheme which

provides underprivileged youngsters with sports kit
and equipment so they can erjoy games like cricket

and rugby In 2013 35,000 youngsters benefited
from recycled goods

£1.1m

Raised, donated

or invested i UK
communities

Community fundraising

Getting behind causes that are close to our

people 1s a major part of our community fundraising
strategy Cur chanty matching scheme was used by
more than 370 employees which meant we topped
up therr own fundraising totals by an additional
£78,000 We donated over £37,000 to fundraising
events hke Comic Relief, Movember and Children

in Need - and since 2008 we ve opened up our
offices as a call centre for Children in Need,

where hundreds of our people volunteer therr
evening to take ptedges from callers

Employees who want to donate to chanty straight
from their salary can do this in two ways We offer
a mecharusm whereby we'll automatically deduct
the penries in their net pay to chanty and a direct
donation to a chanty of their choice These options
meant that a further £128,000 was raised for
charities in 2013

@ Community investment
£498,000 45%

@ Community sponsorship
£229,000 20%

@ Community fundraising
£390,000 35%
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Our approach to Corporate Governance

We choose to observe the
requirements of the annotated
version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, even
though we are not formally
bound by itl.

Compliance with the Annotated Code for the year ended 31 December 2013

The hoard consiwders that we fully comply with the applicable pnnctples and provisions of the Annotated
Code with the exception of a decision taken by the board that only the chairman will offer himself for annual
re-election by members at the Annual General Meeting The board has determined that the annual election
of the chairman provides an adequate means for members to register concern with the performance of the
hoard directors who continue to stand for re-election at least every three years

A number of sigmficant new regulations that impact the annual report, and how auditors report on tt,
took effect in September 2013 Although they cover a broad range of topics they are all related to how
our directors demonstrate that they have exercised proper stewardship The table below summarnses
the changes which have been incorporated into this annual report

BIS narrative BIS remuneration FRC UK Corporate FRC Auditing Standard 1SA
reporting regulations report reguiations Governance Code (UK&I) 700

Creates a strategic Splits the Implements the Amends the audit report

report in place remuneration report outcome of the to provide more insight

of the business into a forward-looking FRC’s Effective into some of the

review that can policy part and a Company Judgements made as

be sent separately hackward looking Stewardship inputs’ to the audit

to mvestors instead Implementation part intiative, and aims process The FRC believes

of summary to Iincrease users’ this will complement |

financial statements confidence in the the audit committee’s L
reliabihity of the disclosures of the
annual report significant 1ssues

1 The annotated version of the ansing as ‘outputs

UK Corporate Governance from the audit under

Code and the best practice

guidance was publistied by the revised UK Corporate
the Association of Financiat Governance Code

Mutuals {the Annotated Code )
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Appraising the board’s performance

Every year the performance of board members Is reviewed both individually and as a coilective The senior
independent director reviews the performance of the chairman, and the chairman reviews the performance
of all other directors

Board effectiveness

The UK Corporate Governance Code recommends that FTSE 350 companies, or equivalents, {(which would
include V=) commit to an externally factlitated review of board effectiveness at least every three years

An external independent review of the board and its committees was undertaken by an expert consultancy
in the area of board effectiveness, IDDAS, which in March 2013 concluded that the Society’s board
compared extremely well to its peer group of other high performing compames The board considered the
recommendations and an update on progress made against some of the key recommendations is set

out below

Recommendation from 2013 Action taken
board evaluation

The right skills for now and
for the future

The structured board training and induction programme
was ennched 1o include regular reviews for all board

Consider improvements to board
induction and tramning programmes

Structures and procedures

fit for the future

Consider improvements to the form
and focus of board papers

Information evolution developing
acessibility and insight
Improving the provision of
information to reduce information
overload and allow more effective
scrutiny and challenge

Effective engagement
and communication
Consider use of site visits to foster

members and enhanced training at regular meetings

To help ensure that all papers submitted to the
board are consistent and focused, a comprehensive
corporate governance manual has been drafted to
include new processes

The board management information packs have been
reviewed and refreshed to include executive summares,
supported by a dashboard of key performance indicators that
will deliver the key messages for a specific board meeting

The entire board, including non-executives, undertake regular
site visits (not Just on induction) to see areas of interest for
themselves and to meet a wider range of key stakeholders

talent management and board
engagement with the business

The board

Our board 1s made up of six nen-executive and four executive directors All the non-executive directors are
regarded as independent We therefore satisfy the Annotated Code's recommendation that at least half the
board should consist of independent non-executive directors

Balance of the board

The board contains an appropriate balance of expertise in management, investment, admimstrative
and financial services, including general insurance and life iInsurance, to meet the requirements of our
members and customers

PIUBLLIDADD voday 28ateng
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From left to right: - T
Richard Rowney )
Managing Director of Life and Pe ns -+

Mike Rogers ;

Chief Executive

_James Dean s
+# Non-Executive Director s o T

Mark Austen
Chairman

Cath Keers
Non-Executive Director

Philip Moore
Group Finance Director

John O’Roarke
Managing Director of General Insurance

John Edwards
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Caroline Burton
Non-Executive Director

60%

David Neave Executive Directors : Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Director
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Board members

. Mark Austen {64) Chairman
W Mark was appointed chairman of LV= at its 2013 AGM after being a non-executive director

'"{" for the Society since 2006 Mark qualified as a chartered management accountant in
1972 and spent the majority of hus career at PncewaterhouseCoopers managing ther
global financial services consulting business His broad range of skills across several
disciplines includes advising organisations on thetr strategies, acquisitions, cperations,
HR policies and technology As well as being Lv="s chairman, Mark 1S also a non-executive
director of Standard Bank plc and Mott MacDonald Group Ltd

Chawrman, chair of the Nomination Committee and member of the Audit, Risk, Investment
and Remuneration Committees

Mike Rogers (49) Chief Executive

Mike spent 20 years working for Barclays Bank where he camed out a vanety of

roles in the UK and overseas Among his semor appointments at Barclays, Mike was
managing director of Small Business, Premier Banking and UK Retail Banking achieving
a post-graduate Diploma in Leadership from Exeter Umversity in 1995 In May 2006

he joined LV= as chief executive leading the business into profitatniity and transforming
it into the wibrant and successful mutual it 15 today

Member of the Investment Committee and Nomination Committee

Philip Moore (54} Group Finance Director

Having held executive positions at several leading financial institutions both 1n the UK and
abroad Philip’s career in finance has spanned over 30 years He has acquired extensive
know!edge in areas such as nsk management, mergers and acquisitions, finance and
actuanal and asset management Philip was chief executive at Fnends Provident until
2007 and chief rnisk officer and group finance partner at Pensions Corporation LLP
hetween 2008 and 2010 He was appointed as group finance director of Lv=n 2010

As well as being part of the board and executive team at Lv=, Philip 1S also a senior
independent director and chairman of the Audit Committee of Towergate Partnership Ltd

Member of the Investment Committee

Richard Rowney (43) Managing Director of Life and Pensions

Richard spent 14 years at Barclays Bank holding a number of semor positions across
corporate and retail banking including overseeing integration of the Woolwich and Barclays
retall banks He joined V= 1n 2007 as chief operating officer where he transformed

the operational support areas 10 ensure they could support the fast growing trading
businesses going forward Richard was appointed managing director of hfe and pensions
In 2010 and has led the transformation of this business to create one of the UK's leading
protection and retirement speciahists Richard works closely with the local community and
1s an independent director of the Dorset Local Enterpnse Partnership

John O’Roarke (56) Managing Director of General Insurance

John qualified as a chartered accountant and has spent 30 years in the insurance
industry He worked for Churchill Insurance for 13 years where he was finance director
and then managing director, leading the company to become one of the UK's best known
insurers John was appointed chief operating officer of RBS Insurance in 2003 but left

In 2005 to set up ABC Insurance, acquired by LV=n 2008 He became managing director
of LV= general insurance the same year, leading the team that has quadrupled the size

of the general insurance business and produced strong profit contributions
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John Edwards (58) Sentor Independent Non-Executive Director

John's career in the insurance and nvestment industry spans 35 years dunng which

he has held chief executive positions with three successful insurance and investment
groups, the most recent in Intermational Financial Services for the Lioyds Banking Group
He has also served as a non-executive director of Esure and St James's Place Capital
As well as his position on the LV= board, which he joined in 2010, he 1s deputy chairman
of Nottingham Bullding Society where he also chairs therr Risk Committee

Chairman of the Investment Committee and member of the Risk, With-profits and
Nomination Committees

Caroline Burton (64) Non-Executive Director

Caroline joined the board in 2011 She has a strong life Insurance background and 1s

a highly expenenced figure 1n the asset management industry having spent 26 years with
Guardian Royal Exchange plc, where she was m charge of mvestments from 1990 until
1999 She acts as a pensions and bustness adviser for a number of pension funds and
chanties and her expertise puts her in good stead to monitor the management of Lv='s
assets She 1s chairman of TR Property Investment Trust plc and a non-executive director
of BlackRock Small Companies Investment Trust plc

Member of the Audit, Investment, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Cath Keers (48) Non-Executive Director

Cath has over 20 years marketing and sales experience having worked at BskyB,

Next and Avon In 2008 she won a lifetime achievement award for her outstanding
impact during her career at 02, where she was customer director in charge of refocusing
the organisation’s customer strategy She brings a wealth of retail industry expertise

to the V= board, which she joined in 2010, and holds other non-executive positions at
Telefonica 02 Europe, Royal Mail and the Home Retail Group {for Homebase and Argos}

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the With-profits and
Nomeation Committees

James Dean (56) Non-Executive Director

James joined the board 1in 2012 He 1s a chartered accountant and 1s recognised as an
expert in INsurance accounting having spent much of his 30 years’ experience in audit
and advisory roles As a senior partner at Ernst & Young he deait with clients such as AXA,
Prudential, Legal & General, RSA and Aviva, serving on boards outside the firm including
as chairman of the ICAEW Insurance Committee He 1s also a former global IFRS leader
for the insurance sector of Ernst & Young and holds non-executive director appointments
at Rathbone Brothers Plc and The Stafford Railway Buillding Society

Chairman of the Audit Commitiee and member of the Risk and Nomination Committees

David Neave (54) Non-Executive Director

Dawid has over 30 years of expenence of the general insurance industry, with a particular
specialism in personal hines and technical expertise in a range of functions including
underwnting, claims and partnerships Dawvid started his career at Royal Insurance,

which merged with Sun Athance In 1996 to become insurance group RSA He held varnous
roles including managing director of corporate partnerships, and claims services director
for the overall UK business Most recently he was managing director of general insurance
for the Co-operative Banking Group, resigning from this role in 2012 Dawd joined the
LV= board in 2013 He has also been charrman of the Insurance fraud Bureau and the
ABI Financial Crime Commuttee and a director of the Motor Insurers Bureau and the
tnternational Co-operative and Mutual Insurers Federation He 1s currently a non-executive
director of Parabis Ltd and Wunelh Ltd

Chairman of the Risk Committee and member of the Audit and Nomination Committees
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Board Committees

The followtng board committees met dunng 2013

Liverpool Victoria
Friendly Society Board

The Audit
Committee

Tre -
. R@m&mﬁ@r
Comrniee

p

The Risk
Committee

The
Nomination
Committee

®

The Investment
Committee

The
With-profits
Committee

The terms of reference for the board committees are reviewed each year and published on our website

They can be viewed at LV com/boarddocs

Board and Committee membership and attendance in 2013

Liverpool
Victoria

Friendly
Soclety Board

®

Audit
Committee

®

Risk
Committee

O)

Investment
Committee

& |-1.aﬂih1~
[ OITH mﬂ[ﬁ.{.

®

Nominations
Committee”

®

With-profits
Committee

Dennis Holt

Mark Austen 9/9
John Edwards 9/9
Cath Keers 8/9
Caroline Burton 9/9
Mike Rogers /9
Philip Moore 9/9
John O Roarke /9
Richard Rowney 9/9
James Dean 9/9
David Neave 3/4

n/e Not apphcable

6/7 4/4
n/a 3/4
n/a n/a
1/7 n/a
n/a n/a
n/a n/a
n/a n/a
n/a n/a
7/7 4/4
2/3 2/2

Sat Independently from the Remuneration Committee on 25 October 2013

3/3
3/3
n/a
3/3
2/3
2/3
n/a
1/2
n/a
n/a

4/4
n/a
4/4
1/3
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

2/2
1/1
1/2
1/1
0/1
n/a
n/a
n/a
1/1
1/1

n/a
2/3
4/6
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
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() Audit Committee

The membership of the Audit Committee at the end of the year was
« tames Dean {chairman}

« Mark Austen

» Caroline Burton

« David Neave

The company secretary acts as secretary to the committee The Audit Committee meets at least five
times a year and has an agenda hnked to events in the Society'’s financial calendar including approving
any press releases to the market on financial reporting Other individuals may be invited to attend all or
part of any meeting as and when appropriate including, but not hmited, to the chief executive, the group
finance director, the internal audit director, the chief nsk officer, the group financial controller and the
group chief actuary The external auditors (currently PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC)) attended all

of the committee’s main meetings in 2013, except when their own performance was being reviewed

The board considers that all the members of the commitiee are independent and bring significant and
relevant skills and experience to the function of the committee All members undertake induction training
and continuing professional development James Dean, in particular, as the chairman and a former senior
partner at Ernst & Young, has the requisite ‘recent and relevant financial expenence’, as recommended
by the Annotated Code The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include all the matters required
under the Code and follow FRC guidance

The primary purposes of the Audit Committee are to
« Review the effectiveness of the Society’s internal controls and sk management systems alongside
the work of the Risk Committee

+ Review the financial reporting process and outputs so as to ensure the balance, transparency and
integnty of published financial information and the Society s process for monitonng compliance with
laws and regulations affecting financial reporting

+ Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function (whose remit cavers all nsk classes)

» Review the effectiveness of the external audit process (the remit for which 1S external reporting matters)
including the appointment and ensuring the independence of the external auditor and the use of the
external auditor for non-audit work

« Engage independent counsel and other advisers as 1t deems necessary to assist in the carrying out
of its duties

Significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates

The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it considers o be important by virtue of

thetr impact on the group's results and remuneration of senior management, or the level of complexity,
judgement or estimation involved in their apphication on the consolidated financial statements The main
areas of focus dunng the year are set out in the fellowing significant 1ssues table

SOUBLIADD 1oday »gaens
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Area of focus

The longevity assumption used
to estimate the value of liahilities
assoclated with enhanced
annuity preducts

Enhanced annuities continue to be

a major source of new business,
increasing the exposure to [ongewity
nsk (1 e the annuitants live longer
than expected) Small changes tn the
assumption will have a matenal impact
on the value of long-term insurance
contract iabilities

Other key life assumptlons and
methodology matters

The calculation of the Group’s
long-term insurance contract llabiiies
requires assumptions to be made
around various items of future
experience relating to the underlying
business, inevitably entailing a high
degree of uncertainty

Methods and assumptions used to
estimate the costs of claims for
general insurance products

This area 1s Inherently subjective

In addition, developments such

as claims farming, the increase of
settlements via periodic payment
orders (PPOs) together with the Ministry
of Justice claims reforms increase the
uncertainty around future settlement
costs and hence the valuation of
general insurance contract hialities

Goodwill and intangibles

The appropriateness of the carrying
value of goodwill and intangibles
we hold an our batance sheet

Pension accounting

The methodology used for accounting
for the group pension scheme, in¢luding
the impact of the changes to IAS 19
‘Employee benefits’

Audit committee action in year

The committee has reviewed management
reports in relation to this assumption,
considered market data and has also reviewed
the findings of the externat auditor who has
also focused on this area

The committee reviewed reports from
management proposing a number of changes
to the calculation of the long-term insurance
contract habilities These included proposed
changes to the aliowance for the additional
mortality expected to arise under protection
policies on rated lives, the future longewty
experience of annuities on standard lives,
and the persistency assumptions for certain
products so as to reflect more closely the
emerging expertence

The committee receves a detailed report from
management outlining the general insurance
reserving process prior to the halfyear and
the year-end This report (s reviewed and
discussed at Audit Committee meetings

The work performed by the external auditor
1S also considered by the committee when
concluding if methods and assumptions
used by management are acceptable
Furthermore, an independent review of
personal injury claims reserve projections
was recelved from Towers Watson and
reviewed by the committee during the year

The committee has reviewed the results of
the annual impatrment assessment which
compares the recoverable amount against

the carrying value for both the general
insurance and life businesses as separate
cash generating units Consideration has been
given to the appropnateness of value in use
caleulations, including discount rates applied

The committee has monitored the assumptions
used for cafculating IAS 19 ‘actuanal gains
and losses’ An early review of the Annual
Report, particularly the ‘Pension benefit asset
or (obligation)’ note has been carried out

to ensure that disclosures are in line with

new IAS 19 requirements

Conclusion / outcome

The committee agreed with

the conclusions of a report
commussioned by management
that the mortalhty curves used

to value the habilities in respect
of the enhanced annuities should
be modified so as to reflect

more appropriately the expected
development of mortality over the
remaining ifetime of the business

The committee concurred

with management as to the
reasonableness of the proposed
changes They also reviewed
management’s assessment

of the adequacy of the allowance
for the future inflation of umt
costs and accepted the view
that 1t remained appropnate

The regular reviews of the general
nsurance reserving process have
given the committee comfort that
metheds and assumptions used
to estimate the cost of claims

for general insurance products
are reasonable

The committee has concluded
that methodologies used to
measure the value of goodwill
and intangibles held on the
balance sheet are appropnate
Results of these calculations
confirmed that carrying values
were approprrate and therefore no
aditional iImpairment was required

The committee 1s satisfied that
the pension benefit asset or
{obligation), and re-measurements
have been calculated using
appropriate assumptions and that
disclosures have been updated
correctly in line with the revised
requirements of 1IAS 19
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Area of focus

Buy out payments

The accounting treatment of the
buyhack of the ABC executives’
shares in Liverpool Victona Insurance
Management Limited and the
creation of a replacement long

term incentive scheme

Capltal strength

Appropriate capttal and quid assets
are In place

Following the capital raise and the
resultant hsted status reporting
requirements for LV= have increased

Reporting changes

During the year additional reporting
requirements have ansen due to
regulatory change

Audit committee action in year

The commitiee has reviewed management
reperts outlining the proposed accounting
treatments and subsequent disclosures
relating to these schemes Discussions with
the external auditors provided additional
comfort in this area, which was deemed
particutarly tmportant as the schemes
affected the remuneration of John O'Roarke,
an Executive Director of the W= Group

Management provided the committee with
regular reviews (at least six monthly) of the
group’s capital position, including details of the
£350m capital raise during the year

The committee also reviewed proposed
reporting, both for the debt itself and additional
requirements (reporting and governance) which
have ansen due to LV="s listed status

The committee has monitored financial
reporting requirement changes throughout the
year This has included BIS narrative reporting
regulations, BIS remuneration reporting
regulations and FRC Corporate Governance
code updates Early drafts of the Annual Report
were considered by the committee and review
points were passed back to management to
ensure compliance The committee considered
the structure and content of the new strategic
report ang also considered whether the Annual
Report and accounts taken as a whole was far,
balanced and understandable

Conclusion / outcome

Following a detailled review

of the Annual Report the
committee 1s satisfied that
reparting for this area I1s
comphant, fair and transparent

The committee 15 satisfied that
the capital raise was conducted
appropriatety and noted the
consequent improvement in the
group's capital position

Subsequent changes to reporting
and governance have ensured that
V= has remained compliant with
applicable regulations

The committee has concluded that
the Annual Report 1s comphant
with the additional reporting
requirements which arose during
the year and s farr, balanced

and understandable, providing

the \nformation necessary for
stakeholders to assess the
Society s performance, business
model and strategy

23URLIA0G Hoday 21Fa1ens
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Summary of key activities during 2013
by which the Audit Committee discharged
its responsibilities

Internal controls

-

Monitored the group's internal controls

by considenng a number of reports on the
key controls and nsk management functions
and dentified key 1ssues, inttiating actions
far these to be resolved,

Carefully considered the results of in-depth
testing carried out by management and internal
audit and also work carried out by the external
auditor, for example analysis of journals
Specificatly, focus was directed towards testing
for fraud In revenue recogmition The results

of testing led the committee to conclude that
controls In this area are robust,

Conducted a full annual review of the
effectiveness of all matenal internal control
processes (ncluding financral, actuanal,
operational and compliance controls and

risk management systems, which was carrnied
out by the group nsk management function
The review's aim was to assess the
effectiveness of the control environment

and identify any areas for improvement, and

Reviewed the arrangements through which
employees can raise concerns about possible
irregularities relating to financial reporting or
other matters including reviewing all whistle
blowing reports

Financial reporting

Analysed and scrutinised the key accounting
policies, judgements and actuanat assumptions
with management, the external auditors and
the actuanal function holder,

Reviewed procedures for dealing with any
complaints regarding accounting, reporting,
internal control or auditing matters,

Considered management’s regular reviews of the
going concern status of the group, ensuring that
appropriate capital and liquid assets are in place
to allow the group results to be reported on a
goIng concern basis,

Monitored the financial results communicated
to members, including the Annual Report
and Accounts,

Reviewed and recommended all external
financial reporting for the Society {(including
press releases and any interm announcements
put ento the regulatory news service of the
London Stock Exchange) to the board (or the
Disclosure Committee) together with supporting
narrative, ensuring estimates, judgements and
reporting 1ssues are considered so that there s
appropriate balance, transparency and integnty
of information contained tn the Annual Report
and Accounts,

At the request of the board, the committee
considered whether the 2013 Annual Report
was farr, balanced and understandable and
whether 1t provided the necessary information
for stakeholders to assess LV='s performance,
business model and strategy An in-depth review
of the final draft Annual Report was carred out
by the committee who were satisfied that, taken
as a whole, the Annual Report 1s fair, balanced
and understandable,

Recommended to the board the Society’'s PRA
annual return, ICA submissions and Valuation
Reports, and

Recommended to the board the design,
cabbration, valdation and results from the
group and its subsidiaries nternal capital
mode! (including ICA and ORSA)

Internal audit

Reviewed the effectiveness and activities of
the internal audit function This review reflected
the ongoing development of the function in
terms of quality and impact on the group

A self-assessment against the Chartered
Institute of Internal Auditors (CHA) guidance,
‘Effectiveness of internal audit in financial
institutions’ was completed durnng the year
The gap analysis with a high-level action plan
was reported to the Audit Commuttee and
confirmed there were no significant gaps
This analysis was considered to be a far
assessment by the Audit Commuittee,

Ensured that significant findings and
recommendations made by the internal auditor
and management s proposed response were
receved, discussed and appropriately acted
upon, and

Reviewed the proposed internal audit plan for
the coming year to ensure that it addressed

key areas of nsk and that there was appropnate
co-ordination with the external auditor

External audit

Reviewed the performance of the external
auditor, including the chairman meeting privately
with the auditor to give feedback The committee
reviewed an evaluation of the effectiveness of
the external auditars, which was prepared by
internal audit using input from across the group
The committee concluded that the external
auditor was effective and recommended the
reappointment of the external auditor for a
further one year term, agreeing the terms of
engagement and scope of the audit fee for the
forthcoming pernod PwC have been LV='s auditor
since 2008,

Reviewed the poficy for and monitored the use
of the external auditors for any non-audit related
work to ensure its continued independence was
not prejudiced and 10 ensure that the provision
of such services did not impair the external
auditors’ objectivity,
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+ Reviewed and approved the external
auditors proposed audit scope and approach
for the current year as set out in its 2013
audit plan, in the hght of the droup’s present
circumstances and changes in regulatory
and other requirements,

« Discussed with the external auditor any
audit problems encountered in the normal
course of audit work, including any restnctions
on audit scope or access to information
as part of ensuring that significant findings
and recommendations made by the external
auditors and management’s proposed
response were recewed, discussed and
appropnately acted upon, and

+ Met privately with the external auditors PwC

Committee’'s effectiveness

The commitiee reviewed and amended 1ts terms
of reference In 2013 as part of a group wide
project to review and document the board's
committee governance structure, including all
terms of reference and delegated authornties
The committee reviews 1ts own effectiveness
annually and reviews the effectiveness of

each meeting prior 1o conclusion to ensure
continuous improvement

Pnorities for 2014

The committee plans to maintain its focus on
the areas outlined in the significant 1ssues table
above and expects to consider the Sharman
Committee report on going concern, the effects
of Solvency It and IFRS 4 Phase Il ‘Accounting
for Insurance contracts’

® The Risk Committee

The Risk Committee 1s made up of
+ Dawvid Neave (Chairman)

» Mark Austen

+ James Dean

» John Edwards

The Risk Committee meets at least four times
a year with other attendees including, but not
limited to

+ the chief executive,

« the group finance director,

* the chief nsk officer,

« the internal audst director, and

s the head of compliance

The principal role of the commuttee 1s te consider
the nsks faced by V= and advise the board

More details of the group's policy on nisk
management, and the actvities of the committee
during the year are set out in the Risk Management
section on page 38

() Remuneration Committee
The Remuneratton Committee met four times during
2013 and I1s expected to meet four times 1n 2014

The committee 18 made up of three independent
non-executive directors

+ Cath Keers {chairman)

« Caroline Burton

+ Mark Austen

Input 1s provided by the HR director, the cheef

executive and the chief nisk officer, who attend

by invitation On behalf of the board,

the committee determines

+ The group’s policy on executive remuneration,
and

+ The specific packages for each of the executive
directors and certain senior managers, mcluding
groupwide and specific divisional LTIP schemes
for the life and general insurance businesses

More details of the group's policy on executive
and senior management remuneration, and the
activities of the committee dunng the year are
set out in the Report on Directors Remuneration
on page 72

@ Nomination Commitiee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committees
met as a combined committee until September
2013 at which point the committees divided

The Nomination Committee now meets separately
and 1s attended by all the non-executive directors
This ehange was implemented to further enhance
the transparency and independence of the
nominations process for senior management roles
The Nomination Committee 15 expected to meet
at least twice 1n 2014

The Nomination Committee comprises the six
Independant non-executive directors,

+ Mark Austen {chairman}

s Cath Keers

« David Neave

« Caroline Burton

« James Dean

« John Edwards

uodsy aigatens

and also includes Mike Rogers as a member

The committee

« Evaluates the balance of skills,
knowtedge and experience on, and required
by, the board for board appointments
and certain senior management roles, and

SIURLIPADD

« Prepares a description of the role
and capabihities required for any
particular appointment

Recruitment consultants will usually be instructed to
help compile a shortlist of candidates for interview
for board vacancies The committee will then
recommend appointments to the board for approval
During 2013 the Nomunatton Committee oversaw
the recruitment of Dawd Neave to the board

5luUNO22y anQ
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Diversity statement

The board strongly believes in the importance

of its diversity, and recognises the different views,
opimons and thinking brought into the boardroom
as articulated in the recommendations of the
Davies Report

The Society currentty has a female representation
of 20% on its board, who bning a broad perspective
of expertise to its deliberations The board proposes
to continue to ensure that It incorporates diversity
considerations into s thinking when making

new appointments and to ensure that the overall
balance of its capabilities to be effective 15 retained
Any executive search firm engaged will be required
to place appropriate emphasis on the requirement
for boardroom diversity of skills and backgrounds
and produce hstings that include female and

other diverse candidates of appropriate ment

The chairman 1s a member of the 30% Club which
1S committed to bringing more women onto boards

The board has a strong interest in the development
and progression of women at all levels in the
group and has encouraged a sigmficant initiative

In promoting the benefits of the diversity agenda
within V= during 2013

(@ investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises three
non-executive directors

« John Edwards {chairman}

» Caroline Burton

* Mark Austen

and two executive directors compnsing
« Mike Rogers, and
+» Philip Moore

The committee meets twice a year and the group's
chief investment officer, chief nsk officer and
representatives from the group’s asset manager,
Threadneedle Asset Management (TAM) usually
attend by invitation

It 1s responsible for

» Developing, recommending and overseeing the
investment strategy for the group, aligned to its
business and risk strategy,

¢ Monitoring and reviewing the operational
performance of TAM covering its relative
investment performance against mandates set,
service levels, contract terms and conditions
including 1ts charges compared to alternative
providers, and

¢ Investment activity undertaken by management
including the oversight of the group s Asset and
Liability Committee {(ALCO) delegated activities
and effectiveness of decisions and actions

(®) With-profits Committee
The With profits Committee meets at least five
times a year, and comprises
Graham Berwille (independent chairman)
e Cath Keers
+ John Edwards
John Perks, the managing director of our
retirement solutions business

Graham Berville has extensive and relevant industry
experience and was formerly CEQ of Police Mutual

The role of the committee 1s to

» Bnng independent jJudgement to the assessment
of comphliance with the statement of Principles
and Practices of Financial Management, and

= Monitor how any competing or conflicting
Interests between different groups
of policyholders are resolved

The committee can engage external professional
advisers to assist in delivering 1ts objectives
effectively and draws on the expertise of the
with-profits actuary Input s also prowvided by the
chief actuary and the actuanal function holder,
who attend by invitation

Executive Committee

The chief executive chairs this weekly committee
meeting to monitor our business performance

It also meets in order to help him meet the
responsibilities which the board has delegated

to him and as a pre-cursar 0 Its monthly reporting
to the board

Matters reserved for the board

There is a clear list of matters which only the board
can decide on, other matters are delegated to the
group chief executive Matters reserved to the
Society's board are cutlined in the table opposite

In 2013 the board met 7 times for formal board
meetings, 5 on an additional ad hoc basis to
discuss specific 1ssues and twice for strategy and
planning sessions In 2014 the board expects to
meet at least 8 times and to have two strategy
and planning sessions

There was one new appointment to the board
n 2013 David Neave joined the board as
a non-executive director in June 2013

Under the Soctety's rules all directors are

required to stand for re-election at least once
every three years, and therefore John Edwards,
Philip Moore, Cath Keers and Richard Rowney

will be offering themselves for re-election at the
2014 Annual General Meeting atong with our new
appointee David Neave Mark Austen, as chairman,
voluntarly, and in ine with the recommendations
of the Annotated Code, offers himseif for
re-election each year
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Matters reserved for the board

Strategy and planning

Appointment and removal
of officers

Financial matters

Mergers, acquisitions
and disposals

Governance and compliance

determining and overseeing delivery of the group’s strategy,

approval and monutonng of long-term strategic plans
and objectives,

approval and monitoring of the group annual business plan

appointment and removal of the Society’s chairman,

deputy charrman {If appointed), senior independent director,
company secretary, group chief executive, chief iInvestment
officer, chief nsk officer, with-profits actuary and actuanal
function holder and directors of the Society and its
subsidiaries

Approval of

capital or revenue expenditure exceeding £5 million
or greater than £2 5 milhon where this expenditure

1s over the agreed budget, or any expenditure deemed
to be outside the normal course of business,

the Annual Bonus Declaration,

the Individual Capital Assessment and its submission
to the PRA,

recommendations, If any, to the Financial Condition Report,

the Valuation Report and the Annual Report and Accounts

Mergers, acquisitions and disposals either by the Society
or any of its subsidianes with a value greater than £5 million,

approval of mergers, acguisitions and dispesals and
overseeing effective integration

Approval of

the Notice of AGM (including reappointment of auditors}),
any proposed amendments to the Memorandum & Rules
and related documentation in connection with the AGM,

approval and periodic review to discuss specific policy
statements as the board may determine from time to time
including principal risk policies (except those delegated
to the Risk Committee),

any political donations,

the membership of board commuttees,

the terms of reference of board committees, subsidiary
company boards and the Executive Asset and Liabibty

Matching Committee,

policy changes in pension entitlement and staff pension
scheme funding

SOUBLIRADD uoday agaeng
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Rachel Small
Company Secretary

Business activities and future prospects

LV=I1s an incorporated friendly society that, together with various subsidiaries, carnes out insurance and
financial services business in the United Kingdom, through LVFS and its subsidiaries These activities cover
with profits insurance, life protection (both term and whole of life), annurties, equity release, motor, home,
pet and travel insurance The directors consider that all the activities undertaken by the group dunng the
year were within the Society’s rules and relevant regulatory permissions

The board sets objectives and prionties supported by key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets,
which 1t monitors on a regular basis throughout the year

Dunng 2013, the key objectives and priorities were to
Achieve the profit and enterprise value target results for each business unit

Meet the benchmark target investment return achieved on our with-profits fund

Raise sufficient capital to grow our business and to ensure we have sufficient capital to
withstand economic and market shocks with sufficient surplus on our regulatory and economic
capital cover ratios

Share the financial returns from our trading businesses with eligible members vta a mutual
bonus scheme

Make further progress towards our goat to be Brnitain's best loved insurer

Continue to develop the effectiveness and matunty of our Enterprise Risk Management
Framework in iine with the growth of the business

Continue to improve our financial reporting systems and processes to enhance our profit,
cash and capital forecasting models and to report on a more timely basis

Continue to maintain staff engagement levels at or above those of high performing organisations
(as defined by Towers Watson}

Performance against these objectives 1s regularly reviewed at board meetings
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Business strategy

The board has chosen to set out the group's
strategic report information required under
applicable law and regulations in full which can
be found on pages 8 to 51 of this report headed
‘Our Strategy’

Board directors and interests

The current members of the board and detaills of its
various committees are shown on pages 56 to 67
together with thetr dates of appointment

John O'Roarke 1s a minonty shareholder in

LV General Insurance Group with a 22 22%
shareholding in the Ordinary B Class share-class
{egquivalent to approximately O 25% of the total
Crdinary share capital of LV General Insurance
Group) and i1s a party to a contract for LVFS

to purchase his shareholding on 31 December
2015 Further details are given in note 51

to the Financial Statements

At 1 January 2013 John O'Roarke was a minority
shareholder in LV Insurance Management Limited
equivalent to approximately 1 11% of the total
ordinary share capital and was a party to a contract
for LVFS to acquire that shareholding This hability
was settled in full in May 2013 Further details are
given in note 51 to the Financial Statements

We continued to maintan liability insurance cover
for our directors and officers during the year

With-profits bonus declaration

The board has declared an annual bonus for

the year ending 31 December 2013 at 1% of the
sum assured for industnal branch business and

at 2% of the sum assured for conventional crdinary
branch life business Intenm bonus rates will

also be at these levels Final bonus rates in

2013 maintain our competitive position

Basis of accounting

These accounts are presented using International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS), as adopted
by the Eurcpean Union, drawn up on a going
concern basis The directors are satisfied that

the group has adequate resources to continue

In business for the foreseeable future and that
accordingly the going concern basis 1S appropnate
Further details about the directors’ responsibilities
for the accounts are descrnbed below

Fixed assets
Changes in our fixed assets are shown in
note 31 of these accounts

Margin of solvency

Throughout the year and at 31 December 2013
we held the required capital resources for each
business class as prescribed by the PRA

Independent auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor will
be proposed at the 2014 AGM

Managing risk and return

We look to create value for members by maintaining
an appropriate balance between the returns that

we seek and the level and type of nsk we take on

in order to achieve these returns

To better manage risk levels on a day-to-day basis
a system of capital budgets 15 in place for each
business Each business 1s expected to manage
its position In line with its capital budget and risk
appetite position

A full overview of our nsk management can be
found on page 38 Note 4 of these accounts also
provides further detail about ocur nsk management
and control

Internal control

The board has averall responsibility for the group's
internal control systems and for monttonng
effectiveness Implementation and maintenance of
the internal control systems are the responsibility
of the executive directors and semor management
The performance of the internal control systems

1s reviewed by the relevant board committees,
principally the Audit Committee, which takes
reports from the internal audit, compliance and nsk
functicns See Audit Commitiee report on pages
61 to 65, which descnbes the main features of the
internal control and nsk management systems in
relation to the financial reporting process and the
process for preparing consohdated accounts

The group’s Iinternal control systems are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate, the rnisk of failure
to meet business cbjectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance agamst
material misstatement or loss In assessing what
constitutes reasonable assurance, the board

has regard to matenality and to the relationship
between the cost of, and benefit from,

internal control systems

Whenever any significant control weaknesses
are 1dentified actions are taken, or agreed
plans are put in place and tracked by the board
to implementation The system was in place
throughout the year

Our employees

Detail about our people, our people policies
inciuding the employment of disabled persons,
our diversity and inclusion programme and
engagement with our staff generally can

be found on pages 48 to 50 of this report,
headed 'Our Corporate Responsibilities’

Charitable donations

A full view of our charitable donations and
corporate social responsibility activities can
be found on page 46 to 51 No political
donations were made in 2013

uoday n3aeng
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Statement of disclosure of information
to the auditor

As at the date of this report each director
confirms that

1) so far as (s)he 15 aware, there i1s no information
refevant to the audit of the Society’s financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2013
of which the auditor 15 unaware,

2) (s)he has taken all steps that {s)he ought to
have taken in his/her duty as a director to make
him/ herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Soctety’s auditor 1s aware
of that infermation

Directors statement of responsibility

The Frniendly Societies Act 1992 (1992 Act)
requires a friendly socilety's Committee of
Management to prepare accounts for each
accounting period As we are incorporated under
the 1992 Act our board of directors has assumed
the responsibilities and duties of the Committee
of Management in relation to these accounts

These accounts must comply with the relevant
provisions of the 1992 Act, and present fairly the
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the society and the group at the end

of the accounting penod In carrying out this duty,
the directors have chosen to use IFRS as adopted
by the European Union

Legislation in the UK that governs the preparation

and publication of accounts may differ from

legislation in other junsdictions A fair presentation

of our accounts in accordance with IFRS requires

our directors to

+ Select sutable accounting policies and ensure
they are applied consistently,

+ Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis,
unless It 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Society and the group will continue 1n business,

« Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent,

» Present information, including accounting
peolictes, In a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

» Provide additicnal disclosures when comphance
with the specific requirements in IFRS 1s
insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Scciety and the group s
financial position and financial performance, and

« State that the Soctety and the group have
complied with applicable IFRSs, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained
In the accounts

The directors are also responsible for mamntaining

= Proper accounting records which are intended
to disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any
time, the financial position of the Society and
the group,

+ Appropriate internal control systems to
safeguard our assets and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregulanties, and

¢ The integnity of the corporate and financial
information included on our website LV com

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissermination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are shown on pages 58 and 59 confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief
+ The group financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair
view of the assets, Liabitihies, financial position
and profit of the group,

+ The Business Reviews on pages 22 to 37
of the Strategic Report include a fair review
of the development and performance of the
business during the financial year and the
financial position of the group at the end of
2013, and

« A descniphion of the group’s pnincipal nsks and
details of the group's risk governance structure
are provided on pages 40 to 41

Having taken all the matters considered

by the board and brought to the attention

of the board dunng the year into account, the
directors are satisfied that the Annual Report
and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and prowides
the Information necessary for our members and
nvestors to assess the Society's performance,
business model and strategy

By order of the Board of Directors

ﬂO\M AT

Rachel Small, Company Secretary
28 March 2014
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Annual

statement

* Thus part of the Cirectors
Remuneration Report sets out
the remuneration pohicy far
the group and seeks to follow
the provisions of The Large
and Medm sized Companes
and Groups {Accounts and
Reports) (Amendment)
Regulations 2013 ( the Act )
where we believe this assists
with disclosure The palicy has
been developed taking into
account the principles of the
UK Corporate Governance Code
2Q12 and the views of our
members and describes the
policy to be apphed from

2014 onwards

Dear Member,

As the chair of the Remuneration Committee | work
closely with the executive team at LV= 1o ensure
we offer a reward package that attracts and retains
the best people who can continue to deliver great
results on your behalf There i1s no doubt that 2013
has been & challenging year, yet we have continued

to develop LV= as an insurer that offers great service
to all our members and customers, this 1s something

we are all very proud of

There has been a great deal of press coverage
about the change to reguiations govermng
remuneration for executives, particularly in relation
to the financial services sector These changes

have been made to strengthen the hnk between

the rewards people receive for the performance
they dehver and the long-term financial health and
stabiiity of the businesses they work i As a fniendly
socrety in the msurance sector we are not governed
by the same regulations, yet we choose to use them
as a gurde for the best way to manage and govern
our reward practices

The Remuneration Committee regularly reviews

the Society’s executive remuneration policy to
ensure it achieves its objectives 1o recruit, motivate
and retain executives of the cahbre required to lead
the business In broad terms, our poiicy on the key
elements of the reward package 1s as follows

Salary

Basic salary 1s paid at a level which 1s around the
average of that which 1s paid by other orgamisations
of a similar size to our own, to peaple in similar roles
When deciding the appropriate level of pay for our
executives we take account of thewr performance,
experience and potential for the future From 1 April
2014, salanes for our directors will increase by a
maximum of 2% The 2014 average increase for our
broader employee group has also been agreed at 2%

Cath Keers

Chairman of the Remuneranon Committee

Annuai bonus

The bonus outturn for 2013 was an average of 74%
of the maximum opportunity which reflects a strong
performance in a challenging market place

As part of a re-balancing of our remuneration
package, following a reduction in the earnings
potential of the long-term schemes in 2013, we have
undertaken a review of our short-term annual bonus
scheme for 2014 by looking at the practices of other
organisations in the market The proposed Increases
to potential bonus awards ensure that we remain
competitive, these are shown on page 75 Payments
made under the annual bonus scheme will continue
to focus on both the financial performance of the
business as well as an array of strategic objectives
to ensure our executives remain focused on both
the short-term and long-term heaith of the Soctiety

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Qur LTIP 1s designed to reward executives for
delivering high performance in business resuits
which 1s sustainable over the Jong-term To ensure
executives are rewarded appropriately, in 2013

we introduced a number of additional hurdles to
the LTIP that must be met in order for LTIP
payments to be received it full, as well as reducing
the maximum pay-out from a muttiple of three to
two This provides an additional safeguard to our
members, that incentives are only paid for the
delivery of strong business results in addition,

we use the FCA gurdelines as a basis for our

policy on the deferral of varniable pay for executives
When the policy 1s applied, two-thirds of any pay-out
will be deferred for a further penod of two years after
it has been awarded These deferred payments are
linked to the value of the Society’s with-profits fund,
ensuring a further link between the remuneration
execulives receive and members’ interests

The performance targets for afi in-fight schemes
remain stretching and aligned with the group’s
strategic objectives
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2013 has been a challenging year, yet we have continued
to develop LV= as a leading insurer in the UK that offers
great service to all our members and policyholders.

Dwisional incentives

General insurance - a divisional incentive scheme
was put in place in 2013 for some key individuals
tn that business, incfuding John O'Roarke managing
director of the general insurance business, to ensure
they were incentivised to achieve a stretching
performance plan beyend 2013 and to deliver
continued exceptronal results for members

Full details of the scheme can be found on pages
76 and 77 Members of this scheme are not
permitted to join the group LTIP scheme

Life - from 2014, a divisional incentive

scheme has been introduced for Richard Rowney,
managing director of the life and pensions business,
and other vital members of the life team with skills
key to driving exceptional growth for the retirement
business, details can be found on pages 76 and
77 The scheme has been designed to reward
participants for considerable growth in the life
busmness, aver the long-term Due to the deferred
payment conditions built into this scheme,

Mr Rowney wiil not receive any payments

unti 2020 Members of this scheme are also
perrmitted to participate in the group LTIP scheme

Pension

With effect from 30 June 2013 we closed the
defined benefit (DB) section of our pension scheme
to future accrual Executives may participate in a
defined contnbution (DC) pension scheme or take
a cash alternative

Performance durnng the year has been strong

in a challenging market place and we have
managed nsks within our risk appetite As a

result the remuneratron commttee has refeased
all previously deferred payments without alteration
for the musstatement of results or performance
1ssues for individuals There have been no changes
to measurements or weighting of performance
measures durning the year

Consistent with our anm to comply with best
practice, we have sought to prepare the Directors’
Remuneration Report in ine with the new reporting
requirements contained in the BIS remuneration
report regulations which apply to histed companies
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the Annual
Report on Remuneration will each be subject

to an advisory vote at the forthcoming AGM

s0 that we can take on board your views in

setting our policy for the future

1 hope that as members you will be supportive

of both resolutions to approve the payments made
i the year under review and the remuneration
policy going forwards at this year's AGM

Yours sincerely

Cath Keers
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration

Policy Report

Remuneration policy

When developing our remuneration policy

we compare ourselves to other businesses,

in particular financial services organisations

of a similar size to our own, to ensure our policy
15 designed to support recruitment, motivation
and retention of talented people who are able

to achieve stretching targets and deliver greater
benefits for our members Our aim Is to provide
total remuneration packages at the relevant
mud-market level with a significant proportion
dependent upon the delivery of strong performance
with higher levels of remuneration avallable for
excepltional performance Our remuneration policy
15 strongly influenced by good nsk management
practice to ensure that management are
incentivised appropriately to support the short,
medum and long-term interests of our members
This policy for executive directors 1s described

In more detaill below

While we currently remain outside the scope of the
Financial Conduct Authonty's {(FCA) remuneration
code, we keep 1t under regular review and aspire
to follow 1its spirit

Seeking the views of members

The committee IS keen to hear members’ views

on the Society's remuneration policy and the
remuneration decisions which the committee takes
on our members’ behalf To this end, the chairman
of the committee has previously conducted

a presentation and feedback session to the
members' panel immediately before the Society’s
AGM, In order to provide a detailled explanation

of the remuneration policy and its implementation
and to give an opportunity for members to ask
questions We anticipate that simiar sessions

wtll feature in future AGMs

This year, we will be holding two separate votes
on the Directors' Remuneration Report one on
the Society’s remuneration policy for directors
and a second on the implementation of the policy
dunng the vear under review and the current
financial year This 1s tn line with changes n
legislation on executive pay governance that will
apply to histed compares, although both of these
votes will be on an advisory basis which will enable
the Society to take on board the views of our
members The Society will move to a binding vote
for the remuneration policy in 2017, 1in line with
the regulations

Consideration of employment
condrtions elsewhere in the group
When setung levels of remuneration for directors,
the committee takes into account the pay
arrangements across the Soclety as a whole to
ensure that consistent underlying principles are
applied for all employees, when making decisions
about rewards The remuneration arrangements far
the executive directors are similar to those for the
general employee population, aside from guantum
and participation rates in incentive schemes

The committee takes Into account employees’
views with regard to remuneration generally
when determining the design of the Society’s
remuneration policy It does not however
consult employees generally regarding the
pay arrangements for senior executives,
although this position 1s kept under review

Summary table of the remuneration
policy for executive directors

This policy 1s intended to apply for three years
beginning on 1 January 2014

The committee keeps under review all elements

of remuneration and retains the discretion to make
changes n response to market conditions and

In exceptional circumstances, where it 1s in the
interest of members to do so

Notes to the policy table

The committee selected the performance conditions
because these are central to the Society's overall
strategy and are the key metrics used by the
executive directors to oversee the operation

of the business The performance targets are
determined annually by the committee following
consultation with the audit and rnisk committees

and are typically set at a leve! that 1s above the
level of the Society's forecasts

The commuittee 1s of the opinion that the
performance targets for the annual bonus are
commercially sensitive in respect of the Society
and that it would be detrimental to the interests
of the Society to disciose them before the start
of the financial year The targets will be disclosed
after the end of the relevant financial year in that
year s remuneration report
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Element

of pay

Base
salary

Benefits

Pension

Annual
bonus

Purpose and link to

strategy

To attract and
retain high
performing
individuals to lead
the Society

To operate a
competitive
benefits structure
that provides
adequate
protection to our
employees and
aids recruitment
and retention

To provide the
facthty for a
competitive

and viable
retirement income

To drive and

reward delivery of
near-term business
objectives

QOperation

Salaries are reviewed annually
{but not necessarly increased)
taking account of several factors
inciuding individual experience,
responsibilities, function and
sector, atong with individual and
group performance

The committee also reviews
a range of benchmarking
information on pay levels in
organisations of comparable
size and complexity to LV=

If salanes are increased they are
effective from 1 April each year

Our policy 1s to pay salaries at

the mid-market level for good
indwidual performance, in line with
the relevant market for the job

The Society provides

« car altowance

« medical insurance

* Income protection cover

« group product chscounts, which
are available to all staff and
directors on equal terms

Directors can elect to join a
defined contnbution pension
scheme or receive a cash sum in
lieu of pension contributians

A performance plan 1s agreed
with each executive for the
performance year using a
balanced scorecard approach

The annual bonus 1S
not pensionable

Part of the annual bonus may be
deferred Any amount deferred
will be paid after a period of
three years Dunng the deferral
period, the value of deferred
amounts will be tied to the value
of investments 1n the with-profits
fund, thereby creating a link

to on going business performance
and members’ best interests

Maximum

opportunity

There 18 no
prescribed
maximum
annual increase
The committee
ts guided by
the general
increase for the
V= employee
population and
wage Increases
generally, but on
occasions may
need to take
into account
factors such as
retention risk,
development in
the role and/
or changes In
responsibility

Car altowance of
up to £10,200

The value of
other benefits

1S based on the
cost to the
group and 1s not
pre-determined

Up to 22% of
salary may be
pald as a cash
sum and/or
contribution

to a defined
contribution
pension scheme

Chief executive
maximum 150%
of salary

Other directors
maximum 120%
of salary

Half of the
maximum
opportunity 1s
paid for on-target
performance

Performance measures

Indnidual performance 1s taken
into account when satary levels
are reviewed

N/A

The pension scheme 1s
benchmarked against general
market practice

The annual bonus pot (s
measured against annual
group and divisional financial
objectives, accounting for
60% of the assessment

and a balanced scorecard

of objectives covering nsk,
people, strategy and
customer, accounting for

the remaining 40%

Risk 1s taken into account
when assessing performance
aganst all the measures n
the balanced scorecard and
the committee may reduce
or cancel any bonus payment
If It considers that nisk
exceeded acceptable levels

In additton, no bonus payments

will be made unless the Society

achieves a pre-determined level
of profits

today oigaensg
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Group
long-term
incentive
plan (LTIP)

Divisional
long-term
mcentives
{apphes only
to divisional
managing
directors)

Deferred
variable
pay and
claw-back

To drve and reward the achievement of
longerterm business objectives, including the
value of the Society to its members

The scheme prowides further ahgnment
between the interests of executive directors
and members

To drive and reward exceptional performance
against longer term business objectives of the
business units

The FCA provides organisations with guidance
on the appropnate deferral of vanable pay
Whilst the Society does not fall within the
scope of these reguiations, it seeks to adopt
these principles as a matter of best practice

We operate a policy of deferral that covers our
annual bonus scheme, the group LTIP and any
divistonal LTIP in operation, this includes the
option for the Remuneration Committee to claw
back any deferred payments

LTiP pay-outs will be made in cash One-third of any
payment will be made after 3 years when the scheme
vasts, one-third will be deferred for a further year and
one-third will be deferred for 2 years after vesting

Life

The managing director, ife and pensions participates in an
incentive ptan implemented n 2014 1o reward exceptional
performance relating to value growth n the retirement
business The scheme operates over a single 3 year period
to the end of 2016 and awards will only be made where
levels of performance are achieved that would release

a maximum group LFIP award, in the year of vesting

LTIP pay-outs will be made in cash, payable after a deferral
penod of 3 years

General insurance

The managing director, general insurance, was part of the
management team which previously owned LV Insurance
Management Limited, 95% of which was acquired by LV=

In 2006 and the residual 5% m 2013 The members of the
team were given the opportunity to reinvest part of the 2013
sale proceeds in a new divisional share scheme (as descnbed
on page 87) under which the consideration which the team
will receive for their shares in 2016 1s linked to the future
growth in the value of the general insurance business unit
Any payments will be made in cash, without deferral

At least 40% of the vanable remuneration paid to executive
directors 15 delivered n long-term pay, this 1s paid in full
after a period of deferral of three years, beginning at the
date the variable pay was awarded If this ratio 1s not met,
then a portion of the annual bonus payment for that year
will be deferred For employees whose variable remuneration
1s £500,000 or more, the requirement will be that 60%

be in fong-term pay

Deferred payments are subject to claw-back, at the
discretion of the committee, where 1t has come to light
that awards were made in error or where new information
Is made available that would have changed the value

of the original award
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l MaXimum opportunity

Chief executive award value 100% of salary

Other board executive directors 75% of
salary, with the exception of John O'Roarke
who 1s not a member of the group

LTIP scheme

Maximum pay-out 1s capped at 2x the value
of the onginal award

Maximum pay-out for the managing director,
life and pensions I1s capped at £1 25 million

For the managing director of general
insurance the value of the award

15 determined as a percentage of the
value created within the business unit,
but subject to a cap

Further details are given in the Annual Report
on Remuneration on page 87

The LTIP pay-out for all executive directors 1s subject to growth in group

Enterprise Value (the benchmark by which we measure our long-term performance)
and, for the chief executive and group finance director, an additional measure

of Relative Investment Performance of the Society Both are measured over

a three year performance period, commencing en 1 January each year

The Enterprise Values of the group and divisions are assessed with reference
to clearly defined valuation bases These valuation bases are reviewed every
three years by independent advisers

The LTIP scheme will only pay out if the growth in group Enterprise Value over the
scheme penod exceeds a target growth rate which 1s more than an appropriate
return on the group’s capital, taking account of prevailing interest and inflation
rates and the nature of the nsks which the group undertakes

In determining whether Enterpnse Value targets have been achieved,

the committee may, where appropnate, make positive or negative adjustments
for the financial impacts of any management actions which affect the calculation
of the Enterprise Value, to ensure that the calculation 1s fully aligned to the
interests of members

No payment will be made unless a mutual bonus 15 also paid in that year and
the Society 1s operating at least at a mimimum agreed level of capital adequacy
In that year Any amounts earned in a year i which no mutual bonus 15 pawd
would be deferred until such time as a bonus 1s paid

The ife divisional long-term incentive plan 1s linked to the growth in Enterprise
Value for the retirement business, using the same calculation method as s
used in the group LTIP

The genera! Insurance divisional scheme 1s lnked to the total shareholder return
generated by the division based on the increase in the open market value from
31 Dec 2012 to 31 Dec 2015 plus the cumulative ordinary dividends paid
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Provisions of previcus pohcy that will
continue to apply - LTIP awards 2012
and 2013

The outstanding awards under the LTIP will
continue to form part of the remuneration pelicy
until vesting Payments are based on growth

in Enterprise Value and Relative Investment
Performance of the business Maximum
opportunities under these awards are three times
the original award for the 2012 scheme and two
times the original award for the 2013 scheme

Change to remuneration policy from
that operating in 2013

Penslon — With effect from 30 June 2013 we
closed the defined benefit {DB) section of our
pension scheme to future accruat All active
mernbers of this scheme were given the option
to move into the defined contribution (DC) section

of our scheme from that date As before, a payment
in tieu of pension contrnibutions 1s made if a director

chooses to cease active membership because they
are approaching the hfetime allowance

Annual bonus - To rebalance the reduction in the

LTIP multiplier from three to two, which was made

last year, maximum awards have increased to bring

the annual bonus scheme in line with the median

position for the market

¢ Chief executive maximum 150% of salary
(2013 110%), and

+ Other directors maximum 120% of salary
(2013 80%)

In addition, we have Introduced a format balanced
scorecard approach that reflects financial metrics
(60% of award) and a balanced scorecard of
objectives covering risk, people, strategy and
customer (40% of award)

Divislonal LTIP - A scheme has been introduced
for the Iife managing director to support the
accelerated growth of the retirement business
Any award made under this scheme will be based
on a percentage of the growth in Enterpnise Value
of the retirement business, over and above

18% compound growth
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llustrations of application of remuneration policy

The group's policy results i a significant portion of remuneration received by executive directors being
dependent on group performance The chart below illustrates how the total pay opportunities for the
executive directors vary under three different performance scenarios minimum, on-target and maximum
All assumptions made are noted below

LTIP award (2012 - 2014 scheme @@

indicatlve of remuneration packages for 2014 Bonus ¢ of 2014 Salary) @@
at different levels of performance Bas ¢ Salary benefts and pension @
Mike Rogers

Chief Executive Total remuneration £ Q00

c
s 663
o
24 1,776
=
ol
4 L’
g 9% 2,889

Philip Moore
Finance Director

c
: D
-
g.)ﬂ o,
i % 1040
=
b3
g 28% % 1623
Richard Rowney
Managing Director — Life and Pensions
100 4086

4 21% 35% 217
28% 27% 45% 1428

John Q’'Roarke
Managing bBirector - General Insurance

Max Target Min

2 s
@
B0 8% 552
=
3
2 730

Notas

Bas«c salary s based on salary coming into effect on 1 April 2014 Benefits and pension levels are based on 2013 amounts on the basis
that these witt not be significantly different from amounts expected to be pard «in 2014

The on target level of bonus 15 50% of the maximum bonus oppartunity

[

[N

The ontarget level of the group LTI# 15 50% of the maximum pay-out The 2012 2014 LTIP scheme was set up prior to the 2014 pohey being
put in place

'S

Tha dwisional LTIP far the managing director hfe and pensions wil not Start to vest until 2016 and therefore does net impact the graph atove
Any vesting amounts »: 1 be shown in the charls relating to remuneration recerved n the year 2016

The dwisional LTIP for the managing director general insurance will nat start to vest untd 2015 and therefore does not wmpact the graph above
Any vesting amounts wal be shown (n the charts refating to remuneration receved in the year 2015

[+
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Approach to recruitment and promotions
The remuneration package for a8 new executive
director would nermally be set in ine with the
remuneration policy in force at the time of
appointment, for example, maximum bonus
between 120% and 150% of salary, group LTIP
maximum pay-out between 150% and 200% and a
paossible invitation to join a divisional LTIP scheme
However, in order to ensure we are able to recruit
the right people o our business it may be necessary
at times to make an offer to a new director on
terms outside the current policy, this may be to
reflect a range of 1ssues such as, but not imited
to the remuneration arrangements of the industry
sector the new recruit 1s leaving, the calibre of the
individual being recruited and the appointment of
new skills and expertise to the Society which may
be outside our normal market practices

When 1t considers i to be in the best interests

of the Society and 1ts members the committee
may offer additional cash payments to new
appointees as compensation for the loss of bonus,
LTIP or other such arrangements from their former
employer Any cash payments would reflect the
time horizons and performance requirements
attached to the jost remuneration Members will
be informed of any such payments in the next
directors’ remuneration report to be published

In the case of an internal appointment, any varable
pay element awarded n respect of the prior role
would be allowed to pay-out according to s terms,
adjusted as appropnate to take into account

the time in that position In addition, any other
on-going remuneration obligations existing pnor to
appointment would continue, provided that they are
put to members as an advisory vote at the earbest
opportunity For external and internal appeintments,
the committee may agree that the group will meet
certain relocation expenses as approprate

Service contracts and payments

for loss of office

Qur executive directors are subject to a notice
perod of 12 months Service contracts normally
continue until the director’s agreed retirement date
or such other date as the parties agree The service
contracts contain a provision for early termination
and notice penods given by the group are hmited to
12 months or less 1n certain circumstances, such
as gross misconduct, a director's service contract
may be terminated without notice and without any
further payment or compensation, except for sums
accrued up to the date of termination If the Society
terminates the employment of a director in other
cirrcumstances, compensation 1s generally lmited to
salary due for any unexpired notice period and any
amount assessed by the Remuneration Committee
as representing the value of other contractual
benefits (Including pension) which would have

been received during the unexpired notice penod,
however, the committee may determine that a

level of compensation above this 1s appropriate

in indwidual cases Payments in lieu of notice

are not pensionable

Copes of the Directors’ service contracts and
letters of appointment are available for inspection
at the company's registered office

+« Termination payment - base salary plus
benefits (including pension}, may be subject
to phasing and mttigation where this I1s
In the interests of the Society In addition,
any statutory entitlements would be paid
as necessary In certain circumstances,
a pro rata bonus may be payable, along
with the entitiement to partial LTIP awards,
the treatment of which I1s set out below

s LTIP - the default treatment under the LTIP
1s that any outstanding awards lapse when
employment ends However, the Remuneration
Committee has the discretion to consider an
individual a 'good leavet’ (e g death, disability,
retirement etc } and in these circumstances
awards may not lapse immediately and the
individual may retain thetr entitlement to a pro
rata payment under the scheme, to reflect therr
reduced penod of employment during the term
of the LTIP, payments received under these
circumstances will be subject to the same
performance conditions and timescales as for
other participants If it considers it appropriate
to do so the committee may choose to remove
the normal performance conditions and time
pro rating, instead making payments under
the scheme at the point employment ends,
although 1t 15 envtsaged that this would
only be apphed in exceptional circumstances
In determming whether an executive should be
treated as a good leaver or not, the committee
will take ito account the performance of the
indwidual and the reasons for therr departure

Summary of the policy for
non-executive directors

The policy 1s intended to apply for three years
beginning on 1 January 2014

The committee keeps under review all elements
of the policy and retains the discretion to make
changes 1n response to market conditions and
in exceptional circumstances, where 1t is in the
interest of members to do so

Fees - In order to attract and retain high calibre
non-executive directors to the Society we pay
indwiduals fees for the positions they undertake
for the organisation Fees are generally reviewed
on an annual basis and whilst there I1s no
prescribed maximum increase that 1s applied,
consideration 1s taken of the fees paid for simlar
roles in other organisations, the responsibility
and necessary time commitment to the group's
affairs, the general increase for the broader UK
employee popuiation and on occasion the need
for specific skifls, changes in responsibility,

or other relevant factors No other remuneration
18 paid apart from these non-pensionable fees
and non-executive directors are not eligible

to participate in any performance-related
arrangements Fees for the non-executive directors
are determined by the executive members of the
board For the chatrman fees are determined by
the whole board (excluding the charrman himself)

Notlce - either party may give three months’ notice
of termination
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Annual report

on remuneration

Votes cast at
AGM 2013

Directors

Remuneration Report

@ Vvotes cast in favour
@ vates cast agamst

94 1%
59%

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines the broad policy for remunerating the executive directors and
agrees the remuneration of each executive director and other senior managers The committee reviews
remuneration policy and strategy at least once a year and all incentive and bonus schemes are established
and monitored by the committee

Members of the committee are provided with regular training and topical briefing sessions on
developments and trends in executive remuneration, particularly as this relates to the financial sector

Committee membership, attendance and advisors to the committee

Dunng 2013 the committee members were Cath Keers, who chaired the committee, Mark Austen,
Caroline Burton Joined the committee on 1 June 2013) and Dennis Holt (stepped down from the
committee on 23 May)

The chief executive 1s invited to meetings except when his own remuneration IS being discussed
Other senior employees, such as the chtef risk officer, the human resources director and the head
of reward, regularly provide advice to the committee and normally attend meetings by invitation

New Bridge Street {(which 1s a part of Aon pic) was appointed by the committee and 1s the committee’s
independent external adviser Dunng the course of the year, New Bndge Street (NBS) provided advice

to the committee on remuneration levels and structures, and attended committee meetings at the inwitation
of the committee The committee has reviewed and discussed the objectivity and independence of the
advice 1t receives from NBS and 1s satisfied that NBS continues to provide robust and professional advice
In additvon, the firm 1s a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct During the course

of the year, Aon pic provided other services to the Society, however, the committee considers that adequate
structures are in place to ensure the independence of the advice received from NBS The total fees paid

to NBS n respect of its services to the committee duning the year were £98,474

Committee activities in 2013
In 2013 the committee met four times The matters which were addressed included
« Review of the overall policy relating to directors’ remuneration,
+ Revisions to the structure and reduction in maximum level of the group LTIP,
+ Consideration of a special LTIP within the life business,
* Reviewing salary levels and annual incentive opportumnity,
Preparation of the report on directors’ remuneration, and
Other routine matters throughout the year

Results of members’ vote on remuneration resolutions at 2013 AGM
At the Society's AGM in May 2013, the Directors Remuneration Report was approved with the foliowing
votes cast by members

Votes cast in favour 49,096
Votes cast against 3,102
Abstentions 1,907
Spollt papers 7
Total votes cast 54,112

I
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Remuneration decisions taken in respect of the coming year
(yvear ending 31 December 2014)

Base salary

The Remuneration Committee agreed to increase executive director base salary ievels by a maximum of
2% with effect from 1 Apnl 2014 Current base salary levels and those which will apply from 1 April 2014
are as follows

wef 1Apnl 2013 wef 1 Apnl 2014 Percentage increase
M Rogers £521,000 £530,000 179%
P Moore £355,000 £362,000 2%
R Rowney £315,000 £321,000 2%
J O Roarke £290,000 £296,000 2%

Performance targets to be applied for the annual bonus and group LTIP (2014-201.6 Scheme) In 2014
For 2014, the annual bonus will continue to be based on group and divisignal financial objectives
accounting for 60% of the assessment and a balanced scorecard of objectives covening nisk, people,
strategy and customer accounting for the remaining 40% Performance targets are based on the group's
business targets

The LTIP awards to be granted in 2014 will be subject to an Enterprise Value performance condition and,
for the chief executive and group finance director only, a proportion of the awards will be inked to the
group's investment performance

Performance condition Weighting

Growth in group Enterprise Value 75% for chief executive and group finance director and
100% for managing director, life and pensions

Group Relative Investment Performance 25% for chief executive and group finance director only

The group LTIP scheme will only pay out If the growth In group Enterpnse Value over the scheme pericd
exceeds a target growth rate which exceeds an appropriate return on the group's capital, taking account
of prevailing interest and inflation rates and the nature of the nsks which the group undertakes

In addttion, the life and pensions division must gperate within a pre-determined level of capital and

the general insurance division must return a dividend of £90 million to the group over the threeyear
performance penod for the LTIP to pay out The actual targets applying to the 2014 LTIP award will be
disclosed in next year’'s annual report on remuneration

Group Relative Investment Performance relates to the annualised performance return of the with-profits
fund The scheme will only pay out for this element f the performance return i1s greater than benchmark

Non-executive directors’ fees

As detailed in the Dtrectors’ Remuneration Policy Report, fees for the nonexecutive directors are
determined by the board, based on the responsibility and time committed 1o the group's affairs and
appropriate market comparisons individual non-executive directors do not take part in discussions
regarding their own fees A summary of current fees 1s as follows

we f 1 April 2013 wef 1 April 2014 Percentage change
Chairman £155,000 £175,000 12 9%
Base fee £46,500 £50,000 7 5%
Additional fees
Senigr independent director £5,000 £5,125 2 5%
Investment Committee chair £12,000 £8,200 31 7%
Committee chair fees £12,000 £12,300 2 5%

* fees for the Investment Commitiee were reduced in 2014 after a review conciuded that the workload of this committee has recuced
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Remuneration for the past year (year ended 31 December 2013)
Summary table of directors’ remuneration - Audited
The remuneration of indmdual directors, Including that of the chairman and highest paid director, was as follows

Salary Other Annual Long-term
£'000 and fees benefits? Pension? bonus? incentives® Total

M Rogers 2013 1,291 2,364
2012 505 16 111 559 1,431 2,622
P Moore 2013 353 14 49 240 661 1,317
2012 346 14 41 260 732 1,393
R Rowney 2013 313 15 87 190 574 1,179
2012 306 14 82 240 585 1,227
J O'Roarke 2013 288 14 80 150 - 532
2012 281 14 78 220 - 593
M Austen’ 2013 135 - - - - 135
2012 72 - - - - 72
D Holt® 2013 85 - - - - 65
2012 153 - - - - 153
J Edwards 2013 69 - - - - 69
2012 62 - - - - 62
C Keers 2013 65 - - - - 85
2012 61 - - - - 61
C Burton 2013 61 - - - ~ 81
2012 56 - - - - 56
J Dean’ 2013 61 - - - - 61
2012 22 - - - - 22
D Neave® 2013 39 - - - - 39
2012 - - - - - -
| Reynoids? 2013 - - - - - -
2012 60 - - - - 60
Total 2013 1,967 60 330 1,004 2,526 5,887
2012 1,924 58 312 1.279 2,748 6,321

Notes
1 Benefits include car allowance medical insurance and income protection cover

2 This compnses the value of any defined benefii pension accrued any payments by LV= into the defined coentnbution section of our pension scheme and any cash aliowance pasd
n lieu of foregone contributions as appropnate A breakdown can be found in the Pensions section on page 88

3 This relates 1o the payment of the annual bonus for the year ended 31 December 2013 Further details of this payment are set out below For Mr Rogers and Mr Moore an etement
of these full year amounts will be subject to deferral

Trs refates to the vesting of the 2011 LTIP award The performance penod for this award ended on 31 December 2013
Appainted to rale of chairman on 23 May 2013

Resigned on 23 May 2013

Appointed 28 July 2012

Appaointed 1 June 2013

Resigned 3% October 2012

0w N0 b




Report on Directors’ Remuneracion 85

Annual bonus for the year ended 31 December 2013 - Audited
The annual bonus for the year under review was based on perfermance against annual group and divisional financtal objectives,
risk metrics and a balanced scorecard of personal objectives Details of actual performance against targets 1s as follows

Specific individual

and strategic Payabie in 2014
Group / divisional profit {note 1) objectives /deferred
Profit Profit
required for required for
threshold maximum Actual Payable n
Maximum bonus bonus  Actual profit bonus Maximum Actual Maximum Actual 2014 Deferred
(% of salary) (£m) {£m) (£r) (% of satary) (% of salary) (% of salary) (% of salary) (% of satary) (% of salary) (% of salary)
M Rogers 90 89 115 105 66 20 15 110 81 72 9
P Moore 60 89 115 105 51 20 17 80 68 57 11
R Rowney 60 27 35 29 45 20 15 80 60 60 0
J O Roarke 60 88 113 81 39 20 13 80 52 52 0

Note 1 Profit related bonus 1s linked to group operating profit for Mike Rogers and Philip Moore underlying operating profit for the life business for Richard Rowney and operating profit for the
general insurance business for john O Roarke

The Society operates a perfermance range for profit targets {see note 1 above) which 1S considered to be stretching at ali levels

The threshold target I1s the level of performance that must be achieved to release 100% of the bonus pot for the business

If the threshold tevel of performance 1s not achieved the Remuneration Committee looks at the performance of the business/division
in the round o understand such issues as the internal and external factors that have impacted performance and the broad trajectory
of the business and market cenditions, for example, before determining the appropniate level of bonus to be released

The specific iIndividual and strategic objectives for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows

- Description of individual and strategic objectives

M Rogers » Ensure the capital sustainability of the group and the strategic evolution of the business
» Ensure operations are within risk appetite and enhance the nsk management framework to adapt
to the new regulatory regime
« Deliver best loved proposition
« Delver an employee proposition that engages the widest talent pool
» Deliver the financial plans and targets

P Moore » Successfully manage the debt raise for LV= and creation of an economic capital framework
« Ensure finance reporting and forecasting processes are fit for future and delivered in a tmely and accurate
manner to support a cost efficient culture at V=
+ Maintain strong employee engagement and support development of our people through the delvery of strong
talent and succession frameworks
« Delwer the financial plans and targets

R Rowney + Lead the strategic growth of the iife, retirement and protection business through the optimal use of capital,
liqutdity and improved marging
s« Deliver mprovements in internat and external service measures
* Support the long-term delivery of business success through the implementation of strong talent and succession
frameworks
+ Ensure products delivered to market are within nsk appetite, have appropnate governance frameworks
and support our Treating Customers Farrly (TCF} commitments

J O’Roarke + Promote strategic diversification of the general insurance product offering to support growth of the business
* Maintain strong customer satisfaction through the delivery of fair outcomes for customers (TCF)
+ Maintain strong employee engagement and support development of our people through the delivery of strong
talent and succession frameworks
+ Ensure that general insurance operates within LV= rnsk appetite and complies with all regulatory standards,
through the delivery of appropriate governance in the design and implementation of general insurance products
ensunng customer interests are protected

Risk is taken into account when appraising all performance measures and the committee may reduce or cancel any bonus payment
if it considers that nsk exceeded acceptable levels In addition, no bonus payments wilf be made unless the Society achieves
a pre-determined ievel of profits

Any amount deferred wili be paid in equal parts over the following three years During the deferral period, the value of deferred amounts
will be tied to the value of members’ invested funds, thereby creating a link to ongoing performance
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Group LTIP payments made in the year (2011-2013 scheme) — Audited

The group LTIP scheme which started on 1 January 2011 1s based on performance to 31 December 2013 For the 2011-2013
scheme, the pay-out for M Rogers, P Moore and R Rowney is based on both the growth in Enterprise Value (75% of award)

and the Relative Investment Performance {25% of award) The performance condition and actual performance for the award
granted s as follows

Performance
Metric condition Threshold target Stretch target Actua! % Vesting

Enterprise Value Annualised 18 1% 261%
growth growth In group
Enterprise Value

Relative Annualised 0 basis points Equal to or 113 bhasis points 300%
Investment performance greater than 60
Performance return relative to basis points

benchmark from
start of scheme
to 31 December
2013

Total vesting percentage 271%

The vested awards are subject to a claw-back provision

Group LTIP awards made in the year (2013-2015 scheme) - Audited

% of face value % of face value
of award that of award that Vesting
Face value of would vest would vest determined by
base award at threshold at maximum performance
Type of award Basis of award (£000) performance perfermance over

M Rogers Cash 100% of salary 508 50% 200% 3years to
31 December

P Moore Cash 75% of salary 260 50% 200% 2015

R Rowney Cash 75% of salary 230 50% 200%

Group LTIP - Performance of current schemes

- Enterprise Value growth {1) Relative Investment Performance (2)

Cumulative Cumulative

Threshald Base Base performance Threshold Base Base performance

LTIP Scheme target award % Maximum award % (3 target award % Maaraurn award % {4)

2011-2013 % 75% 20%  300% 18 1% 0 bp 75%  260bp  300%  1130p
scheme

2012-2014 9% 75% 20%  300% 16 6% 0 bp 75%  »60bp  300%  190bp
scheme

ighljn 23015 7% 50% 18%  200% 16 3% 0 bp 75%  260bp  200%  244bp

For scheme participants measured on investment performance 75% of their award 1s based on Enterprise Value performance and 25%
on Relative Investment Performance for all scheme years

(1} Annuahsed growth in SBU Enterpnse value

{2) Annualised investment performance retum relatve (o tenchmark retum

{3) Annualised growth in Enterprise Valye from start of scheme to 31 December 2013

(4) Annuahised perfermance return relative te benchmark from start of scheme 1o 31 December 2013
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Group LTIP summary of awards and amounts vested during 2013 - Audited

Unvested Additional value Unvested

awards at on vesting of To be paid in awards at

1 January Awards made 2011-2013 respect of 2011- 31 December

£.,000 Award 2013 in the year scheme 2 2013 scheme 2013 @
M Rogers 223112 477 - 814 1,291 -
22%1124- 495 - - - 495

22(()):;.?.:') - 508 - - 508

P Moore igﬁ 244 - 417 661 -
So14 255 - - - 255

22%:;:; - 260 - - 260

R Rowney %%11%:, 212 - 362 574 -
2014 225 . - - 225

2%1357 - 230 - - 230

(1) Urvested awards are shown at the base award favel Unvested awards et 1 January 2013 are in respect of awards granted n 2011 and 2012

(2) For the 2011 2013 LTIP scheme growth in Enterprise Vaiue was above the target level but did not achieve the maximum teve! of performance investment performance exceeded the
above benchmark targets

{3) Urvested awards at 31 December 2013 are in respect of awards granted in 2012 and 2013

General insurance divisional LTIP awards made duning 2013 - Audited

Dunng the year, certain key management personnel within the generat insurance business subscribed for 4 S miltion £1 B ordinary
shares in Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited (LVGIG) Pursuant to the Articles of Association of LVGIG the Society
Is reguired to purchase these shares in 20186 for a price equal to par plus rolled-up interest plus a percentage of the increase

in the market value (plus ordinary dividends paid) of the general insurance business from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015,
as set out below

a) 0% if the growth rate 1s less than 9%,

b) 5% if the growth rate 1s 9%,

¢) Between 5% and 15% on a straight line basis to the extent the growth rate 1s between 9% and 19%, or

d) 15% if the growth rate i1s greater than 19%

The purchase in 2016 1s contingent on the key management personnel remaming in the employment of the Group until
31 December 2015 Any leavers prior to this date will have their shares purchased for a lesser amount based on the proportion
of the three year penod from 1 January 2013 to their date of leaving

The estimated total charge for the year cafculated under IFRS 2 was £10 million John O'Roarke owns 22 2% of these shares,
resulting in an effective unvested increase In the estimated value of the award of £2 2 million for 2013
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Pensions - Audited

Accrued Transfer
D8 pension Accrued DB Increase value of net Pension Pension

as at 31 pension at in accrued increase value Pension vatue Jotal
December 30 June pension net in accrued Norma! from DB value from from cash pension
£.000 2012 2013 of inflation pension retirament date scheme* | DC scheme allowance value

M Rogers n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 114 114
P Moore n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 49 49
R Rowney 27 30 2 24 10/11/2035 43 16 28 87
J O'Roarke 30 33 2 30 28/03/2023 40 12 28 80

* The vatue of the pension under the 0B scheme 15 calcuated using the HMRC Mathod  Transier values are included to satisfy the Listing Rules requirerents.

Percentage change in remuneration levels

2012 2013 % 2012 2013 % 2012 2013 %
(£000) (£000} change (£000) (£000) c¢hange (£000) (£000) change

Chief executive 508 521 3% 16 17 6% 559 424 -24%

% change based on a static

population excluding the CEQ 3% 5% -22%

Relative importance of the spend on pay

2012 2013 %

£m £m change

Staff costs 216 247 14%
Mutual bonus 21 22 5%

Group chief executive's remuneration over flve financial years

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Total remuneration (£'000) Qo7 1,247 2,177 2,622 2,364

Bonus % of maximum awarded % T77% 86% 95% 100% 74%

LTIP % of maximum vesting % 0% 0% 100% 100% 90%
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Pensions

With effect from 30 June 2013 we closed the defined benefit (DB) section of our pension scheme to
future accrual All active DB section members were given the option to move into the defined contributton
{DC) section of our scheme from that date

Up to 30 June 2013, Richard Rowney and John O'Roarke received contributions into the DB section of our
scheme They subsequently moved into the DC section John O'Roarke chose to cease active membership
of the scheme on 1 November 2013

Where a director asks for their pension to be imited to the Annual Allowance (AA) the difference between
the AA and the total employer pension contnbutions due 1s paid as a salary supplement Where a director
ceases to be an active pension scheme member because they are approaching the Lifetime Allowance
(LTA) @ payment in lieu of pension contributions 1s received, up to 22% of salary

Richard Rowney and John O'Roarke have recewved salary supplements Mike Rogers, Philip Moore and
John O'Roarke (following his decision to cease active membership on 1 November 2013) have all receved
a payment in heu of pension

Detalls of accrued pension for these indrviduals at 31 December 2013 are shown in the table opposite

Payments to past directors
No payments were made to past executive directors during the year ended 31 December 2013

Directors’ loans
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 there were no foans outstanding to directors

Additional information on directors’ remuneration

Percentage change In remuneration levels

The table opposite shows the movement in the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the group chief
executive between the current and previous financial year compared to that of the total bill for the same
elements for all employees

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table opposite shows the group's actual spend on pay (for all employees) relatwve to the mutual bonus,
which represents a significant, discretienary disbursement of profit to members

Chlef executive's remuneration over flve financial years

The total remuneration figures for the group chief executive during each of the last five financial years are
shown in the table opposite The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year's
performance and LTIP awards based on three year performance periods ending in the relevant year

The annual bonus pay-out and LTIP vesting level as a percentage of the maximum opportunity are aiso
shown for each of these years

The directors approved the Directors’ Report on Remuneration on 28 March 2014

/

Cath Keers
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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| Glossary

LV= Use of non-GAAP" measures

Non-GAAP Why we use a non-GAAP measure
measure

Profit
before tax

Operating
profit

Underlying
operating
profit

Centrally
managed
costs

Annual
Premium
Equivalent
(APE})

Enterprise
Value

Because LV= 15 a mutual, any ‘left-over profit it has is
transferred to the Unallocated divisible surplus, feaving a final
balance for profit each year of £nmil This would mean that i

we applied the strict GAAP definion our profit before tax would
simply be equal and opposite to our tax charge We believe that
this would be a confusing and meaningiess figure for users of
our Annual Report and we therefore try to provide an alternative
measure for profit before tax which people would recognise and
which would allow meaningful comparisons with the profit before
tax disclosed by other companies

Our operating profit measure 1s the key performance measure
for profitability for the LV= group and general insurance business
and executive remuneration in these areas 1s linked to this
metric For the group this measure represents the longer-term
return from all its businesses and the cost of ongoing central
overheads such as support functions For the general insurance
business this measure represents the return from insurance
actiwties, 1 e underwnting profit and investment returns

Underlying operating profit is the key performance measure for
profitability for the LV= life business Executive remuneration in
this area 1s inked to this metrnc For the Iife business this measure
represents ‘trading’ profit 1 e new business contributions and the
net contribution of servicing inforce polictes

LV takes some of its costs below operating profit These are
the costs which are not associated with running the trading
hbusinesses of the group These costs tend to be one off costs
and are often connected to strategic imtiatives of the group

Sales In the Iife business are measured on an APE rather
than gross wntten premium basis This allows comparisons
of the amount of new business gained in a period by
Insurance companies

Because LV=Is a mutual business we do not have shareholders
and hence we do not have share capital Therefore, we cannot
measure the value of our business using a standard market
value of share capital methodology Qur goal 1s to increase
member value, so to measure our performance against this
goal we need an accurate proxy for the market value of the

LV= business We use Enterpnse Value as this measure

A large proportion of long-term executive remuneration 15

linked to this metric

Definition

Our measure of profit before tax 1s
defined as profit before tax, mutual bonus
allocated, and transfer to Unallocated
divisible surplus

Operating profit can be defined as profit
before tax adjusted for any short term
investment fluctuations, which represent
the difference between the long-term
average return currently expected from
assets and the actual investment return
achieved on these assets in the current
pertod, and also any centrally managed
costs {see below) and amortisation

or impairment of intangibles

Underlying operating profit can be defined
as operating profit adjusted for actuanal
model and valuation changes and also
adjusted for additional margin for credit
default nsk and other nsks

Examples of centrally managed

costs over the last two years include,
PPI redress costs, Solvency |l costs
and closed branch prowisions

APE 1s calculated as the sum of annualised
regular premiums from new business plus
10% of single premiums on new business
written dunng the period

The formula 1s the sum of the value of
our general insurance business, our life
business value plus the value of the
remainder of the group

The general insurance business 1s valued
based on the average of market comparable
multiples of net tangible assets and IFRS
earnings The life business 1s valued based
on the average of market comparable
multiples of our embedded value estimate
and new business value add adjusted for
any expense overruns

* GAAP means Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 1 e the stnctly technical measure «f you folfow the account:ing stancards
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ABI Association of British Insurers
AFS Association of Friendly Societies

Asset shares Asset shares refiect the amount
of money paid into with-profits policies by way
of premiums and investment returns, less the
costs of administenng those policies

Association of Financlal Mutuals {AFM)

The trade body that represents mutual insurers,
friendly societies and other financial mutuais in
the UK It was formed in January 2010 after a
merger of the Association of Friendly Societies
and the Association of Mutual Insurers

BIS Department for Business Innovation
and Skills

Capital resources The amount of capital
that we have to run our business

Friendly Society Friendly Socteties were

set up in the 19th century to help and
encourage underprivileged people to improve
therr financial wellbeing As they are mutuals,
frnendly societies are owned by members
rather than sharehclders

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA} A regulatory
body formed as one of the successors to the
Financial Services Authonty (FSA) It focuses

on the regulation of conduct by both retail

and wholesale financial services firms

FTSE FTSE is an independent company that
provides dices to measure how stockmarkets
and other financial markets perform In the UK,
the FTSE 100 index I1s widely used by the media
to report on the valuation of the largest 100
guoted companies on the UK Stock Exchange

GWP Gross written premiums

ICA Individual capital assessment 1$ the
process by which the Prudential Regulatory
Authonty (PRA) requires insurance companies
to make an assessment of the regulated
company s own capital requirements,

which 1s then reviewed and agreed by the PRA

IFRS (nternational Financial Reporting
Standards are used to ensure a company's
reported accounts are prepared to common
standards across the worid

J G

o)

ILAG Investment and Life Assurance Group

Industnal branch Part of our heritage business
and typically contains small premium whole
of life and endowment policies

LVFS Liverpool Victora Friendly Society

Mutual A business that 1s owned by its
members rather than by shareholders

Mutual bonus A discretionary enhancement
to asset shares to share the results of the
group's performance

GEICs Open-ended investment compantes
are investment funds similar to investment
trusts They are open-ended because they can
take money from new investors at any time
Equally they can pay back investors whenever
the investor chooses OEICs often adopt an
umbrella structure where the investor can

get access through the umbrella fund to

a number of sub-funds which mvest with
different objectives

Ordinary branch Part of our hentage business
and typically consists of traditional with-profits
endowments, whole of Iife pohcies, annuities
and pensions

Pension annuity An annuny uses the proceeds
of a pension fund to provide an income for
a fixed term or the rest of your life

Perlodic payment orders (PPOs) An annuity
style award paid to claimants instead of a lump
sum, where indexed payments can be vaned

to meet hikely future changes in circumstance
This transfers mortality and investment nsk
from the claimant to the insurer

PHI Permanent Health Insurance 1s an
nsurance policy paying benefits to policyholders
who are incapacitated and hence unable to
work due to iliness or accident

Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA)

A regulatory body formed as one of the
successors to the Financral Services Authority
(FSA) It 1s responsible for the prudential
regulation and supervision of financial
services firms

Protection A policy providing a cash sum on
the death or cntical illness of the Iife assured
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PVIF Present value of acquired in-force
business occurs when a life insurance company
makes an acguisition Part of the purchase price
represents the value of the insurance contracts
in the target company This is, in effect, the
present value of the policies acquired

RCM Risk capital margin 1s the additional
capital a firm would need to hold to cover the
effects of a number of ‘What if?" scenanos

that have been prescribed by the PRA

These scenanos assess the capital implications
from combined movements In financial markets
(equity, property, credit spreads, interest rates)
and persistency of the business The RCM

15 the capital required to cover the worst

case scenario

Retail Distribution Review (RDR)

A fundamental review carried out by the
Financial Services Authority designed to help
address tnsufficient trust and confidence

in financial services products and services

In particular, it 15 intended to drive increased
professionalism in the tied and independent
financial advice areas and changes the way
that financial advice 15 orgamised and paid for

RNPFN. Royal National Pension Fund
For Nurses

Risk appetite* The amount of nsk that
a business I1s prepared to accept or keep
when carrying out its everyday activities

Self Invested Personal Penslon {(SIPP)

Unlike normal personal pension plans,

where the pension company limits your choice
of investments 1o those that 1 manages,
SIPPs allow investors the opportunity

to make their own investment decisions

SME Small, Medium Enterpnses —
within the commercial line of the
general insurance business

Solvency Il An EU-wide project that sets out
to provide a comprehensive new framework
for insurance supervision and regulation
This aims to strengthen protection for
policyholders by ensuring that companies
allocate enough capital to cover all the

nsks in their business

Threadneedle Asset Management (TAM)

A leading international iInvestment manager
with a strong track record of outperformance
across asset classes

TCF Treating Customers Fairly 1s an industry-
wide Imtiative designed to ensure financial
providers meet basic princtples of product
information, suitatlity and performance

UK Corporate Governance Code The Code
sets out standards of good practice for isted
companies It covers, amongst other things,
the board composition and its accountability
and relations with business owners

Mutual orgamisatiens such as V= do not
have to adhere to the Code, but we choose
to comply with the Annotated Code as
published by the AFM as we believe it

15 good business practice to do so

Unaliocated divisible surplus (UDS)

The amounts that have yet to be formally
declared as bonuses for participating
policyholders together with the free
assets of the group

With-profits fund An investment fund where
we combine all of our with-profits investors'
money and manage 1t on their behalf

The fund normally invests 1n UK and overseas
shares, fixed interest secunties including
Government stocks and bonds, property,
cash, and our own business activities

We regultarly monitor where we tnvest the
fund to take account of future habilities
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society Limited

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinicn, the financial statements, defined below

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and
of the Society’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and
of the Group's and Society’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union, and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Frnendly Societies Act 1992

This opinion 15 to be read in the context of what we say
In the remainder of this report

What we have audited

The Group financial statements and Society financial statements

(the ‘financial statements'), which are prepared by Liverpool

Victoria Friendly Society Limited {the ‘Society’), compnse

+ the Group and Society Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2013,

» the Group and Society Statements of Comprehensive
Income for the year then ended,

+ the Group and Society Statements of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and

* the notes to the financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation compnses applicable law and IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Auditing (UK and treland} ('iSAs (UK & Ireland)”)

An audit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free

from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of

+ whether the accounting policies are approprate to the
Group’s and Society’'s circumstances and have heen
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and

» the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financiat and non-financial information
in the Annual Report to ident:fy matenal inconsistencies with

the audited financial statements and to «dentify any information
that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course

of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matertal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Overview of our audit approach

Materiality

We set certain thresholds for matenalty These helped us to
determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures

and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually
and on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materality for the Group financial statements as a whole

to be £47 6 millton In arnving at this judgement we have

had regard to members’ interests in the Group as represented
by the Unallocated divisible surplus and to the Group’s
regulatory capital represented by the Peak 2 capital surplus

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to them misstatements identified duning our audit above
£2 4 million as well as misstatements below that amount
that, In our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group 1s structured along three business ines being
‘General Insurance’, ‘Life’ and ‘Heritage’ The Group’s
consolidated financial statements consist of a consolidation
of a number of reporting urits across these business hnes
that include 21 active statutory entities, compnsing the
group's operating businesses and centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit,

we determined the type of work that we needed to perform

at the reporting units to be able to conclude whether sufficient
appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for
our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole

Accordingly, of the Group’s 21 active statutory entities,

we 1dentified three which, i our view, required an audit of
their complete financial information, due to their size and their
risk characteristics This, together with additional procedures
performed at the Group level, gave us the evidence we needed
for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole

Areas of partictlar audit focus

In preparing the financial statements, the directors made

a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect

of significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are inherently
uncertain We pnmarily focused our work in these areas by
assessing the directors’ jJudgements against avallable evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures

In the financial statements

In our audit, we tested and examined information, using
sampling and other auditing technigues, to the extent

we considered necessary to provide a reasonable basis
for us to draw conclusions We cbtained audit evidence
through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both

We considered the following areas to be those that required
particular focus in the current year This 15 not a complete
list of all nsks or areas of focus identified by our audit

We discussed these areas of focus with the Audit Commuttee
Their report on those matters that they considered to

be significant 1ssues In relation to the financtal statements
Is set out on pages 62 and 63
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Area of focus

The longevity assumption used to estimate the value

of liabilties associated with enhanced annuity products

We focused on this area because enhanced annuities

continue to be a major source of new business for the Society,
INcreasing Its exposure to longevity nsk (1 & the nisk that
annuitants live longer than expected) The longewty assumption
15 considered to be a subjective assumption and small changes
In the assumption will have a matenal impact on the value of
long-term insurance contract habilittes

Methods and assumptions used to estimate the costs

of claims for general Insurance products

We focused on this area because the methodology and
assumptions used in the estimation of the claims cost,

reflected In Insurance contract habihties are inherently subjective

In addition, developments such as claims farming

{1 e middlemen that encourage people to make compensation
claims and then sell those claims to lawyers), the increasing
prevalence of settlements via Penodic Payment Orders

(PPOs} together with the Ministry of Justice claims reforms,
increase the uncertainty around future settlement costs

and hence, uncertainty in the vatuation of general insurance
contract llabilities

Fraud In revenue recognition

ISA (UK & lreland) require that we consider this In light

of Incentives ansing from compensation linked to financial
performance, we consider there to be nsk of overstatement
of revenue, for example through premature recognition or the
recording of false revenue

Risk of management override of internal controls
I1SAs (UK & lreland) require that we consider this

How the scope of our audit addressed
the area of focus

We considered the appropriateness of the data sets used

by management to model longevity for the Society’s annuty
portfolio and in particular, the extent to which 1t 1s appropnate
for the Society to use its own emerding expenence data

We also benchmarked the assumption against independent
industry data We used this informatton to critically assess
and challenge the Judgements made by management and

to determine whether there was any evidence of
management ias

We tested the key methodologies and challenged the
assumptions used by the directors to estimate the costs

of claims for general insurance products We performed
sensitivity analysis and industry benchmarking of the
assumptions in respect of matenal components of the
reserves We also examined trends n loss ratios and

we reviewed management’s assessment of nsk in light

of our own understanding of the business and the industry
We also have regard to independent reviews of the reserves
that management obtain during the year We used this
information to cntically assess and challenge the judgements
made by management and to determine whether there was
any evidence of management bias

We performed procedures te identify unusual or unexpected
accounting entrnes i relation to the recognition of revenue
Tests were performed to substantiate those unexpected
entries We tested bank reconciliations relevant to revenue
and examined the guantum and ageing of items recorded
in recevables and suspense accounts in order to check
that recorded revenue was supported by cash receipts

We also tested manual journal entnes relevant to revenue
and cash to identify unusual or irregular entries

We assessed the overall control environment of the Group,
including the arrangements for staff to *whistle-blow’
inappropriate actions, and interviewed management and the
Group's internal audit function We exammed the sigmficant
accounting estimates and judgements relevant to the financial
statements for ewdence of has by the directors that may
represent a nisk of matenal misstatement due to fraud

We tested manual journai entnes We also varied our
procedures to builld an element of unpredictabihty into
our testing
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Golng Concern

The directors have voluntanly complied with Listing Rule 9 8 6(R)
(3) of the Financial Conduct Authonty and prowided a statement
in refation to going concern, set out on page 69, required for
companies with a premium listing on the London Stock Exchange

The directors have requested that we review the statement on
going concern as If the Society were a premium hsted company
We have nothing to report having performed our review

As noted in the directors’ statement, set out on page 69,

the directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare

the Group's and Socety's financial statements using the going
concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes
that the Group and Society have adequate resources to remarn

in operation, and that the directors intend them to do so, for at
least one year from the date the financial statements were signed
As part of our audit we have concluded that the directors' use

of the going concern basis 1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the
Group s and the Society's ability to continue as a going concern

Opinions on other matters prescnbed by the

Friendly Societies Act 1992

In our opinion

« the Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with
the Fniendly Societies Act 1992, and the regulations made
under it, and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financial statements

Opinion on additional disclosure

The Society voluntanly prepares a Report on Directors’
Remuneration in accordance with the provisions of the Companes
Act 2006 The directors have requested that we audit the part of
the Report on Directors’ Remuneration specified by the Companies
Act 2006 to be audrted as H the Society were a quoted company
In our opinion, the part of the Report on Directors' Remuneration
to be audited has been properly prepared 1n accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

Other matters on which we are required

to report by exception

Propriety of accounting records and information

and explanations recelved

Under the Fniendly Societies Act 1992 we are required to report

to you If, in our opinion

+« we have not received all the mformation and explanations
and access to documents we require for our audit, or

e proper accounting records have not been kept by the Socrety,
or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibiiity

Corporate governance statement
On page 70 of the Annua! Report, as required by the UK Corporate
Governance Code — An Annotated version for Mutual Insurers
{‘the Code ) provision C 1 1, the directors state that they consider
the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
members to assess the Group’s performance, business model
and strategy On pages 62 and 63, as required by C 3 8 of the
Code, the Audit Committee has set out the significant I1Ssues
that it considered in relation to the financial statements, and how
they were addressed Under ISAs (UK & Ireland} we are required
to report to you If, In our opinion
* the statement given by the directars 1s matenally inconsistent
with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course
of performing our audit, or
« the section of the Annual Report describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Other information in the Annual Report

Under 1SAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to you,

If In eur epinion, information in the Annual Report 1s

« matenally inconsistent with the informatton in the audited
financial statements, or

= apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group and Society
acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

+ 15 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility
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Matters on which we have agreed to report

by exception

Corporate governance statement

The Society has chosen voluntanly to comply with the UK
Corporate Governance Code — An Annotated version for Mutual
Insurers (‘the Code’) The directors have requested that we review
the statement of the Society’s compliance with the mine provisions
of the Code specified for auditor review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Conduct Authority as If the Society were a premium listed
company We have nothing to report having performed our review

Responstbilities for the financial statements

and the audit

Our responsibilitles and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 70, the directors are responsible

for the preparation of the Group and Society financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audt and express an opinion on the Group
and Society financial statements 1n accordance with applicable

law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, iIncluding the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Society’s members as a body In accordance with
Section 73 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and for no other
purpose We do not, In giving these opintons, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or Into whose hands It may come
save where expressly agreed by our prror consent in writing

David Roper (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

28 March 2014
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2013

Group Society
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated = Restated -
see Note 1 seg Note 1
Notes £m im £m £m
Gross earned premiums 5 2,317 2,448 837 959
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 (122) (109) (84) (76)
Net earned premlums 5 2,195 2,337 753 883
Fee and commission Income 7 14 17 q 7
Investment income 8 346 320 348 337
Net gains on investments 9 112 375 15 214
Other income 10 32 42 1 6
Total Income 2,699 3,001 1,121 1,447
Gross henefits and claims 11 (1,703) {1.819) (614) {647)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 11 68 111 64 62
Net benefits and claims 11 (1,635) (1,708) (550) (585}
Gross change In long-term contract habilities 25 {362) {(725) (364) (728}
Change in long-term contract habilities ceded to reinsurers 25 75 74 75 74
Change in non-participating value of in-forge business 25 20 14 20 14
Net change in contract habillties 25 (267) (637) {269) (640)
Finance costs 12 {15) {1) {14) -
Investment return allocated to external unit holders (23) {33) - -
Other operating and administrative expenses 13 {603) (609) (184) (219)
Other expenses {641) (643) (198) (219)
Total benefits, clalms and expenses {2,543) (2,988) {1,017) (1,444)
Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 156 103 104 3
Mutual bonus 15 (22) (21) (22) (21)
Income tax expense 38 (10) (34) - {13)
Transfer (to)/from the Unallocated divisible surplus 50 (124) (48) {82) 31
Profit for the year - - - -
Other comprehenslve income/{losses)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit pension schemes 43 {9) {145) {9) (145)
Transfer from the Unallocated divisible surplus 50 9 145 9 145

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -

As a Friendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are carried forward within the Unallocated
divisible surplus Accordingly, there 1s no profit for the year shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Group and the Society have not presented a Statement of Changes in Equity as there are no equity holders in either the Group
or Society as the Society 1s a mutual orgamsation
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Statement of Financial Position

Year ended 31 December 2013

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated - Restated -
sae Note 1 see Note 1
Nates £m £m Lm £m
Assets
Intangible assets 30 228 252 - -
Deferred acquisition costs 26 a8 100 - -
Property and equipment 31 25 24 6 7
Investment properties 32 79 165 79 132
Investments 1n group undertakings 33 - - 766 Q02
Corporation tax asset 39 - - - 2
Deferred tax asset 40 12 14 13 13
Prepayments and accrued income 35 114 107 70 64
Financial assets
— Fair value through income 16 10,216 9,484 7,951 7,059
— Derwvative financial iInstruments 17 a7 71 39 69
Loans and other receivables 20 65 103 124 128
Reinsurance assets 27 515 447 372 297
Insurance regeivables 34 223 227 11 13
Cash and cash equivalents 780 436 313 123
Total assets 12,403 11,430 9,744 8,809
Liabllitles
Unallocated divisible surplus 50 976 861 952 879
Insurance contract habilities 23 8,707 8,448 6,618 5,394
Non-participating value of in-force business 24 (273) (253) {273) (253)
investment contract hablilies 18 1,748 1,420 1,748 1,420
Net asset value attributable to external unit holders 479 504 - -
Pension benefit obligation 43 16 10 16 10
Provisions 44 15 66 12 63
Corporation tax hability 41 2 8 - -
Financial liabilities
- Dervative financial iInstruments 17 80 51 80 51
~ Subordinated labihties 21 356 10 346 -
- Other financial habilities 22 46 65 56 81
Insurance payables 38 38 45 23 26
Trade and other payables 37 213 195 166 138
Total habilitles 12 403 11,430 9,744 8,809

The financial statements on pages 99 to 184 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by

HO\M S

RS Small
Company Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2013

Group Society
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes im £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 436 719 123 283
Cash flows arlsing from
Operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 55 206 412 156 273
Net ingcrease in investments held at fair value through income (631) {985} {777) (721)
Purchase of investment properties {1) - (1) -
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 1065 54 72 18
Dividend income receved 76 96 119 165
interest and other m¢ome recerved 260 180 217 151
Rental income on investment properties 5 6 5 7
Finance cost paid 1) (1} - -
Income tax paid (14) (38) 2 (24)
Net cash flows generated from / {used in) operating activities 5 (276} {207) (131}
Investing actlvities
Increase In Investment in group undertakings - - - {45}
Redemption of loans to subsidiaries - - 51 13
Repayment of long-term loan from subsidiary - - - 7
Purchase of property and equipment 31 (7) (7} - (4}
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing activities {7) (7) 51 (29)
Financing activities
Proceeds from subordinated debt issue (net of £4m 1ssue ¢osts) 21 346 - 346 -
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 346 - 346 -
Net increase / (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 344 {283) 190 {160}
Cash and cash equlvalents at 31 December 780 436 313 123
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Bank balances 100 98 75 22
Short-term bank deposits 680 338 238 101
780 436 313 123

The Group classifies the cash flows for the acquisition and disposal of financial assets and the net purchases/sales of investment
properties as operating cash flows, as the purchases are funded from the cash flows asscciated with the ongination of iInsurance
and investment contracts

1oday 2i8a1e4S

(%]
=]
=
@
=2
3
]
>
o
@




102 LV= Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013
Significant accounting policies Q

This section describes the LV= Group's significant accounting pohicies and accounting estimates that relate to the financial
statememts and notes as a whole If an accounting policy or an accounting estimate relates to a spectfic note, the applicable
accounting pohicy and/or accounting estimate 1s contained within the relevant note

1 Significant accounting policies = To report certain products within the pensions business
1 1 Basls of presentation as Participating investment contract habilities that were
The Group financial statements consolidate the results of previously reported within Insurance contract liabilities
the Society and its substdiary compames The Group's and This has resulted in a £461m restatement between
Society’s financial statements conform to International Financial Investment contract liabilities and Insurance contract
Reporting Standards {IFRS) and interpretattons 1ssued by the IFRS habilities on the 2012 Statement of Financial Position
interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as published by the International  The Pension benefit obligation disclosures have been restated
Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the European Umon to comply with the new IAS 19 employee benefits standard
In addition the Society’s financial statements comply with the Re-measurements of defined benefit schemes are now disclosed
Friendly Societies (Accounts & Related Provisions) Regulations within the Statement of Comprehensive Income The standard
1994 (the Regulations) has only impacted on the disclosures made within Note 43
In accordance with IFRS 4 on Insurance Contracts, the Group None of the above restatements have impacted on the Profit
has applied existing accounting practices for nsurance contracts before tax and mutual bonus or the transfer to the Unallocated
and participating investment contracts modified as appropriate divisible surplus for the prior year
to comply with the IFRS framework and applicable standards
Further details are given in accounting policy 1 3b below 1 2 Significant accounting estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financia! statements in accordance with
Insurance contracts are accounted for in accordance with the IFRS requires the use of estimates It also requires management
Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association to exercise Judgement in applying the accounting policies
of British Insurers in December 2005, and amended in December The key areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity,
2006 In certain businesses, the accounting policies or accounting  Of areas where assumptions are significant to the financial
estimates have been changed to measure designated insurance statements are highlighted under the relevant note

liabilities using current market interest rates and allowing for other

changes to regulatory reporting practices The Group measures the  Significant accounting estimates and judgements are disclosed in
hiability on with-profits contracts in line with the ‘realistic’ reporting  * Fair value of financial assets {Note 16)

regime of the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) More detail on = Insurance contract habihities (Note 23)

the valuation of insurance and investment contracts 1s given in the « Intangible assets (Note 30)

accounting policies disclosed within Notes 23 and 18 respectively = Pension benefit obligation (Note 43)

The financial statements have been prepared under the 1 3 Accounting policies
historical cost convention as modified by the revafuation a Consolidation
of investment properties and financial assets and liabilities Subsldiaries
(including derivatives) at fair value through income Subsidiaries are all entities, including Open Ended Investment
Companies (OEICs}, over which the Group (directly or indirectly}
The principat accounting policies apphied in the preparation has control The Group controls an entity when the Group s
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below exposed to, or has rights to, vanable returns from 1ts involvement
These policies have been consistently applied to all years with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
presented, unless otherwise stated its power over the entity Subsidianes are fully consolidated
from the date on which control Is transferred to the Group using
After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable uniform accounting policies consistently applied across the Group
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to They are excluded from consolidation from the date on which
continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future control ceases
The Group therefore continues to adopt the going congern
basis in prepanng its conschdated financial statements The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account
for the acquisition of subsidianes Accordingly, the cost of an
Restatements acqursition 1s measured as the fair value of the cash or other
The Statement of Financial Position and Statement of assets given, equity instruments issued and habihties incurred or
Comprehensive Income for both the Group and Society assumed at the date control passes Identifiable assets acquired,
have been restated for the following two items liabilities and contingent liabiities assumed In a business
+ To separately disclose Non-participating value of the in-force combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
business and Change in non-participating value of in-force acquisition date, rrespective of the extent of any minonty interest
business on the face of the Statement of Financtal Position The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
and Statement of Comprehensive Income respectively Group's share of the \dentifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded
The 2012 figures have accordingly been restated by £253m as goodwill If the cost of acqursition IS less than the fair value
and £14m These amounts were previously included within of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s
Insurance contract liabiities and Gross change In long-term recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
contract liabilities respectively for the penod

Intra-group transactions, balances and unreahsed gains

on Intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnues

Year endegd 31 December 2013

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Where the Group invests in specialised investment vehicles
{such as QEICs} and owns greater than 50% of the unit
shareholding, they are consolidated The interests of other
parties in these vehicles will be ¢lassified as habilities and
appear as ‘Net asset value attnbutable to external unit holders’
because they are puttable instruments The external unit holders’
share of the net investment return on the OEICs 1s charged

or credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
Investment return allocated to external unit holders

Details of the Society’s principal subsidianes are given in Note 47

Assoclates and joint ventures in property holding companies
The Group Invests in associate companies and jointly controlled
entities that hold investment properties, with holdings ranging
between 25% and 50%

Assoctates are all entities over which the Group has stgnificant
Influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts

The investments in associates and the Group's interests

i Jjointly controlled entities have not been consolhidated under
the equity method but are designated as investments at fair
value through income under UK unhsted investments in
accordance with the exemptions permitted under IAS 28

and |IAS 31 applicable to investment-hinked insurance funds

b Contract ciassification
The Group 1ssues contracts that transfer insurance risk,
financial nsk or both

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant
insurance risk Such contracts may also transfer financial risk

As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance
risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence

of an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial
risk with no significant insurance risk

Ali with-profits centracts have been ciassified as participating
contracts as these contracts entitle the helder to recewe,
as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits
or bonuses
* that are likely to be a significant portion of the total
contractual beneiits,
+ whose amount or timing 1s contractually at the discretion
of the Group, and
« that are contractually based on
1) the performance of a specified pool of contracts
or a specified type of contract,
11y realsed and/or unrealised investment returns
on a specified pool of assets held by the fund, or
in} the unallocated surplus of the fund that 1ssues the contract

¢ Forelgn currencies

Investment assets and liabilities denominated i foreign
currencies are translated to sterling at rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the year Purchases and sales of
investments dencminated in foreign currencies are translated

at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in that part of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in which the underlying
transaction i1s reported

d Financlal assets and llabllities

Recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabihtigs upon
initial recognition into the following categones

« Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through income
» Dervative financial instruments

s Loans and receivables

« Other financial hiabilities

The accounting policy for each type of financial asset or hability
15 included within the relevant note for the category

Derecognition
A financial asset I1s derecognised when
+ the rnights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
» the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and has
-~ transferred the nsks and rewards of the asset, or
— transferred control of the asset

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the
habihity 15 discharged or cancelled or expires

e Liability adequacy testing

tnsurance and participating Investment contract liabilitles

At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made of whether

the recognised long-term contract habiliies are adequate,

using current estimates of future cash flows If that assessment
shows that the carrying amount of the liabihties (less related
assets) 1s insufficient in light of the esttimated future cash flows,
the deficiency 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income by setting up an additional habihity

General insurance

At each Statement of Financial Position date lability adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract
habilities, net of related deferred acquisition costs In performing
these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well
as investment income from the assets backing such labilities,
are used Any deficiency 1s immediately charged to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income inrually by writing off deferred
acquisition costs and by subsequently establishing an unexpired
nsk provision Any deferred acquisition cost written off as a
result of this test cannot subsequently be reinstated

f Impairment of non-financlal assets

Assets that have an indefimte useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually

for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable An impairment l0ss i1s recogrised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher

of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value In use

For the purposes of assessing impalirment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2013

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)
Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date

g Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
and short-term deposits with an original matunty of three months
or less

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and cash
equivalents are as defined above but are shown net of cutstanding
bank overdrafts

1 4 Changes and future developments in accounting policies
(1) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the
first ime for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2013 and have an impact on the Group

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’
regarding Other comprehensive income The main change resulting
from these amendments 15 a requirement for entities to group
items presented in ‘Other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the
basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or

loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments) There are

no such reclassifiable items in the Group accounts

1AS 19, ‘Empleyee benefits’ was revised in June 2011

The changes to the Group's accounting policies are as follows
to immediately recognise all past service costs, and to replace
interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net
interest amount that 1s calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit obhigation The Group has adopted
the revised standard and the changes have been reflected In
Note 43 - Pension benefit obligation

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise definstion of far
value and a single source of farr value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements,
which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance

on how 1t should be applied where 1ts use is already required

or permitted by other standards within IFRSs The amendment
has had only a minor impact on some of the disclosures given

In the Group financial statements

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, on the
recoverahble amount disctosures for non-financial assets

This amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable
amount of cash-generating units which had been inctuded in IAS
36 by the 1ssue of IFRS 13 The amendment 1s not mandatory for
the Group until 1 January 2014, however the Group has decided
o early adopt the amendment as of 1. January 2013

Other than as set out above, no new or amended accounting
standards and interpretations were adopted for the 2013
financial year

{n} New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2014, and have not been applied in preparnng these
consolidated financial statements None of these are expected
to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except for the following

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognitign of financial assets and financial
llabihties IFRS 9 was 1ssued in November 2009 and October
2010 It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories those measured as at far value and
those measured at amortised cost, the determination of which
ts made at initial recognition The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing 1ts financial Instruments
and the contractual cash flow characterstics of the instrument
For financtal liabilities, the standard retains most of the |AS 39
requirements The main change is that, in cases where the far
value option 15 taken for financial habilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credrt rnisk s recorded In
Other comprehensive income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Group 1s yet
to assess IFRS @'s full impact The Group will also consider the
impact of the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed

by the 1ASB

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds on

existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consclidated financial statements of the parent company
The standard provides additional guidance to assist In the
determination of controf where this i1s difficult to assess

The Group 1s yet to assess [FRS 10's full impact and intends

to adopt IFRS 10 no later than the accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2014, subject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 11, ‘Jomt arrangements’ focuses on the nghts and
obligations of the parties to the arrangement rather than

its legal form There are two types of Joint arrangements

Joint operations and joint ventures Joint operations anse
where the investors have nghts to the assets and obligations
for the habilities of an arrangement A joint operator accounts
for its share of the assets, labilities, revenue and expenses
Joint ventures arise where the investors have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement, Joint ventures are accounted for
under the equity method Proportional consolidation of jomt
arrangements 1S no longer permitted

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, structured entities and
other off balance sheet vehicles The impact on the Group 1s not
expected to be matenal

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet
effective that are expected to have a matenal impact on the Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2013

Segmental information

This section detaills the disclosures arsing under IFRS 8 Operating segments These segmental disclosures are hased on operating
segments that reflect the level within the Group at which key strategic and resource allocation decisions are made and the way in which
operating performance s reperted mternally to the Group board of directors

2 Segmental information

Accounting for operating profit

calculated as IFRS profit before tax adjusted for the following items
» short-term investment fluctuations represent the difference
between the long-term average return currently expected
over iffetime of the free Estate and Life assets and the
actual investment return achieved on these assets In
the current penod,

Operating profit 1s the profit earned from normal core business operations It 15 a non-GAAP measure and

Q

s accounting differences between the basis upon which the
results of the operations are managed and the accounting
requirements of IFRS,

« centrally managed strategic costs,

« finance costs, and

» amortisation of intangibles

The activities of each operating segment are described below

General insurance

The principal activity 1s to underwrite general insurance business
through both direct and broker distribution channels The primary
sources of premium income are from the sale of Motor and Home
products The general insurance business also underwntes Road
Rescue, Pet Insurance, Travel Insurance and Commercial Insurance
for Small and Medium Size Enterprises

Life

The principal activity 1s the provision of Protection and Retirement
Solution products The core products offered in Protectton are Life,
Critical Hiness, Income Protection and Unemployment Insurance
The core products offered in Retirement Solutions are Enhanced
Annuities, Self-Invested Personal Pensions (SIPPs) and Equity
Release Mortgages

For the purposes of this segmental disclosure, Insurance and
investment contract liabiliues, operating profits, IFRS profit
before tax and net change in contract hiabilities shown for the
Life business, are calculated after allocating the non-participating
value of in-force business to this segment

a) Segment profit

Heritage

This segment comprises LVFS' with-profits business

{both ordinary branch and industnal branch} atlong with some
non-profit business and unit-linked business, which was acquired
from the Roya! National Pension Fund for Nurses (‘RNPFN’)
Most of the Heritage products are no longer activety marketed,
though Hentage continues to sell newer with-profits products

via the Life business channeis

Central items and other
This segment compnses centrally held items such as
group functions

Transactions between reportable segments are on normal
commercial terms, and are included within the reported segments

The profit measure used by the Group board of directors to
monitor perfoarmance i1s Operating profit before tax Operating profit
before tax by segment 1s shown In the table below, together with

a reconciliatton of the Total operating profit before tax to the IFRS
result before tax The following tables give details of the Group's
profit, revenue and expenses and assets and labilities

with reference to the operating segments defined above

Central

Genaral Items

insurance Life Herltage and ather Total

2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Yotal operating profit/{loss) before tax 81 18 18 (12) 105
Accounting policy differences (IFRS) - (2) - - (2)
Short-term investment fluctuations - 49 38 i8 105
Centrally managed costs (2) (1) - (16} {19)
Finance costs - - - (15} (15)
Amortisation of intangibles (2) (16) - - (18)
Profit/(loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 77 48 56 {25) 156

Central
General Life ltems.

nsurance (restated) Heritage and other Total

2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Total operating profit/{loss) before tax 1417 48 (B4} {13) 88
Accounting policy differences (IFRS) - (12} - - (12)
Short-term investment fluctuations - 40 35 {13) 62
Centrally managed costs (6) {2) (5) (9) (22}
Finance costs - - - (1) 1)
Amortisation of intangibles {2) (5} - “4) (12)
Profit/(loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 109 68 (34) {40) 103

Life Operating profit has been restated to reflect the change in methodology applied for credit default expenence reporting
Previously favourable expernence emerging in the reporting penod In respect of credit default was reported in Short-term investment
fluctuations This 1s now reported as Additional margin for credit default nisk within Operating profit 2012 Operating profit has been

restated resulting in a £4m increase
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2 Segmental information (continued)
b) Segment revenue and expenses
All revenues disclosed in the tables below are external

Central

General items
Insurance Life Heritage and other Total
Year ending 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 1,479 680 158 - 2,317
Premiurmns ¢eded to reinsurers {(38) (59) (25) - (122)
Net earned premiums 1,441 621 133 - 2,195
Investment and other income 100 153 223 28 504
Segmental income 1,541 774 356 28 2,699
Gross benefits and claims {1,086) (292) (325) - (1,703)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 4 42 22 - 68
Net benefit and claims {1,082) {250} {303) - {1,635)
Net change in contract habilities - {318) 51 - (267)
Other expenses {382) (158) (48) {53) (641)
Segmental expenses {1,464) {726) {300) (53) (2,543)
Profit /(loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer (*) 77 48 56 {25) 156
Central
General Life items
mnsurance {restated) Hentage and other Total
Year ending 31 December 2012 Im £m Em £m £m
Gross earned premiums 1,486 812 148 - 2,446
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (33) (53} (23) - (109)
Net earned premiums 1,453 759 125 - 2,337
Investment and other income 150 287 297 2Q 754
Segmental iIncome 1,603 1,046 422 20 3,091
Gross benefits and claims {1,168) {272) (379) - (1.819)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 49 40 22 - 111
Net benefit and claims (1,119) (232) {357) - {1,708)
Net change in contract liabilities - (B77) {60) - (637)
Other expenses (375) (169) (39) (60) (643)
Segmental expenses {1,494) (978) {458) (60) (2,988)
Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer {*) 109 68 (34) {40Q) 103

Gross written premiums for investment contracts which are deposit accounted for and not included above are £342m (2012 £270m)

* As a Fnendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are carried forward within the Unallocated
dwsible surplus, resulting in the profit for each financial year beng zero Therefore the resulting Profit before tax required to be
disclosed under IFRS 8 will always be equal to the tax charge being £10m (2012 £34m) and £nil (2012 £13m) for the Group
and Society respectively In order to present a more meamngful disclesure the Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer
15 disclosed in the tables above
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2 Segmental information (continued)
c) Segment assets and liabllities
Central
General ltems
Insurance Life Herltaga and other Total
As at 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Property and equipment 13 - - 13 26
Investment properties - - 79 - 79
Financial assets 1,818 3,453 4,093 899 10,263
Reinsurance assets 143 347 25 - 515
Other assets 551 122 36 31 740
Cash and cash equivalents 398 91 169 122 780
Total assets 2,923 4,013 4,402 1,065 12,403
Liabllities
Insurance and investment contract habilities (2,070) {3,625) 4,377) (110) (10,182)
Subordinated abiities {10) - - (348) (356}
QOther liabilities {155) (160) {60) {514) {889)
Total llabilities excluding UDS (2,235) {3,785) {4,437) {(970) {11,427)
Net Assets 688 228 {35) 95 a76
Consohdation adjustments {589) {213) 323 539 -
Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS) 99 (45) 288 634 976
Central
Genera! iems
Insurance Life Herrtage and other Total
As at 31 December 2012 £m £m £m im £m
Assets
Property and equipment 9 - - 15 24
Investment properties - - 108 57 165
Financial assets 1,967 3,025 4,054 509 9,555
Reinsurance assets 150 274 23 - 447
Other assets 570 137 29 67 803
Cash and cash equivalents 187 26 100 123 436
Total assets 2,883 3,462 4,314 771 11,430
Liabilities
Insurance and investment contract labilities {2,033) (3,058) (4,341) {185) (9,615)
Subordinated lhabilities {10) - - - (10)
Other liabiities (126) {228) (89) (501) (944)
Total habilities excluding UDS {2,169) (3,284) {4,430) (686) (10,569)
Net Assets 714 178 {116) 85 861
Consolidation adjustments (704) (253) 303 654 -
Unaltocated divisible surplus (UDS) 10 (75) 187 739 861

Within the Central items and other segment, there 1s a balance
of £471m (2012 £533m) which relates to Estate net assets
The Hentage with-profits policyholders have access to the
Estate assets, If required to settle guarantees and bonuses

Included within the Conselidation adjustments 1s £273m (2012
£253m) of non-participating value of in-force business which
1S generated from the nen-participating policies written in the
Life business Under IFRS GAAP this I1s required to be matched

against the participating contracts which are held within Heritage

d) Major customers

The directors consider the Group's external customers to be
individual policyholders As such, the Group 1s not reliant on

any individual customer
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Capital and risk management

This section detalls the capital and nsk management approach of the Society and Group The Group seeks to create value for its
members by Investing in the development of the business while maintaining an appropriate level of capital available The nsk appetite
for each type of principal nsk I1s set based on the amount necessary to meet the PRA's capital requirements

3 Capital management

Policies and objectives

The Group’s key capital management objectives are

(1) To ensure the Group's strategy can be implemented and
1S sustanable,

(1} To ensure the Group's financial strength and to support
the nisks it takes on as part of 1ts business,

(m} To give confidence to policyholders and other stakeholders
who have relationships with the Group, and

{iv) To comply with capital requirements imposed by Iits
UK regulator, the PRA

These objectives are reviewed at least annually, and benchmarks
are set by which to judge the adequacy of the Group's capital
The capital position s monitored against those benchmarks to
ensure that sufficient capial 1s availlable to the Group In the
event that sufficient capital 1s not availlable, actions would be
taken either to raise additional capital or to reduce the amount
of nisk accepted thereby reducing the capital requirement
Potential actions include reinsurance, a reduction In business
volumes or a change In investment strategy

The Group 1s required to hold sufficient capital to meet the PRA

capital requirements based on the higher of,

a the Risk Capital Margin (RCM} determined in accordance with
the PRA's regulatory rules under its realistic capital regime, or

b the Individual Capital Assessment (ICA} which takes into
account certain business risks not reflected 1n the RCM, and
which 1s submitted to the PRA

The determination of the RCM depends on vanous actuanal
and other assumptions about potential changes in market
prices, future operating expenence and the actions
management would take 1n the event of particular adverse
changes in market conditions

Capital statement
The following tables set out the capital available to the Group

The capital requirement in the annual PRA return 1s the statutory
minimum capital requirement plus an additional component for
each with-profits fund The statutory mirimum capital requirement
Is based on EU directives 1t 1s broadly equivalent to the capital
needed by an ‘average’ Iife insurance company with good risk
controls, to cover adverse experience likely to occur one In every
two hundred years

Management intends to maintain surptus capital in excess
of the RCM and ICA to meet the PRA’s total requirements
and to maintain an appropriate addtional margin over this to
absorb changes 1n both capital and capital requirements

The Group complied with all externally imposed capital
requirements to which it was subyect throughout the
reporting period

Measurement and monitoring of capital

The capital position of the Group 1s monitored on a regular basis
and reviewed formally on a monthly basis by the Group Asset and
Liability Committee {ALCO) These objectives are reviewed and
benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the Group's
capital and ensure that sufficient capital 1s available

The Group’s capital requirements are forecast on a regular basis
and compared against the available capital and the Group's
mimmum mternal rate of return The internal rate of return
forecast to be achieved on potential Investments 1s also measured
against minimum required benchmarks taking into account the
nsks associated with the investment

In the event that sufficient capital 1s not available, actions would
be taken either to raise additional capital or to reduce the amount
of risk accepted thereby reducing the capital requirement through,
for example, reinsurance, reducing business volumes or a change
In investment strategy

2013 2012
Regulatory Capital £m £m
Admissible assets excluding lower tier 2 capital 9,088 8,120
Mathematical reserves and other liabilities (7.784) (7,040}
Subordinated debt capital 346 -
Capltal resources 1,650 1,080
RNPFN surplus not available to Group {194) (180)
Available capital resources 1,456 900
Capital resource requirements,
- Regulatory solvency requirements {253) (239)
— Regulatory related undertakings {253) (254)
Regulatory excess capltal {excluding RNPFN surplus) 950 407
With-profits insurance capital component (230} (221}
Realistic excess capital (excludlng RNPFN surplus) 720 186

The Group complied with all externally imposed capital requirements which it was subject to throughout the reporting period
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3 Capital management (continued)
Available capital resources
Movements in avaifable capital resources are analysed below

Soclety's RMNPFNM
participating participating

contract contract Other UK non-  Total long term Other Consolidation

busi busl participating business activities adjustments Group total
2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Capital at 1 January 1,080 - 15 1,095 2,166 (1,951) 1,310
Effect of investment vanations 301 - - 301 - - 301
Effect of changes 1n assumptions {(34) - - (34) - - (34)
New business (80) - - (80} - - {800
Effect of changes in regulatory requirements - 14 - 14 (3) (62) (51)
l.ower tier two capital 346 - - 346 - - 346
Qther 37 - (1) 36 27} 70 79
RNPFN Fund not availlable to the Group - {14) - (14) - - {14)
Capital resources as at 31 December 1,650 - 14 1,664 2,136 (1,943) 1,857

Society s RNPFN

participating participating

contract contract Other UK non  Total long term Consoldation

business business participating business  Other activities adjustments Group total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Capital at 1 January 924 - 103 1,027 1,779 (1,386} 1,420
Effect of investment variations 146 - - 146 - - 146
Effect of changes in assumptions 166 - - 166 - - 166
New business (129) - - (129) - - (129)
Effect of changes in regulatory requirements - 16 - 16 2 (81) (63)
Effect of capital restructure - - (90) (20} - - (90)
Other (27) - 2 (25) 385 (484} (124}
RNPFN Fund not available to the Group - (16) - (16) - - {16}
Capital resources as at 31 December 1,080 - 15 1,095 2,166 {1,951) 1,310

Dunng the year LVFS' excess capital resources increased by £534m to £720m (2012 £186m} The pnme reason for this increase
1S the addtional Lower tier two capital raised during the year which 1s explained in Note 21, and also movements per the table below

Excess capital 2013
£m
Excess capital at 1 January 186
Opening adjustments 10
Economic variances 105 %3
Claims varnances a4 u@:
Expense vanances (18) :
New business n 3
Impact of changes to valuations assumptions (16) =
Mavements in group undertakings* 110
Interest on subordinated debt (14)
Mutua! bonus (22)
Change n risk capital margin 21
Subordinated debt (after costs) 346
Other 15 g
Excess capltal at 31 December 720 5
2
Q
[+

* Movement in group undertakings relates to the change in the net asset value of the subsidiaries, due mainly to profits generated and
movements between admissible and inadmissibie assets

The increase In capital has enhanced our key benchmark, the Regulatory Capital Cover ratio to 178% (2012 121%)
This ratio represents the value of the available capital resources compared to the capital resources required
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3 Capital management {continued)
Reconciliation of available capital resources

The following table reconciles the Unallocated divisible surplus presented in the Statement of Financial Position to the total available capital
resources calculated on a regulatory basis

Soclety s RNPFN
participating participating Other

contract contract  Other UK non Total iong actlvities  Consolidation

business business participating  term husiness {note 4) adjustments Group total
2013 £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Unallocated divisible surplus 952 - - 952 - 24 976
Shareholdings in related undertakings - - 14 14 2,160 (2,174) -
Regulatory adjustments
— Adjustment to reserves to realistic basis 385 194 - 579 - - 579
— Adjustment to subsidiaries (note 1) {(212) - - (212} - 207 (5)
- Inadmissible assets {note 2) {15) - - (15} (24) - (39)

1,110 194 14 1,318 2,136 (1,943) 1,511
Lower tier two capital 346 - - 346 - - 346
RNPFN Fund not available to the Group (note 3) 194 (194) - - - - -
Capital Resources 1,650 - 14 1,664 2,136 (1,943) 1,857

parlstgf[;::rnz partic?pr:\:f\: CGther UK non  Total long term Other Consohdation

contract contract parucipating business a?;g:gis) adjusiments Graup totat

business business
2012 £m im £m im £m £m £m
Unallocated divisible surplus 879 - - 879 - (18) 861
Shareholdings n related undertakings - - 15 15 2,187 {2,202) -
Regulatory adjustments
— Adjustment to reserves to realistic basis 358 180 - 538 - - 538
— Adjustment to subsidiaries {note 1) (322) - - (322) - 269 (53)
— Inadmissible assets (note 2) (15) = — (15) (21) - {36}

900 180 15 1,095 2,166 {1,951) 1,310

RNPFN Fund not available to the Group (note 3) 180 (180) - - - - -
Capital Resources 1,080 - 15 1,095 2166 (1,951) 1,310
Notes

1 Represents the difference between the cost of Investment in subsidianes and the value for regulatory purposes net of the capital
requirement

2 inadmissible assets include pension scheme, deferred tax and goodwill

3 RNPFN denotes Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses, which 1s a ring-fenced fund The free assets attnbutable to this fund are
reported as insurance contract llabiities of the Society

4 QOther activities include the non-life insurance activities and the non-insurance activities of the Group

Avallable capital - Long-term Insurance contracts reducing bonus rates The assets are taken at market value,

i} Participating insurance contracts estimated where required, with an allowance for the future surplus
The liabihties in respect of the Group's participating (with-profits) expected o anse on the non-participating business written in the
business are determined in accordance with the ‘realistic balance parucipating fund The whole of the avallable capital resources
sheet’ regime prescribed by the PRA Under this regime, the within each participating fund 1s avallable to meet the regulatory
habthties to policyholders include both declared bonuses and the and other solvency requirements of the fund The regulatory capital
constructive obligation for future bonuses, based in general on requirement 15 the Risk Capital Margin, determined by applying a
the asset shares for the relevant policies The expected costs of stress prescribed by the PRA to the participating habihties and to
the guarantees underlying the business are included, along with the assets supporting them For participating contract funds, the
the impact of smoothing policy benefits in accordance with the llabilties included tn the Statement of Financial Position comprise
Group’s current practice An allowance 1s made for actions that only amounts relating to policyholders

management would take in adverse conditions, such as
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3 Capital management (continued)

i} Non-participating insurance contracts

The habilities in respect of the Group's non-participating {non-profit}
business are determined by discounting the cash flows projected
to anse under the relevant policies at a nsk-adjusted discount

rate The assumptions used to project the cash flows include
prudent margins The capital requirement for the business s the
long-term insurance capital requirement determined in accordance
with PRA regulations

lii) Other non-insurance activities

The other activities of the Group have availlable capital resources
which are higher than the minimum requirements set by the PRA
or FCA for each of the regulated entities In principle, the excess
Is avallable to the Society In practice, higher levels of capital

are held within each regulated entity to provide appropnate cover
for nsk and new business growth This restricts the ability of the
capital resources to meet requirements that arise elsewhere

In the Group

iv) RNPFN fund

The capntal resources In the RNPFN fund are avallable to support
only the business within the fund The fund benefits from a capnital
support facility provided by the Society However, with the capital
resources of the fund being in excess of its capital requirement,
no calls to date have been made on this facility

Sensitivity of long-term insurance contract liabllities
The value of the long-term Insurance contract liabihties
1S sensitive to changes In market conditions and n the
demographic assumptions used in the calculation,
such as mortaiity and persistency rates

Market conditions — Assumptions are made about future
Investment returns and interest rates when valuing the hablities,
hased on current market conditions These also have an effect
on the value placed on the assets held to support the liabilities
An adverse change in market conditions may therefore reduce
the level of the available capital resources

Demographic assumptions — Changes In the mortality, morbidity,
expense or persistency expenenced by the business may result in
the need to change the assumptions used to value the habilities
This may increase or reduce the value placed on the labihties
The sensitivity of the habilites to changes in the assumptions
varies according to the type of business For example, a change
in mortality rates has a different impact for annuity habihties than
for term assurance liabilities

Further disclosure of the impact on the Unallocated divisible
surplus of changes in market conditions and demographic
assumptions 1s provided in Note 4 Risk management and control

Financlal guarantees and options

a} Particlpating insurance contracts

As part of 11s nermal operating activities, the Society has given
guarantees and options, including interest rate guarantees,
under its participating insurance contracts

A provision 15 made for these guarantees and options within
the realistic valuation of the Group's participating business
Under the PRA’s rules, the cost of the guarantees and options
15 measured at fair value using a market-consistent stochastic
model A stochastic approach includes measuring the time value
of the guarantees and options, which represents the addiuonal
cost ansing from the uncertainty surrounding future economic
conditions The time value ts evaluated by projecting a large
number of possible future outcomes under a wide range

of economic scenanos (for example, possible outcomes

for interest rates and equity returns)

The matenal guarantees and options under the participating
business are shown below

1} Guaranteed annuity rates — the RNPFN fund contains a number
of individual pension and other policies, where the pohicyholder
has the option at maturity to take the benefits in the form
of an annuity based on guaranteed conversion rates

n} Matunty value guarantees — many of the Group's participating
insurance contracts have mimimum matunty values, in the form
of either a cash payment or an annuity, reflecting the ongmnal
guarantee under the policy increased by past declared bonuses

1) Money-back guarantees — some of the policies written by
the Group provide a guarantee that the value of the policy
at a certain point In ttme will be at least equal to the total
premiums pald

b) Non-participating Insurance contracts

The Group has also written non-participating contracts which
include guarantees and options An appropriate provision
for these guarantees and options has been included within
the liabihities in accordance with the PRA's rules

c) Equity release loans

The Group’s assets include a number of equity release loans,
the principal and accrued interest of which are due to be repaid
out of the proceeds from the sale of an associated domestic
property The loans include the guarantee that any shortfall of
the sale proceeds to the loan will be wnitten off The loans also
Iinctude guaranteed terms under which they can be repaid early
Further details are disclosed within Note 16

uoday oigaens
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4 Risk management and control

The Group's pnmary business activities include the provision

of insurance, investment and retirement products to UK-based
customers In providing these products the Group accepts and
needs to manage nsk A descrniption of these nsks and how they
relate to the Groups’ products s outhned below and the Group's
approach to managing and controlling these risk through its nsk
management framework s set out on pages 38 to 43

As part of its risk management programme, the Group records
its current and projected nisk position across a defined set

of nsk categores In addition a measure of the sensitivity

on Profit before tax, Unallocated divisible surplus,

and Long-term insurance contract llabilities under both
determinustic and stochastic scenanos 1s performed

Management uses the insight gained through these sensitivibies
to help manage the Group’s risk exposure and sustainability
The models, scenarios and assumptions used are

reviewed regularly and updated as necessary including any
interdependencies between nsk types This section includes
the impact on the three measures of a sensitivity test that
measures a reasonably possible change in a single nsk type

Principal risks

The Group uses a standard categonsation to group types of similar
nsks All such rnisks are subject to the same nsk management

and control framework, however they impact the business and its
financial performance in different ways The following sections
provide more detail on these rnisks and how they impact the Group

{a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk anses from the claims commitment that the
Group has made to its policyholders However, the timing and
the amount of the claim 1s uncertain and the insurance nsk
1s the exposure to loss arising from this claims experience
being different to that anticipated

Expenence shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative vanability about the expected
outcome will be In addition, a more diversiied portfolio Is less
likely to be affected by a change In any subset of the portfolio
The Group has developed its insurance underwriting strategres

to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each
of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population

of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome

The Group writes a diverse mix of insurance business across a
diverse group of people and businesses However, as the Group
has substantially written all of 1its business n the UK, results are
sensitive to demographic and economic changes ansing in the UK

The Group has two main types of Insurance nsk, life and general
Insurance and these are further outhned below

(1) Life insurance
The Group’s Iife insurance (‘Life’) activities primanily involve
the provision of Protection, Annuity, Pension and Equity

Release products These products provide key benefits to the
policyholder and their dependants, either secunng their income
during tmes of iliness and their retirement or providing financial
support to therr beneficianes in the case of loss of life

Once an insurance contract has been accepted a commitment
then arises to meet the future benefits that have been offered
to the policyholder {this may include certain guarantees e g
sum assured, guaranteed annuity options), which crystallises
at the point that the policyholder ultimately makes a claim

Life insurance contracts are long-term in nature and provide
policyholder benefits over a number of years In addition,

the ultimate liabiities that anse will vary by the type of different
contracts that are written For example, death claims are certain
for whole of life assurance and although the sum assured Is
fixed there are potential product factors that can influence this
(e g values are index linked), whereas other habilities are more
open ended e g annuities and enhanced annuities that are
ultimately dependent on how long someone lives

A number of key assumptions are made when determining

the future claims {iability that will anse from these policyholder
commitments These are based on prior expenence and latest
forecasts in trends and patterns and include the future life
expectancy and health of policyholders, the extent to which
contracts will be terminated early, how much insurance contract
administration costs will increase, growth in the value of
investment returns, interest rates and tax rates

Detalls of Ife insurance contract iabities and associated
valuation assumptions are disclosed in Notes 23 and
28 respectively

Differences in actual experience versus the onginal key
assumptions will give rise to different iabilities than onginally
anticipated Wherever these lhabilities are higher than estimated
they will give nse to potential life insurance risks exposures,
the primary life insurance rnisks prevalent within the Group's
products are descnbed below

Mortality and morbidity

Life Protection and Annuity business 1s exposed to changes
in life expectancy (mortality) and health expectancy
{morbidity) experience

Protection product habihties are, in the main, based on the
estimated Iife expectancy of the policyholders The potential

nisk 1s that more policyholders die earlier than expected and

this will give nise to increased habilities resulting from increased
death claims In the reverse situation, insurance contract liabilities
will reduce If policyholders live longer than expected

Annuity product lilabilities are also based on the estimated
life expectancy of the policyholders The potential nskais that
If more policyholders live longer than anticipated this will gwve
rise to increased habilities and reduced profits, ansing from
the additional regular income payments
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Certain of the Group's protection products also have habilities
which are based on the expected health of the policyholders

The nsk 1s that more policyholders fall 1ll or become incapacrtated
than anticipated and this will give nse to increased habilities

and reduced profits In the reverse situation, insurance contract
llabihties will reduce and profits increase If levels of policyholders
becoming 1ll or inpured decline

Mortalty and morbidity risk 1s managed In the Group through the
assessment of the nsk associated with individual policyholders
against a set of acceptance {underwriting) crnitena, which includes
an individual's medical histery, occupation, smoking and drinking
habits (I e indicators of life expectancy) The actual experience
of policyholders Is then regularly monitered to assess that the
underwriting criteria remain appropriate and that the level of risk
being assumed by the Group remains within its nsk appetite
Finaily, a proportion of mortality and morbidity risk 1s transferred
via reassunng policy commitments through agreements with
reinsurance companies

Persistency

In pricing life insurance business, the Group makes assumptions
as to how long the policyholder 1s likely to retain the product
This ts not an option for annuity policyhotders where there 1s ne
option to surrender the policy

The nisk s that policies do not remain in force as long

as expected, whether they are lapsed, declared as paid-up,
surrendered or transferred prior to maturity or expiry

In addition for equity release products persistency risk
anses from voluntary early redemptions prior to the end

of the loan contract

The level of persistency influences the ability to recover initial
costs of sale from the premiums and charges that relate to the
product Expenence shows that the nsk of a policy being lapsed/
surrendered or a loan being redeemed Is greater 0 the early years
but reduces significantly as ume passes Persistency risk arises
from the actual expenence being different to that assumed when
pricing the product

For certain Hertage products which incorporate significant
guarantees or options, the level of persistency infiuences the
estimated cost of the guarantees and options The risk for these
products 1s that a larger proportion of the portfolio remains
inforce 10 avail of these guarantees and options

Expense

In pricing life insurance business, assumpticns are made

as to how long the Group will need to continue to service and
maintatn the product and communicate with the policyholder

The Group 1s exposed to the nsk that the charges 1t deducts from
policyholder benefits are not sufficient to cover the full extent of
these expenses In addition the Group makes an assumption as
to how much this service and maintenance witl cost each year
Expense risk 1s the exposure from these assumptions on cost
and duratton varying from the assumed levels, with higher than
expected expenses reducing profits The Group manages this risk
through an on-going assessment of the factors that wil generate
addittonal expenses in the product servicing costs and the average
duration of life insurance pregucts

Life Insurance exposure

The Group’s exposure to life insurance nisk 1s captured in the
long-term insurance and investment contract habilites set out
below The products listed below cover the Group’s protection,
annuity, and pensions products and also the investment exposure
ansing from the Group’s savings and investment products

2013 2012
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net w
Group £m £m £m £m Em £m E
Whole life 1,599 {52) 1,547 1,524 45) 1,479 ﬂ::f
Endowment 610 - 610 679 - 679 2
Term Assurance 165 (144) 21 145 (118) 29 8,
Immediate and deferred annuity contracts 3,467 (68) 3,399 3,347 42) 3,305 -
UWP pensions and protected retirement plans 902 - 902 787 - 787
Critical lllness 63 {38) 25 62 (33) 29
Income protection 99 (66) 33 104 (56) 48
1SA 73 - 73 70 - 70
Other 115 {4) 111 110 (5) 105 o
7,093 (372) 6,721 6,828 {297) 6,531 c%
Long-term claims habtlities 38 - 38 42 - 42 é
Unit linked 1,254 - 1,254 965 - 965 2

8,385 (372) 8,013 7,835 {297) 7,538
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Life insurance risk sensitlvities

The table below sets out the impact on the long-term contract habilities (both investment and insurance contracts), the Unallocated
divistble surpius and Profit before tax for movements in key assumptions

Impact

on gross

fong term

tenpact Ensurance

on the and

Sensitivity analysls for the change in assumptlons used in long-term or'l";':::: "“a:;:,‘l’:::': '""::;';’::::
insurance and investment contract llabilitles before tax surplus Habillties
Increase In mortality rates by 10% - Non annuity products {4) {4) 39
Decrease 1in mortality rates by 10% — Annuity products {38) (38) 68
Increase In morhidity rates by 10% (24) (24) 78
Reduction n persistency by 25% 1 1 (45)
Increase In persistency by 25% {1) {1) 54
Increase In expenses by 10% (34) (34) 37

The persistency sensitivities are performed as multiplicative stresses to the persistency assumptions for all products and therefore
implicitly allow for offsets between products exposed to different directional sensitivities

(i} General insurance

The Group s general insurance activities primarly involve the
provision of motor, household, breakdown, pet and trave! products
to individuals and also commercial insurance cover to small and
medium sized enterprises (SME) In the sale of these products
the Group 15 committing to paying claims and therefore the size
and timing of this claim needs to be considered The nsk 1s that
the actual exposure varies from these assumptions The Group
manages this nsk through its underwriting strategy, reinsurance
arrangements and customer focused claims handling processes

For general insurance the risk to profits 1s from a significantly
higher leve! of claims in terms of frequency or value than
anticipated This could anse from significant weather events,
subsidence and large single claims ansing from either the motor
product (injury claims) or SME product (hatility and/or property
claims) The Group has established its nsk management process
to ensure actual versus expected claims experience 1s carefully
measured, monitored and controlled to ensure the risk 1S both
adequately reflected in the underwriting cntena and remains
within nsk appetite

Expenence shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be In additien, a more diversified portfolio 15 less
likely to be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio
The Group has developed its general insurance underwnting
strategy to diversify the type of insurance nsks accepted and

within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently
large population of nsks to reduce the variability of the
expected outcome

Property business {domestic and commercial) 1s exposed to
catastrophic nsks such as those resulting from storms or floods
as well as nsks such as subsidence The Group has entered

into reinsurance contracts which provide protection against
catastrophic weather events There have been no recent events
that have triggered the remsurance cover and so there I1s currently
no reinsurance claims asset held on this account

Motor business 15 exposed to the nisk of large bodily injury claims,
where the claim amounts can be significant due to the cost of
care reguired for the clasmant The Group has entered into excess
of loss reinsurance contracts which reduce its exposure to large
claims The Group's retention 1s £5m per claim with the first layer
of reinsurance between £6m and £10m being 68% placed,

{2012 £5m per claim, £6m-£10m layer 80% placed)

Commercial business 1s exposed to large indwidual property
losses and also to habiities ansing from employment and
commercial activities The Group has entered into reinsurance
contracts which provide protection against these habilities

The Group has historic Quota Share and Excess of Loss
remnsurance contracts which reduce the Group’s exposure
to large claims

The Group's exposure to general insurance nsk 1S captured in the insurance contract habilities set out below

2013 2012
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m im im £m
Moator 1,115 (117) 998 1,072 (118} 954
Commercial 169 {13) 156 153 {17) 136
Household 68 - 68 58 - 58
Other 6 - 8 4 - 4
1,368 {130} 1,228 1,287 {135) 1,152
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These contract habilities represent the estimated cost of

outstanding claims to policyholders The hability 15 calculated

largely from using the Group s own historc claims development
data and 1s onginally estimated based on the information provided
at the point of notification and based on this historic experience

However, the level of final claim payment may vary either because

new Information becomes avallable or because of limitations

inherent 1n using past claims development patterns to forecast
future claims development The factors that could cause an
alternative development include

s (Changes in actuarial processes and methodology,

e Changes in risk profile,

« Changes in underwnting, rating and policy conditions,

» Changes in legislation and regulation {e g Penodic Payment
Orders (‘PPOs"), Ministry of Justice reforms, changes to the
Ogden discount rate}, and

« Changes In other external factors {e g claims farming/
accident management firms)

it 1s therefore important that the impact of these items on claims
development 1s understood Whilst every effort has been made
to ensure the estimated hability appropriately allows for such
changes, there remains uncertainty in the eventual outcome

This uncertainty can change from year to year depending on the
timing and magnitude of these items

The Group has identified two specific areas of uncertainty that it

has explicitly allowed for within the estimated liabilities where the

outcome could be worse than the amount allowed for These are

¢ Uncertainty in the proportion of clams identified by the
Group as being likely to settie on a PPO basis, and

+ LUincertainty in relation to the Ogden discount rate

The hability estimate includes a specific allowance for claims
wentified as having the potential to settle on a PPQ basis

This allowance 15 based on the mean cost of claims derved
from a range of scenarios based on the PPO settlement rate for
all claims If afi of these claims settled as PPQs, the reserves
would detenorate by an estimated £8 6m from the position
shown above

The Ogden discount rate i1s set by the Lord Chancellor

It 15 currently 2 5% but a rewsion 1s under consideration
with & decision possible in 2014 Whilst there are many views
across the industry in terms of what the change should be,
the general consensus 15 that a change 1s now unlikely
Despite this, the claims provision has included an allowance
for a change n the Ogden discount rate, using a scenario
based approach as for PPOs The allowance 1s broadly
equivalent to a reduction in the discount rate to 2%

(2012 1 75%) If the discount rate was to reduce to

1 5%, the claims provision would detenorate by £10m

A reduction to 1% would lead to a detenoration of £19m
However, it 1S believed that a reduction in the discount rate
would reduce the propensity for claims to settle as PPOs,
therefore the actual iImpact may be lower than the figures
quoted here

LASPO was implemented in Aprid 2013 and there are early signs
that this 1s having a positive impact on personal imjury {Pl) claims
frequency and severnity However, the uncertainty in P! frequency
and severity 1S perceived to be higher than previous year ends due
to the short peniod of ime that has elapsed since this change

In addition to this, the Group has changed its claims system
during 2013, which has added an additional layer of uncertainty
due to further changes in claims development

The claims provision 1s also sensitive to the number and cost

of large motor claims (defined as greater than £1m), which have
been incurred but not reported and reserved A number of large
claims from expired nsks are typically expected to be identified in
the future, either from being newly reported or from existing claims
Increasing in magnitude above the £1m threshold The claims
proviston allows for £33m of late reported/reserved large claims
above £1m Therefore, If seven new claims were reported, each
with £5m above the £1m threshold, for example, this would tead
to a £2m detenoration In the reserves, whergas six new clams
of this type would lead to a £3m improvement
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The tables below reflect the cumulative incurred claims including both claims notified and incurred but net reperted (‘IBNR’) for each
successive accident year at each Statement of Financral Position date, together with the cumulative payments to date The Group aims
to maintain appropriate reserves in order to protect against adverse future claims experience and developments

Analysis of claims development — 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
gross of relnsurance £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Initial estimate of gross provision 501 522 551 560 540 607 771 906 1,086 1,075

One year later 487 524 528 513 540 589 823 913 1,039

Two years later 466 495 505 489 500 589 839 899

Three years later 450 472 490 486 490 588 833

Four years later 438 463 477 488 491 603

Five years later 435 457 478 492 487

Six years later 436 458 aA77 494

Seven years later 436 455 478

Eight years {ater 436 460

Nine years later 436

Current estimate of 436 460 478 494 487 603 833 899 1,039 1075 6,804
cumulative claims

Cumulative payments to date (429) (452) (471) (466} (470) (548) {718) (745) (736) (463) (5,498}
Liabthty recognised in the Statement

of Financial Position for 2004 to

2013 accident years 7 8 7 28 17 55 115 154 303 612 1,306
Liabihity recogmsed in the Statement
of Financial Position in respect of
prior accident years

33
Claims handling provision 19
Gross general insurance claims
labilities as at 31 December 2013 1,358
Analysis of claims development - 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
net of reinsurance £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m £m
Inihal estimate of net provision 448 484 513 506 507 584 762 897 1,061 1,055
One year later 437 474 475 463 483 578 803 897 1,022
Two years later 418 439 467 440 464 565 819 891
Three years later 407 430 451 441 457 562 805
Four years later 393 424 444 430 458 577
Five years later 392 422 442 431 454
Six years later 393 421 441 431
Seven years later 389 420 442
Eight years later 391 422
Nine years later 390

Current estimate of 390 422 442 431 454 577 805 891 1022 1,055 6,489
cumulative claims

Cumulative payments to date (389) (418) {436) (425) (442) {534) (711} (743) (736) (463) (5,297)
Liability recognised in the Statement

of Financial Position for 2004 to

2013 accident years 1 4 6 6 12 43 94 148 286 592 1,192
Liability recognised in the Statement

of Financial Position in respect of

prior acaident years 17
Claims handling provision 19
Net general insurance claims

Habillties as at 31 December 2013 1,228
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(b} Financial markets risk

As a result of the insurance, investment and retirement products
offered to policyholders the Group 1S exposed to financial markets
through the investment of premiums and investment lump sums
In vanous investment assets such as equities, gits, corporate
bonds and property Investing in these assets exposes the
Group to nsk, collectively described as financial markets nsk
Details of investment contract iabilities and the fair value
estimation of current investment assets are disclosed

in Notes 18 and 19 respectively

On page 41 financial markets risk was defined as the risk that
anses from adverse fluctuations or increased volatility in asset
values, asset income or interest rates This includes credit
spread widening The Group manages these nsks through
aligning the investment strategy, asset allocation and performance
benchmarks with the Group's nsk appetite and utiising asset
llabihity matching and stochastic modelling technigues These
actions aim to match the nsks ansing from the habilities under
the Group's insurance and investment contracts with the nsks
inherent in Its assets and the capital avallable to ensure the
Group 1s able to meet policyholder commitments when they fall
due and to achieve a sufficient return for members

In addiion to the actions summansed above the Group may

also look to use derivative instruments particularly to assist in
hedgmg policyholder guaranteed options and, where cost effective,
to transfer nisks 1t believes are either unrewarded or which 1t
believes can be better managed by a third party For example,
derivatives are used to reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest
rates, exchange rates and for efficient portfollo management
purposes The principal derivauves used for this function are
Interest rate contracts (including interest rate swaps and options),
forward foreign exchange contracts and equity derivatives (index
futures and options) respectively The Group does not hold
derivatives for investment purposes, they are held purely as a nsk
management technique to manage market nsk exposures within
its investment holdings (see Note 17 on how these are used)

The Group 1S not exposed to financial markets risk in respect

of assets held to cover unit linked liabilities as these nisks are
borne by the holders on the contracts concerned, except to the
extent that income from the fund based management charges
levied on these contracts varies directly with the value of the
underlying assets Such assets are, however, prudently managed
In order to meet policyholders’ nisk and reward expectations

in addition, regulatory requirements prescribe the type and
quality of assets that can be held to support these liabilties

The key types of financial markets risk te which the Group I1s
exposed are set out In more detal! in the following paragraphs

i) Asset performance risk

Asset performance nsk 1s the nisk that the fair value or future

cash flows of an asset or hability will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices, other than those ansing from interest rate or
currency nsks Those changes may be caused by factors specific
to the asset or liability or 1ts 1ssuer or by factors affecting all
similar assets or habilitiles (1 € systemic)

There 1s a range of assets that the Group and Society can invest
In to achieve the desired levels of capital growth and income
performance The performance charactenstics and the associated
nsks vary by the different types of investment assets, and the
Group 15 pnmanly exposed to asset performance rnisk arsing from
Its mvestment in equities, property, gilts and corporate bonds

Equity price risk

The Group 1s exposed to equity price nisk from daily fluctuations
in the market values of the equity portfolio These assets are
used to support contractua! habilities ansing from investment
and long-term insurance contracts For Investment and long-term
linked insurance contracts the price movements are matched
with corresponding movements in contractual obligations

For participating insurance contracts the aim is to achieve growth
n excess of the obligations For general insurance contracts,
equities are held to achieve an investment return

The nisks from investing 1In equities are managed by investing

In a diverse portfolio of high quality securities ensuring that
holdings are diversified across industries and concentrations

In any one company or industry are limited by parameters
established by the Investment Committee In addition the

Group may use derivatives to reduce the level of equity pnice nisk

Decreases in the market price of equities will negatively Impact
the profits and capital of the Group The impacts of an increase
or decrease n equity prices by 20% can be found in the summary
of market nsk sensitivities shown below

Property price risk

The Group 1s subject to property price nsk due to holdings

of investment properties in a vanety of locations in the UK

{see Note 32 for investment property disclosure) and its exposure
to the residential property market through its equity release
products, where sustained underperformance 1n UK residential
property pnces could result in proceeds on sale being exceeded
by the mortgage debt at the date of redemption (see Note 16 for
disclosures relating to loans secured on residential property)

investment property exposure 1S assumed primarily in connection
with the investment and long-term linked insurance contracts
where the exposure to the pnce movements assists In matching
the corresponding movements In contractual obligations

For participating insurance contracts the aim is to achieve
growth In excess of the obligattons and an exposure to property
Investment can help to achieve this The associated nsk

1s mitigated by Investing in a diverse portfolo of high quality
properties and ensurning the level of investment remains within
lmits established by the Investment and Risk Committees
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For Equity Release products the nsk 1s managed through
limits on the maximum loan to value ratio and seeking
to hmit concentrations tn particular geographic areas

In addition, monitoning of actual expernience in house
prices versus expected 1s undertaken

Decreases in the market price of properties will negatively
impact the profits and capital of the Group/Society The impacts
of an increase or decrease in property prices by 12 5% on the
holdings of investment properties can be found in the summary
of market nsk sensitivities shown below

Corporate bond price risk (Credit spread risk)

The credit spread nsk represents the nsk of adverse fluctuation
in the values of assets and habilittes due to changes in the level
of corporate bond credit spreads This represents the main
market nsk exposure of the Group’'s investments In Investment
grade corporate bonds

A wideming of corporate bond spreads over and above

risk-free yields witl lead to a fall in the fair value of the Group's
portfolio of corporate bonds and vice versa For investment
and long-term linked insurance contracts this movement is
matched with corresponding movements in contractual habilities,
whereas In the general insurance business the habilites are
undiscounted and so unaffected in current value by changes
In credit spreads meaning that the change in asset value will
be reflected in profit The Group momtors credit spread nsk by
regularly reviewing 1its exposure to corporate honds by sector
(e g financial or non-financial), credit rating and duration and
through its asset and lhability matching tools

Widening in credit spreads, over and above nsk-free yields,

will cause bond values to decrease and negatively impact the
profits and capital of the Group/Society The impacts of changes

In credit spreads (widening by 100 basis points (1%) and narrowing
by 50 basis points {0 5%)) can be found in the summary of market
risk sensitivities shown on page 120

il) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 1s the risk that the fair value or cash flows

of a financial instrument will vary as market rates of interest vary
For the Group, interest rate nsk primarily anses from holding
assets and liabilities — actual or notional — with different maturity
or reprncing dates, creating exposure to change in the tevel of
interest rates, whether real or notional it matnly arises from the
Group’s Investments in debt and fixed-income secunties, including
gilts, and therr relative value placed on insurance liabiliies

In addition, 1t also anses in certain products sold by the Group
and the features, including guarantees (e g surrender values,
annuity options and minimum surrender and maturity values),
which can lead to claim values being higher than the value of
the backing assets, where interest rates change

The Group manages Interest rate nsk using performance
benchmarks with appropriate durations and, In some instances,
using dernvatives to achieve a closer cash flow match

Exposure to interest rate nsk 1s monitored using several
techniques, including scenarno testing, stress testing and asset
llability duration control  In the case of the latter, the Group
monitors interest rate rnisk by calculating the mean duration

of the investment portfolio and the associated labilities

The mean duration 1s an indicator of the sensitivity of the assets
and liabilities to changes in current interest rates The mean
duration of the habilities 1s determined by means of projecting
expected cash flows from the contracts using best estimates

of mortality and voluntary terminations The mean duration

of the assets 1s calculated in a consistent manner During 2013
the Group managed this risk through an active use of gilt yield
hedges, in the form of contracts for differences

A reduction in interest rates increases the current market value
of fixed interest assets, but reduces future reinvestment income
rates The value of habilities Is also increased when interest rates
fall as the discount rate used n their calculation will be reduced
An Increase in rates has an opposite effect

fil) Forelgn currency risk

The Group only operates within the UK and 1s therefore not
exposed to currency exposures within its normal trading activities
However, the Group's investment strategy and policies allow for a
limited level of investment in overseas markets, via both equities
and fixed interest secunties

The risk to the Group is that the fair value or future cash flows
of an overseas investment asset will change as a result of
changes In foreign exchange rates Currency nsk 1s managed by
the use of exposure hmits and authonsation controls operated
with the Group's nsk management framework The investment
management agreement between the Group and the Group's asset
manager, Threadneedle Asset Management Limited, specifies
the limits for holdings 1n overseas investment asset categories
Asset allocation imits are set, which ensure that each fund

has an appropnate mix of assets and 15 not over or under
exposed to a particular overseas asset category or specific
investment The Funds Management Group within the Society
monitors the actual overseas asset allocation and performance
against benchmarks with oversight provided by Group ALCO

and the Investment Committee
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The table below summarises the Group's expasure, after hedging, to foreign currency exchange nisk in sterling

2013 2012
Euro us Dellar Yen Other Total Euro US Doliar Yen Other Total
£m £m £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m
Derivatives (36} (71) - (6) {113) (35} (47) - {6) (88)
Equity secunties 85 200 45 66 386 88 137 61 104 320
Debt securities 20 69 - - 89 24 43 - - 67
QOther investments - - - - - 15 - - - 15
Cash and cash equivalents 19 1 - - 20 11 [3] - - 17
88 199 45 60 392 103 139 61 a8 401

A strengthening of the value of sterling agamst the foreign
currency (increase in exchange rates), in which the investment
asset Is denominated, will lead to a devaluation of the asset value
and any associated income flows A weakening of the valtue of
sterling against the foreign currency will have the reverse impact

The sensitivity of investment assets to a 10% increase/
decrease in Euro and US Dollar exchange rates, net of
derwvatives, 1s £9m (2012 £10m) and £20m (2012 £14m)
respectively In determining the percentage rates to use in this
sensitivity analysis the movements in actual market rates of Euro
and US Dollars during 2013 were taken into account The above
table incorporates all material currency risk to Profit before tax
Therefore, a 10% Increase/decrease across alt currencies

could impact Profit before tax by up to £39m (2012 £40m)

Some foreign debt secunties are denominated in sterling
so bear no currency rnisk and have not been included within
the above table

iv) Investment concentration

Investment concentration risk anses through exposure to
particular asset types, geographical markets, industry sectors,
groups of business undertakings or similar activiies The Group
may suffer losses In the investment portfolio as a result of over
exposure to particular sectors engaged in simitar activities or
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political and other conditions The Group's trading
activities are UK-based and associated insurance and investment

contract habihities are impacted by the UK marketplace and hence
there 1s a high concentration in corresponding matching UK
Investment assets

The Group invests n a portfolio of assets and seeks to
maximise portfolio expected return for a given amount of portfolio
nsk, or equivalently minimise nsk for a given level of expected
return, by carefully choosing the proportions of various assets
The Investment Committee sets the Group's investment strategy
and recommends to the Board the policy and imits required
Responstbility for implementation 1s delegated to the Group's
Chief Investment Officer and Investment Management Group,
with day to day investment activities being undertaken by

the Group's Investment manager, Threadneedle Asset
Management (TAM)

The investment management agreement between the Group and
TAM specifies the imits for holdings In certain asset categones
Asset allocation and performance benchmarks are set, which
ensure that each fund has an appropriate mix of assets and

1s not over or under exposed 1o a particular asset category or
specific investment The Funds Management Group monitors the
actual asset allocation and performance against benchmarks with
oversight provided by Group ALCO and the Investment Committee

Eurozone exposure

The Group has some exposure to the following Eurozone
countnes The table below shows the Group's exposure
by country of incorporation of the counterparty at

31 December 2013

2013 2012

Sovereign  Non soverelgn Total Soverzign  Non sovereign Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

lretand - 106 106 - 333 333
Italy - 40 40 - 36 36
Portugal - 2 2 - 3 3
Spain - 116 116 - 90 20
France 2 413 415 - 323 323
Other Eurozone 19 895 914 - 872 872
Total 21 1,572 1,593 = 1,657 1,657

The Group has no exposure to either Greece or Cyprus Non-sovereign exposure Includes £92m (2012 £74m) of subordinated debt
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Summary of market risk sensitivitles

The table below sets out the impact on long-term contract hab:lities (both investment and insurance contracts), the Unallocated
divisible surplus and Profit before tax for movements in sectors of the market that the Group s invested in, net of denvatives

Impact

on gross

long term

Impact Insurance

on the and

on P.;nﬂt divisible contmc;

before tax aurplus llabilitias

Sensitivity analysls to movements In key market sectors £m £m £m
Equity values fall by 20% (36) 27) (499)
Equity values increase by 20% a1 32 493
Property values fall by 12 5% (20) (20) {2)
Property values increase by 12 5% 21 20 -
Credit spreads fall by 50bps 55 50 55
Credit spreads increase by 100bps (101) (92) {100)
Fixed interest yieids fali by S0bps (1) - 318
Fixed interest yields increase by 100bps 4 2 {545)

In determining the percentage rates to use In the sensitivity analysis reference has been made to those used for internal reporting within

the Group

Asset values and, where approprate, asset shares are adjusted to reflect the change in each sensitivity Future policy related liabiities
are recalculated using these revised values and, where appropnate, economic scenanos generated by an asset mode! calibrated

to the revised risk-free rate

(c) Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s defined as the risk of loss If another party fails to
perform its obligations or fails to perform them in a timely fashion
Exposure to credit risk may anse in connection with a single
transaction or an aggregation of transactions (not necessarily

the same type) with & single counterparty

The Group encounters credit counterparty risk from different
sources, firstly within the business activities associated with

11s insurance, investment and retirement products and secondly
in the financial assets held in the Group's investment portfohio

Credit counterparty nsk 1s managed via a Group policy and hmits
Group counterparty exposures are momtored by Group ALCO,
with ultimate oversight of credit counterparty nsk being
undertaken by the Risk Committee

The principal credit counterparty risks within the Group are
as follows

Insurance sales counterparties

In the hfe business and general insurance broker division, sales
are conducted by and premiums are collected via intermedianes
{(pnimarily IFAs and brokers) and there 15 a credit nsk exposure
to these counterparties on the outstanding premiums from the
contracts that have been written through these sales channels
The creditworthiness of the intermedianes 1s assessed and
credit imits are used to manage any potential concentration
nsk associated with individual counterparties

In addition, general insurance policyholders who purchase motor
and home insurance products directly from V= have the option
to take out premium finance, provided they meet the quahfying
critena, and there 1s an exposure to outstanding premiums due

from these policyholders The creditworthiness is assessed
at the time of sale and outstanding premiums are monitored
and collected via a dedicated budget accounts function

Recewables due from policyholders, agents and brokers are
shown in the credit nsk exposure table on the following page
under insurance recewables The concentrations of credit ask
with respect to insurance recewvables are imited due to the size
and spread of the Group's trading base No further credit risk
provision 15 therefore required in excess of the normal provision
for doubtful recewvables

Insurance claim recoverles counterparties

Credit exposures also arise within general Insurance motor and
home claims, where claims expense recovenes are due from other
insurers policyholders who are at fault for any repairs expense
suffered by the Group's policyholders This also occurs in reverse
with habtlities that the Group owes other insurers Where the

net position with another general insurer results in momes being
due to the Group, a credit exposure arises These exposures are
managed via a dedicated recoveries team and an industry wide
compensation scheme 1s 1n place to provide cover for default by
an individual insurer

Relnsurance counterparties

Once iInsurance contracts have been written, both the life and
general Insurance businesses use reinsurance agreements to
transfer an element of potential Insurance risk exposures from
contract habilities This does not, however, discharge the Group's
lability as pnimary insurer If a reinsurer fails to pay a reinsurance
claim, the Group remains hable for the payment to the policyholder
Te manage this exposure the creditworthiness of reinsurers 1s
considered by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation
of any contract, which 15 then regularly reviewed Group exposures
are regularly monitored by Group ALCO
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Equlty release mortgage counterparties

The retirement business also provides an equity release product
and hence this business I1s exposed to credit nsk arising from
mortgage loans provided This nisk 1s managed by using the
residential property as security against the loan, assessment

of the rnisk and maintaining a low loan 1o value ratio Note 16
provides further disclosure on leans secured on residential
property and provisions for ‘No Negative Equity Guarantees’
There have been no negative equity claims in the past in refation
to loans secured on residential property

Investment counterparties

The remaining credit counterparty nsk arnses from the assets
held in the investment portfolio The nsk 1s that the investment
counterparty enters financial difficulties and the far value of the
asset diminishes or the income stream (e g dividends or interest
payments) 1s not paid, alternatively the counterparty becomes
nsolvent and the value of the asset 15 written off

The investment portfolio contains a range of assets, including
equities, corporate bonds and other fixed income securittes and
cash deposits The credit counterparty nisk poiicy stipulates
approved counterparties, permitted investments and geographical
terntories, as well as detalling specific asset class exposure
limits These are implemented within the investment management
agreement with TAM The policy and agreements afso require that
asset holdings are within regulatory imits that restrict excessive
concentrations with individual counterparties or with particular
asset classes

In addition, the Group uses denvatives to transfer elements of
financial markets nsk exposures Where possible, significant
counterparty exposures are mitigated by the use of collateral

For overthe-counter derivative transactions undertaken by the
Group, collateral ts received from the counterparty The collateral
can be sold or repledged by the Group and 1s repayable if the
contract terminates or the contract’s fair value decreases

At 31 December 2013, the fair value of such collateral held was
£47m (2012 £65m) No collateral recewved from the counterparty
has been sold or repledged (2012 £nil) In addition the Group
has pledged £61m {2012 £67m) of corporate bonds as collateral
in relation to cash flow swaps

The fair value of the denivative 1s matched by collateral receved
from the counterparty, which increases or reduces in line with the
contract's fair value Subject to collateral value disputes, which we
seek 1o resalve with minimum delay, the extent of the denvative
credit nsk exposure 1s hmited to the fair value movement on a day
to day basis which 1s below the mimimum transfer amounts within
the Credit Support Annex

For corporate bond holdings, exposures are also monitored

by industry sector and by credit rating In order to mimimise

its exposure to credit nsk the Group invests pnmanly in mgher
graded assets, rated BBB and above

The tables below show the credit profile of the Group’s assets
The credit risk profile of the Society 1s matenally consistent
with that of the Group

AAA AA A BBB Below BBB Not rated Total
Credit nsk exposure 2013 £m £m £m £m im £m £m
Debt and other fixed income securities 751 2,237 1,702 1,221 90 586 6,587
Loans secured on residential property - - - - - 493 493
Other financial assets held at FYTPL - - - - - 3 3
Short-term deposits 9 130 351 141 13 36 680
Insurance recevables - 9 1 - - 213 223
Other receivables - - - - - 65 65
Derivative assets - - - - - a7 47
760 2,376 2,054 1,362 103 1,443 8,098

Reinsurance assets
— non linked - 361 92 1 1 13 468
— linked - 47 - - - - a7
760 2,784 2,146 1,363 104 1,456 8613
AAA AA A BBB Beiow BBB Not rated Tota!
Credit risk exposure 2012 £m £m £m £m E£m £m £m
Debt and other fixed income securities 3,006 402 1,712 1,126 34 33 6,313
Loans secured on residential property — - - - - 415 415
Other financial assets held at FVTPL - - - - - 5 5
Deposits with credit institutions - - - - - 15 15
Short-term deposits - 37 250 - - 51 338
Insurance recevables - 9 3 - - 215 227
Other recewables - - - - - 88 88
Derivative assets - - - - - 71 71
3,006 448 1,965 1,126 34 893 7,472

Reinsurance assets
- non linked - 285 90 1 - 36 412
— hnked - 35 - — - - 35
3,008 768 2,055 1,127 34 929 7,919
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4 Risk management and control (continued)
Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying value of #s financial assets at
each Statement of Financial Position date I the carrying value
of a financial asset 1s impatred, the carrying value s reduced
through a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
As at 31 December 2013 £1m (2012 £1m}was impaired
which primarily relates to receivables where there 1s no
realistic prospect of recovery

The table below provides information regarding the maximum
credit nsk exposure to financial assels, together with the extent
to which they are due, overdue and impared The table also
Iliustrates the ageing of financial assets that are overdue but
not impaired

Total past Neilther

31to 61 to due but Past due past due
Age analysis of assets past <30 days 60 days 90 days *>90 days  not mpaired  and impalred  ner Impalred Total
due but not impaired 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and other receivables - - - - - - 65 65
Insurance receivables 8 1 - 1 10 1 212 223
8 1 - 1 10 1 277 288

Total past due Neither

31to0 8l to but Past due past due
Age analysis of assets past <30 days 60 days Q0 days >@0 days oot impawed  andimpawed  nar unpaved Tatal
due but not impared 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and other receivables - - - - - - 103 103
Insurance receivables 5 4 2 6 17 1 209 227
5 4 2 6 17 1 312 330

{d} Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk 1s the nsk that the Group cannot make payments
as they become due because there are insufficient assets

in cash form

The Group encounters potential hquidity risk exposures from its
different business activities It principally anses from its insurance
and investment contracts and the timing of the associated
policyholder commitments In the general insurance business
there 1s the potential for iIncreased demand for cash, above normal
clamms expense patterns, for example to meet adverse UK weather
events In the life business increased demands for cash can also
arnse from events such as higher instances of death/sickness
claims or mass surrenders/lapses of policies In addition, the
Group uses denvatives to transfer potential exposures on financial
markets risks and certain derivative contracts, for example,
interest rate swaps can result in addittonal collateral calls

Liquidity 1s maintained at a prudent level, with a buffer to cover
contingencies ncluding the provision of temparary Iguidity

to subsidiary companies A Group Liquidity Risk Policy and
assoclated standards have been set to mamtain sufficient hquid
assets At Group there 1s a hguidity nsk appetite statement which
reguires that sufficient hquid resources are maintained to cover
net cash outflows both on a business as usual basis and under
stressed conditrons This 1s captured i a hiquidity cover ratio

and 1s monstored by the Group ALCO
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4 Risk management and control {continued)

{d) Liquidity risk (continued) The matunty of the financial and reinsurance assets
The nisk exposure 1s managed using several methods and of the Group has been disclosed within the individual notes
technmiques, which include, to the financial statements
+» Maintaining forecasts of cash requirements and adjusting
investment management strategies as appropriate to meet The table below summanses the matunty profile of the
these requirements, both in the short and long term, financial habities, insurance and investment contract Labilities
+» Holding sufficient assets in investments which are readily and the non-participating value of in-force business of the
marketable in a suffictently short timeframe to be able Group The results are based on the remaining undiscounted
to settle labihties as these fall due, contractual obligations, except for norn-unit inked fong-term
» Forecasting additional cash demands under stressed Insurance contracts, participating investment contracts and the
conditions and management actions to be taken to iguidate non-participating value of in-force business, for these 1items the
sufficient assets to meet the increased demands, and matunity profiles are determined based on the estimated timing
« Appropriate matching of the matunties of assets and of the discounted net cash flows
llabiliies The Group undertakes asset and hability
management to ensure that the duration of liabilties For investment contract liabihties, a maturity analysis based on the
Is matched by assets earliest contractual repayment date would present all the habilities

as due on the earliest period of the table (within one year) as
these ophions can be exercised immediately by the policyholder

Group
Matunty profile of financial, insurance and Within 1 year 13 years 3-5years  Over 5 years Ho term Unit linked Total
investment contract liabilities 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract habilities 1,136 1,343 978 4,533 - 5 7,995
Non-participating value of in-force business {(13) {25) (23) (190) - (22) (273)
Investment contract iabilities 24 15 40 420 - 1,249 1,748
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 479 - - - - - 479
Provisions 8 6 2 - - - 16
Financiai habilities
- Derwvative financial instruments 1 - - 79 - - 80
- Subordinated habilities - - - 356 - - 356
— Other financial habilities 10 - - 36 - - 46
Insurance payables 38 - - - - - 38
Trade and other payables 210 2 2 87 - - 301
1,893 1,341 999 5,321 - 1,232 10,786
Group
Matunty profile of financial, insurance and within 1 year 13years 35years  Over 5years No term Unit inked Total
investment contract habilities 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract habilities 910 1,456 961 4,369 - 6 7,702
Non-participating value of in-force business {7} (18) (A7) (178) - (33) {253)
Investment contract habihities 18 i5 35 393 - 959 1,420
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 504 - - - - - 504
Provisions 60 7 - - - - 67
Financial habilities
- Derivative finangial instruments - - - 51 - - 51
- Subordinated lrabilities - - - 10 - - 10
— Other financial habtlities 65 - - - - - 65
Insurance payables 45 - - - - - 45
Trade and other payables 190 2 2 89 - - 283
1,785 1,462 981 4,734 - 932 9,894

For investment and long-term hnked insurance contracts (unit linked) the Group matches all the assets on which the unit prices are
based with assets in the portfolio The Group 1S responsible for ensunng there 1s sufficient hquidity within the asset portfolio to enable
habihities to unit inked policyholders to be met as they fall due
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4. Risk management and controi {continued)

Society
Maturlty profile of financial, insurance and Within 1 year 1 3 years 3 Gyears  Over 5 years No term Unlt linked Total
investment contract liabilities 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract liabilities 531 942 775 4,365 - 5 6,618
Non-partictpating value of in-force business {13) {25) (23) {190} - (22) (273)
Investment contract llabilities 24 15 40 420 - 1,249 1,748
Provisions 6 5 2 - - - 13
Financial labilittes
- Dernwvative financial instruments 1 - - 79 - - 80
- Subordinated liabilities - - - 346 - - 346
- Other financial liabihties - - 1 55 - - 56
Insurance payables 23 - - - - - 23
Trade and other payables 166 - - - - - 166
738 937 795 5,075 - 1,232 8,777
Soclety
Maturity profile of financial, snsurance and Within 1 year 13 years 3Byears  Over b years Mo term Unit inked Total
investment contract habilities 2012 £m £m £m £m £m im £m
insurance contract liabilities 489 915 785 4,199 - 6 6,394
Non-participating value of in-force business {7) (18} (17) (178} - {33) (253)
Investment contract hiabilities 18 15 35 393 - 259 1,420
Provistons 58 5 - - - - 63
Financial habthties
- Dervative financial instruments - - - 51 - - 51
- Other financial iabiities 65 1 1 14 - - 81
Insurance payables 26 - - - - - 26
Trade and other payables 138 - - - - - 138
787 918 804 4,479 - 932 7,920
(e) Operatlonal risk Crime

Operational risk 1s defined as the potential for 1oss resulting from
inadequate or failled internal processes, people and systems or
from external events It 1s inherent to every part of the business
and covers a wide spectrum of 1Issues Senior management are
responsible for ensuring that the materal operational risks as
relevant to thetr area of responsibilities are identified, assessed
and managed using the approach as outlined in the Group's
Enterprise Risk Management Framework A formal attestation
process provides assurance about the effectiveness of the overall
control environment and reports on any matenal exceptions

Operational risk 18 unrewarded and 1s therefore inherently
unattractive Consequently, the Group seeks to minimise
exposure to operational risk as far as it 1s cost-effective
to do so The Group will always seek to upheld its brand
1mage as 'Britain’s best loved insurer’ with customers,
employees and other external parties and the Group has
no appetite whatsoever for regulatory weaknesses

or failings that lead to censure actions

The Group uses a number of categones under which
operational risk and 1ts management can be considered
and these are outlined in the following paragraphs

The Group 1s potentially exposed to the risk of internal fraud,
claims-related fraud and external fraud by third parties

The nsk of internal fraud 1s managed through a number of controls
including background checks on employees prior to recruitment,
segregation of duties and effective system access controls with
regular review of access nghts The Group has arrangements

In place by which employees may, in confidence, raise concerns
about possible improprieties, together with arrangements for the
proportionate and independent investigation of such matters
Claims-related fraud 1s managed by processes designed to fully
validate claims and ensure that only genuine claims are settled
Systematic anti-fraud monitoring techmques are deployed to
detect external fraud activity

Financlal processes

The Group needs to ensure that 1t has robust processes governing
financiat reporting, planning and budgeting, asset and expense
management, trading and investment activity, treasury, pncing

and transaction processing The nsk 1s managed through a
number of controls which include effective budgetary control and
reconciliation processes, segregation of duties, defined authority
limits and effective system access controls with regular review of
access nghts

Change management

The Group uses robust project management disciplines to prevent
mismanagement of change programmes which would otherwise
impact business delivery or the contrel environment



Qur Accounts 125

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2013

4 Risk management and control {continued)
Business Interruption

The Group 15 potentially exposed to disruption of business
activities arising from system and technology outages and loss
of access to buildings or the normal business environment
The risk 1s controlled by the maintenance and regular testing
of business recovery plans, by effective management of the
physical securnty of office bulldings and availability of back-up
systems and of contingency sites

Legal and regulatory

The Group needs to ensure it complies with its legal and
contractual obhigations and could potentially be exposed to
losses ansing from unenforceable or unfair contracts or to costs
of litigation from dissatisfied customers Legal and Compliance
departments help to ensure the monitonng of emerging
legislative/regulatory change and comphance with existing laws/
regulations The Group takes steps to ensure that contract terms
apphicable to customers and third-party supphiers are carefully
drafted and are subject to a comprehensive sign-off procedure,
including sigr-off by legal experts

iT

Naturally, the Group 1s reliant on the integrity and
performance of its IT systems to underpin its operational
activittes The Group protects itself from under-performance/
failure of systems and from obsolescence or under-delivery
of systems by robust system testing and capacity monitoring,
regular review of systems capability versus business
requirements and by maintenance and regular testing

of busingss recovery plans

Employees

The Group needs to comply with employment, healtth and safety
laws or agreements and so protect itself from lingation or claims
ansing from employment practices It aiso needs to ensure that
1t has adequate numbers of fit-for-purpose employees to support
Hs operational activities and the products and services that it
provides to customers The Group has detailled HR procedures,
accompanied by the provision of relevant training to staff to
ensure comphance with laws/agreements Employees are subject
to background checks prior to recruitment and there are job
descriptions and annual perfoarmance reviews for all staff

There 1s regular review of attrition rates across the business

and there are takeover procedures and succession planning

for sermor management roles

Sourcing/outsourcing

The Group needs to ensure that it selects wisely when appointing
third parties for the delivery of specific services and supplies

To ensure that the chosen suppliers are fit-for-purpose and can
provide the service that both the Group and its customers would
reasonably expect, there are due diligence checks on potential
suppliers and resultant contracts are subject to a comprehense
review and sign-off procedure, including sign-off by legal experts
Detalled service level agreements are drawn up to clearly specify
the expectations for the standard of service that the Group would
expect to receive and there 1s peniodic review of the business
continuity arrangements of the third party to ¢check on its ability/
speed to be able to continue to provide the desired service
capability in the event of business interruption

Products and markets

The Group needs to ensure that it designs, prices and sells
products that meet clear customer needs and are sold to the
right target group, are priced farrly whilst allowing margin for profit
and are supported by product hterature that is fair, clear and not
misleading and by systems that can faithfully handle the entire
Ife cycle of the product, from new business sale right through

to claim/matunty/termination

Design of new products and changes to existing products

are subject to robust new product approvals and pricing
procedures Product literature 1s subject to a comprehensive
Iiterature sign-off procedure, including sign-off by legal experts
There 1s also a timely post-implementation review process to
check that the target market 1s being reached Applications for
Insurance are subject, as appropriate, to detailled underwnting
guidehnes and underwnters have authonty imits All resultant
business 15 captured on systems that are subject to systems
controls and quahty checking

There 1s client/policy verification at outset and at varnous
transactional points through to claim/maturity stage
to protect against fraudulent activity

There 1s constderable comphance monitoring undertaken
In this area to ensure that we are conduct nsk comphant

Customers

To ensure that we meet our legal, regulatory and business
obligations to individual and groups of customers, we need

to ensure that there 1s adequate disclosure of information to
customers both at the outset and dunng the lifetime of theirr policy
We also take careful steps to ensure that we maintain appropriate
and secure records and copies of documentation and that records
are only retained for the necessary duration

There 1s considerable traiming of appropniate customer-facing
staff to mimimise any exposure to mis-selling and we ensure that
we clearly segregate clients’ money from the Group's money

To ensure we deal with 1Ssues In a courteous, timely and fair
manner we have detatled complaints handling procedures and
we undertake complaints analysis to spot any patterns of
weakness and so improve aspects of our processes and
procedures as and where necessary

There 1s constderable comphance monitonng undertaken
In this area to ensure that we are conduct nsk compliant

Information security

Adequate security of information 1s vital and the Group takes
considerable steps to minimise exposure to corruption or erasure
of information, to prevent abuse of systems access rnights and

to protect against the loss or inappropnate disclosure of data
The Group has stnngent informaticn security requirements
supported by effective system access controls with regular review
of access nights for leavers/joiners There Is also the provision

of relevant training to staff to ensure that all are aware of the
Group’s expectations and requirements in this subject area
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Performance

The notes included within this section focus on the performance and results of the Society and Group Information on the income
generated, benefits and ¢laims paid, expenditure incurred and mutual bonus declared are presented here

5 Net earned premiums

Accounting for net earned premums q
Long-term insurance and participating Investment contracts

Regular premiums on long-term insurance and participating investment contracts are recognised as income when due for payment

For single premium business, recognition occurs on the date from which the policy 1s effective Reinsurance premiums payable are
accounted for when due for payment

General Insurance contracts

General Insurance premiums written reflect business coming into force during the year Earned premium is written premium adjusted
for unearned premium Unearned premium 1s that proportion of & premium written in a year that relates to peneds of sk after the
Statement of Financial Position date Unearned prerums are calculated on a time apportionment basis The proportion attnbutable
to subsequent periods 15 deferred as a provision for unearned premiums

Non-participating investment contracts

Premiums and claims relating to non-participating investment contracts are not recogrsed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
but are recorded as contributions to and deductions from the non-participating investment contract habilities recorded In the Statement
of Financial Position

Group Society
2013 2012 2013 2012
Gross earned premiums £m £m £m £m
Long-term Insurance and Investment contracts — participating business
Investments and savings - single premium B85 62 85 62
Pensions and annuities - single premium 1i 11 i1 11
Investments and savings - regular premium 36 44 36 44
Pensions and annuities - regular premium 13 15 13 15
Long-term insurance contracts — non-particlpating business
Pensions and annuities — single premum 532 677 532 677
Pensions and annuities — regular premium 6 7 6 7
Life and health protection — regular premium 145 132 144 132
Long-term linked insurance contracts
Life and health protection ~ regular premium 10 11 10 11
General Insurance contracts
Motor 1,018 1,109 - -
Commercial 201 164 - -
Household 148 140 - -
Other 77 72 - -
Change tn unearned premiums provision 34 2 - -
Gross earned premiums 2,317 2,446 837 959
Premiums ceded to relnsurers
Long-term isurance premiums (84) (76) {B4) (76)
General insurance business (36) {35) - -
Change In unearned premiums provision (2) 2 - -
(122) {109) (84) (76)
Net earned premiums 2,195 2,337 753 883
Gross wntten premiums for non-participating investment contracts which are
deposit accounted for and not included above 342 270 342 270

All contracts are written 1n the UK apart from Highway Insurance Company Limited which has previously wntien a proporbion of its general
insurance business In Ireland This ceased during 2012 with the Insh net earned premiums totalling £4m in that year
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6 New business premiums

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
Gross new business premiums - long-term contracts £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance and investment contracts — particlpating business
Investments and savings - single premium 85 62 85 62
Pensions and annuities - single premium 11 11 11 11
Investments and savings - regular premium 4 1 4 1
Long-term insurance contracts - non-participating business
Pensions and annuihies - single premium 532 677 532 677
Life and health protection — regular premigm 26 27 26 27
Long-term linked insurance contracts
Life and health protection — regular premium 2 4 2 4
660 782 660 782
Non-participating investment contracts
Pensions and annuities - single premium 331 262 331 262
Pensions and annuities — regular premium 11 8 11 8
1,002 1052 1,002 1,052
Gross written premiums for non-participating nvestment Pensions vested into annuity contracts during the year are
contracts are deposit accounted for and not included within inctuded as new annuity single premium business at the
net earned premiums annuity purchase price
Recurrent single premium rebates from the Department for Works Where periodic premiums are receved other than annually,
and Pensions are included as new business single premiums the periodic new business premiums are stated on an
annualised basis
2013 2012
Group gross premiums earmed - general business £m £m
Motor 1,077 1133
Commereial 180 152
Household 146 135
Other 76 66
1,479 1,486

7 Fee and commission income

Accounting for fee and commission Income

Other policy administration charges are recognised as income when earned Adviser fees earned from financial intermediary services
and commissIion Income are taken to income when earned This primarily comprises initial income recevable on services provided
to chents dunng the year when policies have gone on nisk and renewal commission recewved dunng the year as amounts fall due

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m im £m
Policy administration fees 1 1 -~ 7
Commission Income 13 16 4 -
14 17 4 7
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8 Investment ncome

Accounting for investment income Q
Investment income includes dividends, interest from investments at fair value, interest on loans and recewvables, interest on loans
secured on restdential property and rents Dividends are included on an ex-dividend basis Interest receivable on loans and receivables
15 calculated on an effective interest rate basis The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financtal hability

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Rental income from investment properties 5 [ 5 6
Income from investments at far value through income
- Interest iIncome 256 205 184 158
— Dividend income 78 96 73 72
Interest on loans and receivables 1 1 - -
Interest on loans secured on residential property 6 12 4
Interest income from group undertakings - - 35
Dividend income from group undertakings - - 47 94
346 320 348 337
9 Net gains/(losses) on investments
Accounting for net gains/(losses) on investments Q
Realised galns and losses

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price

Unrealised gains and losses
Unrealised gains and losses oh investments represent the difference between the valuation of fair value assets at the Statement
of Financial Position date and their valuation at the last Statement of Financial Position date or, where purchased during the year,

the purchase price An adjustment 1s made to unrealised gains and losses for the prior year's unreahsed efement included in the
current year's realised gains and losses

Group Soctaty
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Investment properties 18 {1) 18 (1)
Investments at fair value through income
— Debt securities (262) 109 (226G) 86
- Equity securnties 388 295 341 242
— Denvatives at fair value through income (32) (28) {39) (23}
Investments in group undertakings - - (79) (90)
112 375 15 214

included within net gains on investments are realised gains of £196m (2012 £149m) for the Group and realised gains of £108m
(2012 £126m) for the Society
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10 Other iIncome

Accounting for other Income C)\
Cther income primaniy relates to interest recevable and unit hnked income

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Interest recelvable 24 22 - -
Unit inked income - 6 - 6
Qther income 8 14 1 _
32 42 1 6

11 Net benefits and claims

Accounting for net benefits and claims O\
Long-term Insurance and participating investment contracts

Matunty claims and regular annuity payments are accounted for when due for payment Surrenders are accounted for on the earlier of
the date when paid or when the policy ceases to be included within the long-term insurance contract hability Death claims and other
claims are accounted for when the Group 15 notified The value of claims on participating contracts includes bonuses paid or payable
Claims values include related internal and external claims handling costs Reinsurance recovenes are accounted for in the same
period as the related claim

General insurance contracts

Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal and external claims handling costs paid in the year and changes in the provisions
for outstanding clasms, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related claims handling costs, together with any
other adjustments to ¢laims from previous years

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be mcurred in setthng claims and a deduction for the expected value of recovenes
However, it 1s fikely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the onginal hatility established Provisions are adjusted at the
Statement of Financial Position date to represent an estimate of the expected outcome

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
im £m £m £m
Gross benefits and claims
Long-term insurance and participating investment contracts
Benefits and claims paid 621 650 618 644
Change in the provision for claims {4) 2 (4) 3
General insurance contracts "
Claims paid 1,015 910 - - 3
Change in the provision for claims 71 257 - - v;ﬁ
1,703 1,818 614 647 @
Clalms ceded to reinsurers B
Long-term insurance and participating investment contracts -
Benefits and claims paid (64} (62) (64) (62)
General insurance contracts
Claims paid (8) (15} - -
Change in the provision for claims 4 (34) - - o
(68)  (111) (64) (62) H
1,635 1,708 550 585 5
[+]
m

Net benefits and claims for non-participating investment contracts which are
deposit accounted for and not included above (refer to Note 18) 172 193 172 193




130 LV= Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2013

12 Finance costs

Interest payable on subordinated liatwlities (see Note 21)

13 Other operating and administrative expenses

Accounting for other operating and administrative expenses C)\
Other operating and administrative expenses are accounted for as incurred Acquisition costs relate to the costs of acquinng new
business during the financial year These include all comrmssion and incentive payments to sales staff and third parties incurred

In writing new contracts In the general insurance business, where the benefit of these costs will be recognised in future accounting
pericds the costs are deferred

Group Saclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m im £m £m
Commussion paid on acquisition of business 174 196 40 58
Movement in deferred acquisition ¢osts 2 (5) - -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 18 12 - 5
Depreciation on property and equipment - owned 4 2 1 1
Depreciation on property and equipment - finance leases 1 1 - -
Investment management expenses and charges 24 13 28 17
Auditors' remuneration 2 2 2 2
Employee benefits expense (see Note 42) 247 216 247 216
Internal staff costs capitalised as attributable costs of IT assets 3) - - -
Management charge allocated to group undertakings - - {216) {191)
Rent, rates and other facilities expense 21 29 15 21
Marketing and advertising 43 46 16 19
Other staff costs 27 31 16 13
IT costs 39 40 21 22
Fees 57 58 14 25
Other expenses 17 28 5 17
Claims handling cost recognised in Gross benefits and claims {70) (60) (5) {6)
603 609 184 219
14 Auditors’ remuneration
2012
2013 Restated
£000 £ 000
Audit of Society 468 409
Fees payable to the Society's auditors and its associates for other services
- Audit of subsidiaries 384 450
- Audit-related assurance services 274 234
- Other assurance services 245 -
- Tax advisory services 40 181
- Services relating to corporate finance transactions not covered above 135 179 :
- Other non-audit services not covered above 130 285
1,676 1,738
15 Mutual bonus

The Board declared a mutual bonus of £22m (2012 £21m) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013
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Financial assets and liabilities

This sectron presents information relating to the financial assets and habilittes {exctuding insurance contract-related assets and
habilies which are disclosed in Note 23) held by the Society and Group These financial assets and hatihties are held at either fair

value or amortised cost as defined by the Group's accounting policies

16 Fnancial assets — Fair value through income

Accounting for financial assets and habilities at fair

value through income

Financial assets at fair value through income has

two sub categories

» Financial assets held for trading, and

e Those designated at fair value through income
at inception

All investments of the Group classified as far vatue are
designated as fair value through income at inception

Such assets are measured at market prices, or prices
consistent with market ratings should no pnce be avarlable
Day one gains are recognised only where valuations use

data from observable markets Any unrealised or realised
gains or losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, as fair value gains or losses, or realised gains

or losses respectively, as they occur

Financial assets at fair value through sncome include hsted
and unlhisted investments, uvnits 1n authonsed unit trusts,
open ended investment compantes (OEICs), loans secured
on residential property and other investments

Financial liabilities at fair value through income include
denvative financial instruments and non-participating
investment contract iabilities, see Notes 17 and

18 respectively

The IFRS fair vatue hierarchy’ tevels for financial assets
and liabilities required under IFRS 13 are disclosed
within Note 19

Loans secured on residential property

The fair value of the loans secured on residential property

IS determined using discounted cash flows which take into
account the contractual interest rolled up on the loans,
matunty profiles and expected future funding costs The swap
rate used as an input to the discount rate 1s matched to the
expected term of the underlying loans A ‘No Negative Equity
Guarantee’ habihity 1s fair valued using discounted cash flows
and I1s netted off against the fair value of the assets

The Society provides ‘No Negative Equity Guarantee’ q
contracts to customers on equity release mortgages

The contractual terms of these guarantees requtre the
company to accept the lower of the market value of

customers property and the value of the loan plus

accrued interest at the date of redemption as full

settlement of the mortgage

The guarantee 1s iInitially recognised at the fair value

of the liabihity on the date the guarantee 1s given and

Is subsequently measured at fair value The farr value I1s
caleulated by applying stochastic scenarno models, applying
assumpthions for interest rates, future house price inflation
and its volatility, mortality rates and early loan repayment
rates, to give management's best estimate of the discounted
value of cash fiows required to settle any future financial
obligation ansing at the Statement of Financiat Position date

The guarantee 1s netted off against the fair value the

farr value of loans secured on residential property shown
as part of Financial assets — Fair value through income

in the Staterment of Financial Position The movement

tn the fair value of the guarantee 1s taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Fair value of financial assets

Market observable inputs are used wherever possible

In the absence of an active market, estimation of fair

value 1s achieved by using valuation techniques such as
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models For discounted cash flow
analysis, estimated future cash flows and discount rates are
based on current market information and rates applicable
to financial instruments with similar yields, credit guality
and maturity charactenstics This valuation will also take
into account the marketability of the assets being valued

Details of the key assumptions used in the absence of
an active market are contained in the fair value estimation
tables, as required by IFRS 13, disclosed in Note 19
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16 Financial assets — Fair value through income (continued)

Group Soclety
2043 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets - Falr value through Income
Shares, other vanable yield securities and units in unit trusts
- UK Jisted 2,434 2,108 3,458 3,052
— UK unlisted 113 112 112 112
- Overseas listed 508 438 132 71
- Overseas unlisted 78 93 77 92
Debt and other fixed income securities
— UK hsted 4,310 4,190 2,754 2,586
— Overseas listed 2,277 2,123 929 765
Loans secured on residential property 493 415 486 366
Other 3 5 3 5
10,216 9,484 7,951 7.059
Within one year 3,334 3,186 3,806 3,510
Qver one year 6,882 6,298 4,145 3,549
10,216 9,484 7,951 7,059
Assets held to cover linked liabilities included above 1,316 1,021 1,316 1,021

17 Dernwvative financial instruments

Accounting for derivative flnanclal Instruments ()\
Derwvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at therr fair value There are no designated hedging relationships within the Group that gualify for hedge accounting,

all are classified as held for trading Derivatives are settled on a gross basis

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recognised immediately 1n gains or losses on investments in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the penod Realised gains or losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on occurrence

The Group uses derivatives to hedge the effect of changes in variable rate borrowings on its fixed rate loan portfolo, to reduce exposure
to payouts under guaranteed annuity contracts and to protect against falls in the FTSE 100 As a result of entering into glt hedge
contracts for difference 1n 2012, a significant proportion of the general thsurance asset portfolio for 2013 and 2012 1s hedged against
gilt yield movements

2013 2012
Contract/ Contract/

notional Fair vaiue Fair value notional Fair value Fair value

amount -~ asset = |lability amount - asset - liabliity
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 597 10 (11) 635 20 -
Gilt hedges 1,468 8 - 1,417 1 -
Cash flow swaps 144 - (68) 79 - {51)
Swaptions 140 12 - 152 18 -
Forward exchange contracts 5 - - 3 - -
Equity/index derivatives 28 17 (1) 234 32 -

2,382 a7 {80) 2,520 71 {51)

2013 2012
Contract/ Contract/

notlona! Falr value Fair value notional Fair value Fair value

amount - asset = llabllity amount - asset ~ liabuhty
Soclety im £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 597 10 {11) 635 20 -
Cash flow swaps 144 - (68) 79 - {51)
Swaptions 140 12 - 152 18 -
Equity/index dernvatives 28 17 (1) 154 31 -

909 39 (80) 1,020 69 {51)
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18 Investment contract hiabilities
Accounting for investment contract liabilitles
Non-participating contracts Q
Investment contract llabiities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged These liabilities are
initially recognised at transaction price excluding any transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the contract

Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the contract liability in the Statement of Financial Position,
a method known as deposit accounting Fees charged and investment income received are recognised In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when earned

Fair value adjustments are measured at each reporting date and are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value

15 calculated as the number of umits allocated to the policyholder in each unit hinked fund muitiphied by the unit price of those funds at

the Statement of Financial Position date The unit prices are determined with reference to the fund assets and habilities, which are valued
on a basis consistent with that used to measure the equivalent assets and liabilities 1n the Statement of Financial Position, adjusted for
the discounted effect of future tax ansing from any unrealised gains or losses For a contract that can be cancelled by the policyholder,
the fair value cannot be less than the surrender value

The hability 1s derecognised when the contract expires, I1s discharged or 1s cancelled

Participating contracts

Insurance and participating investment contract liabilities are valued using accounting policies consistent with those adopted prior
to the transition to IFRS as allowed under IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’ The accounting treatment of these contracts 1s described
within Note 23

Group Soclety
a) Anatysis of mvestment contract liabiities 2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated Restated
- see Note 1 —-see Note 1
Group and Society Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-participating iInvestment contract habilities 18b 1,249 959 1,249 959
Participating \nvestment contract habilities 18¢ 499 461 499 481
1,748 1,420 1,748 1,420
Group Society
b) Movement In non-participating investment contract habilities 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 959 801 959 801
Deposits receved from policyholders 342 270 342 270
Payments made 10 poheynotders and fees deducted (172) {193) 172} {193)
Change in contract habilties as shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 120 81 120 81
Balance at 31 December 1,249 959 1,249 959

The change in contract habilities as shown (n the Statement of Comprehensive Income compnses principally the allocation of the net
investment return to policyhoiders of investment contracts less allowances for taxes Investment contracts are not reinsured

Group Soclety

¢} Movement in participating investment contract liabilities 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 461 408 461 408
Premiums received 3 3 3 3
Lrabilities paid for death matunties, surrenders, benefits and claims {18) (18} (18} (18}
Benefits and claims vanation a4 4 4 4
Fees deducted {1) {2) (1) (2)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 43 41 43 41
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
- Investment return (2) 2 (2) 2
— Expense 4 4 4 4
Modet changes - 10 - 10
Cther - 5 - 5
Mutual bonus 5 4 5 4

Balance at 31 December 499 461 499 461
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19 Farr vajue estimation

The following farr value estimation tables present the Group’s

and Society’s assets and labiities measured at fair value by level
of the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2013

The fair value of financial instruments included in the Level 1
category IS based on the value within the bid-ask spread that

15 most representative of fair value quoted In an active market
at the year-end date A market IS regarded as quoted in an
active market If quoted pnices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, prcing service
or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurnng market transactions on an arm’s tength basis

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded (n an active market
or therr fair value 1s determined using valuation techniques
These valuation technigues maximise the use of data from
observable current market transactions (where 1t is available}
using pricing obtained via pricing services, even where the market
1s not active It also includes financial assets with prnces based
on broker guotes

Specific valuation techniques used to vaiue financial instruments
classified as Level 3 include
+« The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based
on observable yield curves

« The fair value of forward exchange contracts 1s determined
using forward exchange rates at the Statement of Financial
Position date, with the resulting value discounted back
to present value

« The loans secured on residential property within the
Society are purchased from a subsidiary company who
1s authorised to Initiate these loans The purchase by
the Society 1s at market value and creates a gamn within
the subsidiary On consoldation this gan 1S eliminated
The fair value of the loans secured on residential property
15 determined using discounted cash flow projections
The expected value of redemptions are estimated based
on the assumed prepayments over future time perods
{months), mortality and long-term care entry rates including
any early redemption charges The expected redemptions
are discounted at swap rates plus allowances for rnisk
factors The full swap curve 15 used so each discount rate
15 matched to the appropriate cash flow The assumptions
used for prepayment, mortality and long-term care are based
on the experience of the in-force book supported by industry
data The valuation 1s performed by a Semor Actuarial Analyst
and reviewed by the Equity Release Actuary The assumptions
are set by the Equity Release Actuary and reviewed by the
Actuarial Function Holder

« The fair value of Level 3 non-participating investment
contract habilities relate to the RNPFN unit linked funds
The fair value 1s calcutated as the number of units allocated
to the policyholder in each umit inked fund multiplied by
the urit price of those funds at the Statement of Financial
Position date The fund habtliies are matched to the fund
assets The fund assets and habilities are valued on a basis
consistent with that used to measure the equivalent assets
and liabilsties 1n the Statement of Financial Position, adjusted
for the discounted effect of future tax, If appropnate, ansing
from any unrealised gans or losses For a contract that can
he cancelled by the policyholder, the fair value cannot be less
than the surrender valug The liabilities are calculated on a
consistent basis to the underlying investments as described
in Note 18

» Other techmques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
other financial instruments

If one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on
observable market data, the instrument 1s included in Leve! 3

There were no changes to the valuation techniques dunng
the year

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 dunng the year

The Group s policy 1S 10 recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change n
ctreumstances that caused the transfer

The Group outsources the valuation of the denvatives and

other investment holdings to third parties who are independent
and qualified valuers As at 31 December 2013, the fair values
of the dervatives and other investment holdings have been
determined by SuperDenvatives Inc and individual holding private
equity General Partners respectively The investment team
monitors the valuation on a monthly basis and report directly

to the Chief Investment Officer

Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/losses
on investments within the Statement of Comprehensive Income
with the exception of Investment contract labiiies where the
movement 15 recognised within the Gross change in contract
liabimties Details of these gains/losses are disclosed within
Notes @ and 25 respectively
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

2013 2012
Total falr Tatal fair
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 valua Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 value
Group £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derlvative financial instruments
interest rate swaps - - 10 10 - - 20 20
Giit hedges - - 8 8 - - 1 1
Swaptions - - 12 12 - - 18 18
Equity/Index dernvatives - - 17 17 1 - 31 32
- - 47 a7 1 - 70 71
Financial assets held at fair value
through income
Shares, other variable yield secunities
and units i urit trusts
- UK histed 1,362 1,072 - 2,434 1,285 823 - 2,108
- UK unhsted - - 113 113 - - 112 112
- Overseas Iisted 506 2 - 508 396 42 - 438
- Overseas unlisted - - 78 78 - - 93 93
Debt and other fixed income securities
— UK listed 1,927 2,383 - 4,310 2,155 2,035 - 4,190
— Overseas listed 208 2,069 - 2,277 3 2,120 - 2,123
Loans secured on residential property - - 493 493 - - 415 415
Other 3 - - 3 5 - - 5
4,006 5,526 684 10,216 3,844 5,020 620 9,484
4,006 5,526 731 10,263 3,845 5,020 690 9,555
Financial labllities
Non-participating investment _ 1,126 123 1,248 _ 844 115 059
contract liabilities
Derlvative financial Instruments
Cash flow swaps - - 68 68 - - 51 51
Interest rate swaps - - 11 11 - - - -
Equity/index derivatives 1 - - 1 - - - -
1 - 79 80 - - 51 51
1 1,126 202 1,329 - 844 166 1,010
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19. Farr value estimation (continued})
2013 2012
Total falke Total faw
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valug
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative financial Instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 10 10 - - 20 20
Swaptions - - 12 12 - - 18 18
Equity/index denvatives - - 17 17 - - 31 31
- - 39 39 — - 69 69
Financial assets held at falr value
through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties
and units in unit trusts
— UK listed 1,107 2,351 - 3,458 668 2,384 - 3,052
- UK unlisted - - 112 112 - - 112 112
— Overseas listed 132 - - 132 69 2 - 71
- Overseas unhisted - - 77 77 - - 92 92
Debt and other fixed iIncome securities
- UK listed 1,580 1,174 - 2,754 1,717 879 - 2,596
— Overseas listed 16 913 - 929 3 762 - 765
Loans secured on residential property - - 486 486 - - 366 386
Other 3 - - 3 5 - - 5
2,838 4,438 675 7,951 2,462 4,027 570 7,058
2,838 4,438 714 7,990 2,462 4,027 639 7,128
Financial liabllities
Non-particlpating investment
contract llabillties 1,126 123 1,249 - 844 118 959
Derivative financial instruments
Cash flow swaps - - 68 68 - - 51 51
Interest rate swaps - - 11 11 - - - -
Equity/index denivatives 1 - - 1 - - - -
1 - 79 80 - - 51 51
1 1,126 202 1,329 - 844 166 1,010
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)
The table below presents the movements in Level 3 financial instruments for the year ended 31 December 2013

Total galns/
{losses)
recognised At 31
At 3 lanuary through December
2013 Income Purchases Sales (*) 2013
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derlvative financial Instruments
Interest rate swaps 20 (10) - - 10
Gilt hedges 1 7 - - 8
Swaptions 18 (6) - - 12
Equity/index derivatives 31 (14) - - 17
70 {23) - - 47
Financlal assets held at falr value through Income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties and units in unit trusts
— UK unlisted 112 9 4 (12) 113
- Overseas unlisted 93 12 (5) {22) 78
Loans secured on residential property 415 {(7) 113 (28) 493
620 14 112 {62} 684
690 (9) 112 (62) 731
Financial liabilities
Non-participating investment contract llabilitles 115 8 - - 123
Derlvatlve financlal instruments
Cash flow swaps 51 5 - 12 68
Swaptions - 11 - - 11
51 16 - 12 79
166 24 - 12 202

* In relation to Loans secured on residential property, purchases and sales represent loans advanced and repaid respectively
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

Total gains/
{losses)
recognised Transfers to At 31
AL 1 January through level 1 and Decembes
2012 income Purchases Sales levet 2 2012
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Denvative tinancial instruments
Interest rate swaps 64 - - (44) - 20
Gilt hedges - 1 - - - 1
Swaptions 30 (2) - (10) - 18
Equity/index derivatives 40 (9) - ~ - 31
134 {10) — (54) - 70
Financial assets held at far value through income
Shares, other vanable yield securities and umis 1n unit trusts
— UK unlisted 114 11 1 (14) - 112
— Overseas unlisted a5 1 1 4) - g3
Debt and other fixed income securities
- UK histed 1 - - - (1) -
- Overseas listed 1 - - - (1) -
Loans secured on residential property 334 11 89 (19} - 415
545 23 91 {37} (2) 620
679 13 91 (941) {2) 690
Financial labiities
Non-participating investment contract habilities 114 1 - - - 115
Denvative financial instruments
Cash flow swaps - (4) 55 - — 51
- {4) 55 - - 51

114 (3) 55 - - 166
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

Total gains/
(IOSS&B]
racognised At 31
At 1 January through December
2013 Income Purchases Sales* 2013
Soclety £m Em £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cetlvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 20 (10) - - 10
Swaptions 18 (6) - - 12
Equity/index denvatives 31 (14) - - 17
69 (30) - - 39
Financial assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other variable yield secunties and units in unit trusts
— UK unlisted 112 9 3 {12) 112
- Overseas unlisted 92 12 (5) {22) 77
Loans secured on residential property 366 (4) 152 (28) 486
870 i7 150 (62) 675
639 {13) 150 (62) 714
Financial llabilities
Non-particlpating Investment contract llabilities 115 8 - - 123
Derlvative financlal Instruments
Cash flow swaps 51 5 - 12 68
Swaptions - 11 - - 11
51 16 - 12 79
166 24 - 12 202

* In relation to Loans secured on residenttal property, purchases and sales represent loans advanced and repaid respectively
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

Total gains/
(losses)
recognised Transfers to At 31
At 1 January through level 1 and December
2012 income Purchases Sales level 2 2012
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 64 - - (44) - 20
Swaptions 30 (2) - (10) - 18
Equity/index derivatives 40 (9} - - - 31
134 (11} — {54) - 69
Financial assets held at far value through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties and units in unit trusts
- UK unlisted 114 11 1 {14) - 112
— Overseas unlisted 92 - 1 1) - 92
Debt and other fixed income secunties
- UK listed 1 - - - (1) -
- Overseas listed 1 - - - (1) -
Loan to group undertaking 162 {(22) - (140) - -
Loans secured on residential property (note 1) 111 43 219 {7) - 366
481 32 221 {162) (2) 570
615 21 221 (216) {2) 639
Financial habilities
Non-participating investment contract iabilittes 114 1 - - - 115
Dervative financial instruments
Cash flow swaps - (4) 55 - - b1
- (4) 55 - - 51
114 (3) 55 — — 166
Note 1 The £219m included as purchases of Loans secured on residential properties includes amounts transferred from a subsidiary,
Liverpool Victoria Equity Release Limited as part of a December 2012 loan restructure with the Society
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19 Farr value estimation {continued)
Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Fair value
at 31 Range of unobservable
December Vafuation Unobservable inputs (probabihity - Relationship of unabservable
Group 2013 technigue(s) nputs weighted average) nputs to fair value
Description £m
Financlal assets
Derivatlve financial instruments
Interpoiation
and if the rate goes u
Interest rate swaps 19 Mark-te-model extrapolation Up to 2hps & p.
the contract value will fall
of specific IR
tenors
The range on market Repo rate increases
Gilt hedges 8 Mark-to model Gilt repo rates gilt repo rates offered will lower the value
can be up to 10bps of the contract
nterest r. Id be ral
Swaptions 12 Mark-to-model | t rate Cou severa Higher interest rate volatihty
volatihity percentage points results in higher contraci value
Could be several Higher equity rate volatility
E -to- |
quity/index derivatives 17 Mark-to-model Egquity volatility percentage points results in higher contract value
47
Financial assets heid at fair value
through income
Shares, other vanable yield
securities and units in unit trusts
Could vary
d net
— UK unhsted 113 Adjuste Price per unit significantly due to The higher the price per unit,
asset method the higher the fair value
the range of holdings
Distributions or Could vary The fair value varies on
calis since last signeficantly due to distributions/calls and pencd
valuation the range of holdings since last valuation
Could vary
d net
— Overseas unlisted 78 Adjuste Price per unit significantly due to The higher the price per unit,
asset method the higher the fair value
the range of holdings
Distnbutions or Could vary The farr value varies on "
calls since last significantly due to distnibutions/calls and period 3
valuatron the range of holdings since tast valuation uc"g'
The higher the swap rate, 5
Loans secured on residential property 4583 Discounted Interest swan Market zero coupon the lower the fair value 3
cash flow rate swaps rate 2
of the assets -
A higher prepayment
Prepayments 3%-5% rate will decrease the fair
value of the assets
M
ortality and 29,-5% for males A hugher mortality and fong
long-term care 3%-13% for females term care rate will decrease
assumptions the fair value of the assets S
684 g
731 3
]
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19 Farr value estimation (continued)
Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3) - continued

Fair value
at3l Range of unobservable
December Valuation Unabservable Inputs {probability — Relationship of unobservable
2013 technique(s) Inputs welghted average) nputs to fair value
Description £m
financial habilities
Asset and The asset value increase
Investment contract liabllitles 123 lability matching Assets value Unit price will ingcrease the fair value
method of the hability

Derivative finanelal instruments

Interpolation and

Cash flow swaps 68  Mark-to-model  extrapolation of Up to 2bps If the rate goes up,
the contract value will fall
specific IR tenors

Could be several Higher equity rate volatelity
Equity/index dervatives 11 Mark-to-model Equity volatility percentage points results in higher contract value
79
202
20 Loans and other recevables
Accounting for loans and other receivables q

Loans are initially measured at fair value and then subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Recervables are recogmsed when due and comprise amounts due to the Society from group undertakings and other receivables
They are mitially recognised at fair value and then subsequently held at amortsed cost

The Group assesses at each Statement of Financial Position date whether a loan or recevable, or a group of loans or receivables,
15 iImpaired For loans, the amount of any impairrment loss 1s measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of future cash flows For recevables, where there 1s objective evidence that the carrying value 15 impaired then the
imparrment loss will be recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive income

Provision for impairment of loans

Provisions for impairment of loans and receivables are based on appraisals of loans and recevables both collectively

and individually Provisions are made to reflect the estimated net realisable amount, taking into account potential future
recoveries and the oniginal effective interest rate Balances are written off in full when the debt 15 considered irrecoverable

Specific provisions have been made in respect of all identified impaired advances In calculating the required provision an
appropriate factor 1s applied based on the present value of expected future cash flows, which 1s subject to penodic review
to ensure its continuing apphicability based en current expenence, to reflect the probability that not all such loans will result
In eventual loss Collective provisions have been made in respect of losses which, although not yet specifically identified,
are expected from experience to anse

Group Soclety

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Deposits with credit institutions - 15 - -
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 97 87
Managing agents rental recewable 4 12 4 12
Investments recewvable 15 17 13 17
Other receivables 46 59 10 12
65 103 124 128

Within one year 61 99 122 126
Over one year 4 4 2 2
65 103 124 128

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate farr value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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21 Subordinated habilities

Accounting for subordinated liabilities q
Subordinated habilities are initially measured at the fair value of the proceeds less attnbutable transaction costs Subseguent to

initial recognitton they are measured at amortised cost The transaction costs are amortised over the penod to the earliest possible
redemption date on an effective interest rate basis The amortisation charge 1s included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
within finance costs An equivalent amount 1s added to the carrying value of the hability such that at the redemption date the value

of the hability eguals the redemption value

Group Society
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Suberdinated notes (GBP 350m} 346 - 346 -
Subordinated notes (EUR 12m) 10 10 - -
356 10 346 -

All the subordinated habiliies are expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the balance sheet date

On 22 May 2013 the Society 1ssued £350m of Fixed Rate

Reset Subordinated Notes at par The directly related costs

of £4m incurred to 1ssue the Notes have been capitalised as part
of the carrying value and are being amortised using the effective
interest rate basis over the period to the first call date in 2023
The effective interest rate on the £350m lability 1s 6 654%

The Notes have a matunty date of 22 May 2043 but the 1ssuer
has the option to redeem the Notes at the first call date of 22 May
2023 and at five yearly intervals thereafter up to the matunty date

Interest 1s payable on the Notes at a fixed rate of 6 5% per annum
for the pertod until the first call date on 22 May 2023, payable
annually in arrears on 22 May each year If the Notes are not
redeemed on 22 May 2023, the interest rate 15 reset on that date
and at five yearly intervals thereafter at a rate equal to the five
year gilt rate guoted on the day before the reset date plus an
initial margin of 463 basis poinis and a step up margin of

100 basis points There 1s an option of cumulative deferral

of interest at the 1ssuer's discretion and mandatory interest

22 Other financial habilities

deferral in the event that a regulatory deficiency interest

deferral event has occurred or is continuing (breach of the
applicable regulatory solvency capital requirement of the

1ssuer or group) or would occur if payment of interest on the
subordinated notes were to be made Following any deferral

of a principal or interest payment, the Society would be prevented
from declaring any distribution to members which falls within

the Mutual Bonus arrangements

The €12m subordinated notes are 1ssued by a subsidiary
undestaking and are repayable in 2034 Interest on these
Notes 15 payable at the 3 month euro deposit rate plus

a margin of 365 basis points

Subordinated liabihties are held in the Statement of Financial
Position at amortised cost The fair value at 31 December 2013
was £340m (2012 £10m) This far value would be classified
as Level 2 under the fair value measurement hierarchy as
defined in Note 19 The valuation of the subordinated notes
was determined by reference to the bid pnce obtained from

the markets as at 31 December 2013 Management consider
this to be representative of fair value

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Collateral received 46 65 37 65
Amounts due to group undertakings - - 19 16
46 65 56 81

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Insurance contract-related assets and liabilities

This section presents information relating to insurance contractrelated assets and habilities held by the Society and Group
The assumptions used in the valuation of the insurance contract habities are disclosed within Note 28 with sensitivities to

these assumptions disclosed separately within Note 4

23 Insurance contract habilities

Accounting for insurance contract liabllities

Partlcipating buslness

The hability 1s calculated in accordance with the PRA's
‘realistic’ hability regime In particular, proviston 1s made for
all bonus payments (declared and future, reversionary and
terminal) estimated, where necessary, In a manner consistent
with the relevant fund’'s Prninciples and Practices of Financial
Management (PPFM) The hability includes an allowance for
the time and intrinsic value of options and guarantees granted
to policyholders and for possible future management actions

The realistic participating habilities are based on the aggregate
value of policy asset shares reflecting past premiums,
Investment return, expenses and charges applied to each
policy Allowance i1s also made for policy-related habilties such
as guarantees, options and future bonuses calculated using

a stochastic model simulating investment returns, asset mix,
expense charges and bonuses

In determmning the realistic value of llabilities for participating
contracts, the value of future profits on non-participating
business written in the with-profits part of the fund 1s accounted
for as part of the calculation The present value of future profits
on the non-participating business (‘Non-participating value

of the inforce business’) 1s separately determined and

its value i1s deducted from the sum of the hiabnlities for
participating contracts and the Unaillocated dwistble surplus

The non-participating value of the inforce business 1s separately
disclosed within Note 24

Such an amount is not recognised for business written outside
participating contract funds

Non-participating business

The liabihity 1s calculated to comply with the reporting
requirements under the PRA’s handbook using a gross premium
valuation method or a method at least as prudent as the gross
premium method The pnncipal assumpuons are given In the
notes to the financial statements The Society and relevant
subsidianes have adopted the modified statutory solvency basis
In the valuation of provisions for non-participating business

Liabilities for non-participating business are either
included within the long-term insurance contract ltabilities
or the investment contract habiiities, depending upon the
product classification

General insurance claims and Insurance contract iiabilities
Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal and
external claims handltng costs paid in the year and changes
in the provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions
for claims incurred but not reported and related claims
handling costs, together with any other adjustments

to claims from previous years Where applicable,
deductions are made for recoveries from other parties

Provision 1s made for the estimated cost of claims incurred

but not settled, including the cost of claims incurred but not
reported The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to
be incurred n setthing claims and a deduction for the expected
value of recoveries However, given the inevitable uncertainty in
establishing claims provisions, it 1s likely that the final outcome
will prove to be different from the original iability estabhshed
Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position
date to represent a best estimate of the expected outcome

Provisions are calculated allowing for reinsurance recoveries
and a separate asset 15 recorded for the reinsurers’ share
of the provision

Unexpired risks

For general insurance contracts, provision 1s made, If required,
for any anticipated claims and claims handhng costs that are
anticipated to exceed the unearned premiums, net of deferred
acquisition costs An estimate 1s made for future investment
Income arising from the unearned premiums, and used to
reduce the unexpired risk provision Unexpired nsk surpluses
and deficits are offset where business classes are managed
together and a provision 1S made If an aggregate deficit anses




Qur Accounts 145

Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

Year ended 31 December 2013

23 Insurance contract habilities {continued)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements
Valuation of investment and long-term insurance
contract habilities

The valuation of participating contract habutities 15 based
on assumptions reflecting the best estimate at the time
The valuation of non-participating insurance contracts

Is based on prudent assumptions, a separate calculation
1$ also performed to assess the non-participating value
of in-force business which 1s based on best estimate
assumptions allowing for a margin of nsk and adverse
deviation All contracts are subject to a labilhity adequacy
test, which reflects management’s best current estimate
of future cash flows

The assumptions used for mortality, morbidity and longevity are
hased on standard industry or reinsurers’ tables, adjusted where
appropriate to refiect the Group's own expenence In particular,
for impared annuities the mortality assumptions are based on
reinsurers’ tables with an individual loading applied depending
on the nature of the impairment The assumptions used for
investment returns, expenses, lapse and surrender rates are
based on current market yields, product charactenstics, and
relevant claims experience The assumptions used for discount
rates are based on current market nsk rates, adjusted for the
Group’s own risk exposure Due to the leng-term nature of these
obligations, the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

Valuation of general insurance contract liabilities

For general insurance contracts, estimates are made for the
expected ultimate cost of claims reported as at the Statement
of Financial Position date and the cost of claims incurred but
not yet reported (IBNR) to the Group It can take a significant
period of time before the ulimate cost of claims can be
established with certainty, and the final outcome may be

better or worse than that provided Standard actuanal clamms
projection techniques are used to estimate outstanding claims
Such methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
claims, recoveries from third parties, average cost per claim
and ultimate claim numbers for each accident year, based upon
the observed development of earlier years and expected loss
ratios The mamn assumption underlying these technigues 1s that
past claims development expenience 1s used to project ultimate
claims costs Allowance for one-off occurrences or changes

in legislation, pohicy conditions or portfolic mix are also made

in arriving at the estimated ultimate cost of claims in order that
it represents the most likely outcome, taking account of afl the
uncertainties involved To the extent that the ultiimate cost is
different from the estimate, where experience is better or worse
than that assumed, the surptus or deficit will be credited or
charged to gross benefits and claims within the Statement

of Comprehensive Income 1n future years

a) Analysis of iInsurance contract habilities and reinsurance assets

2013 2012
Restated —
see Note 1
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gress  Reinsurance Net
Group Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance contract liabilities 23b 6,485 (325) 6,160 6,276 {262) 6,014
Long-term hinked insurance contract liabilities 23¢ 114 (47) 67 97 (35) 62
Long-term claims liabilities 23d 38 - 38 42 - 42
6,637 {372) 6,265 6,415 (297) 6,118 @
[+
m
General insurance unearned premuums 23 e 712 {13) 699 746 (15) 731 @
General insurance claims liabilities 23 f 1,358 {130) 1,228 1,287 (135) 1,152 E
2,070 (143) 1,927 2,033 {150) 1,883 2
8,707 {515) 8,192 8,448 (447) 8,001
2013 2012
Restated -
see Note 1
Gross  Relnsurance Nat Gross  Reinsurance Net
Society Note £m £m £m £m £m £m e
Long term insurance contract habitities 23b 6,466 {325) 6,141 6,255 (262) 5,993 g
Long term linked insurance contract habtities 23¢c 114 (47) 67 97 (35) 62 g
Long-term claims habihties 23d 38 38 42 - 42 @

6,618 (372) 6,246 6,394 (297) 6,097
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23 Insurance contract habilities (continued)
b) Movement in long-term insurance contract llabilities

2013

2012

Restated -

see Note 1
Gross  Reinsurance Not Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 january 6,276 (262) 6,014 5675 (200) 5,475
Premiurns recewed 160 (38) 122 144 (32) 112
Liabilities paid for deaths maturities, surrenders,
benefits and clams (584) 39 (545) (844) 29 {615)
New business 558 {46) 512 697 (42) 655
Benefits and claims variation 37 (1) 36 81 - 81
Fees deducted 42) - (42) (39) - (39)
Accretion of investment income or change In unit prices 184 {2) 182 378 (3) 375
Adjustment due to changes In assumptions
— Mortality/morbidity 58 (45) 13 18 (18) 2
- Investment return (147) 14 {133) 49 (1) 48
— Expense 2 - 2 (34) 2 (32)
— Lapse and surrender rates - 1 1 {(33) - (33)
— Other basis changes (27) 17 (10) (55) (5) 60)
Model changes (9) 4 (13) 55 - 55
Other 2 2 4 {33) 5] (27)
Mutual bonus 17 - 17 17 = 17
Balance at 31 December 6,485 (325) 6,160 6,276 {262) 6,014
2013 2012
Restated -
see Ngte 1
Gross  Relnsutance Nat Gross  Reinsurance Net

Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 6,255 {262) 5,993 5,651 (200) 5,451
Premiums received 160 (38) 122 143 {32) 111
Liabilities paid for deaths, maturities, surrenders,
benefits and claims (581) 39 {542) (639) 29 {610)
New business 558 (46) 512 697 (42) 655
Benefits and claims variation 37 (1) 36 81 - 81
Fees deducted 42) - (42) (39) - (39)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 185 (2) 183 378 (3) 375
Adjustment due to changes In assumptions
= Mortality/morbidity 58 (45) 13 18 (16) 2
= Investment return (147) 14 (133) 49 [4 3] 48
- Expense 2 - 2 {34} 2 (32)
- Lapse and surrender rates - 1 1 {33} - (33)
- Other basis changes (27) 17 (10) {55) (%) (80}
Model changes {11) {3) {15) 54 - 54
Other 2 2 4 (33) 5] {27}
Mutual bonus 17 - 17 17 - 17
Balance at 31 December 6,466 (325} 6,141 6,255 (262) 5,993
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23 Insurance contract habihties (continued)
c) Movement in long-term linked Insurance contract liabllities

2013 2012

Restated -

see Note 1

Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m im £m £m
Batance at 1 January 97 (35) 62 86 {23) 63
Premiums received 29 (10} 19 40 (10) 30
Liabilities paid for deaths, matunties, surrenders,
benefits and claims (20) 9 a1 7 9 ®
New business 17 {11} 6 3 (14) (11)
Benefits and claims vanation (1) - (1) (4) - (4)
Fees deducted (2) - (2) (3} - (3}
Accretion of iInvestment iIncome or change in unit prices 1 - 1 2 1) 1
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
— Mortality/morbidity i {3) (2) - {5) {5)
- Investment return {11} 4 (7 (2) - (2)
- Expense - - - (5) 1 (4
- Lapse and surrender rates 1 - 1 - - -
- Other basis changes - - - 3 (] 2
Model changes 1 {1) - - - -
Qther 1 - 1 {6) 9 3
Balance at 31 December 114 {47) 67 a7 (35) 62
2013 2012
Restated -
see Note 1
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Remnsurance Net

Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January a7 (35) 62 86 (23) 63
Premiums received 29 (10) 19 40 (10) 30
Liabihties paid for deaths, maturties, surrenders,
benefits and ¢lams (20) 9 A1) (17) ° 8)
New business 17 {11) [ 3 14) (11)
Benefits and claims variation (1) - (1) (4} - (4)
Fees deducted (2) - (2) (3) - 3)
Accretion of iInvestment tncome or change in unit prices 1 - 1 2 (1) 1
Adjustment due to changes In assumptions
— Mortality/morbedity 1 (3) {2} - (5} (5)
- investment return {11) 4 (7) (2) - (2} w
- Expense - - - (5) 1 (4) 5
- Lapse and surrender rates 1 - 1 - - - {_'é
- Other basis changes - - - 3 (1) 2 z
Model changes 1 1) - - - - B
Other 1 - 1 () 9 3 -
Balance at 31 December 114 (a7) 67 97 {35) 62
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23 Insurance contract habitities (continued)
d) Movement in long-term claims llabilities

2013

2012
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 42 - 42 40 - 40
Claims notified 617 {64) 553 652 (B2} 590
Claims paid during the year (621) 64 {557) (650) 62 {588}
Balance at 31 December 38 - 38 42 — 42
2013 2012
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 42 - 42 40 - 40
Claims notified 614 (64) 550 646 {62) 584
Claims paid durning the year (618) 64 (554) (644) 62 (582)
Balance at 31 December 38 - 38 42 = 42
) Movement in general insurance unearned premiums
2013 2012
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 746 {15) 731 747 (13) 734
Premiums written In the year 1,445 (36) 1,409 1,485 (35) 1,450
Premiums earned during the year {1,479) 38 (1,441) (1,486} 33 (1,453)
Balance at 31 December 712 (13) 699 746 (15) 731
f) Movement in general insurance claims liabllities
2013 2012
Gross Helnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 1,287 (135) 1,152 1,030 {101) 929
Movement In claims incurred In prior accident years (56) 16 (40) 33 (24) g
Claims incurred 1n the current accident year 1,077 {20) 1,057 1,080 (25) 1,055
Claims paid dunng the year {950) 9 {941) (856) 15 (841}
Balance at 31 December 1,358 (130) 1,228 1,287 (135) 1,152
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24 Non-participating value of in-force business

Accounting for the non-participating value of in-force business O\
In determining the reaklistic value of habilities for participating contracts as disclosed in Note 23, the value of future profits on
non-participating business written in the with-profits part of the fund i1s accounted for as part of the calculation The present value

of future profits of the non-participating business ('non-participating value of in-force business'}) 1s separately determined and its

value 1s deducted from the sum of the liabilities for participating contracts and the Unallocated divisible surplus Such an amount

1s not recognised for business written outside participating contract funds

The pnncipal assumptions are disclosed separately within Note 29

Group Socloty

2013 2012 2013 2012
Analysis of non-participating value of in-force business £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 253 239 253 239
Premiums received 1 - 1 -
Liabalities paid for deaths, matunties, surrenders, benefits and claims {11} 12) (11) {12)
New business 44 61 44 61
Benefits and claims varnation {10} (9) {10) {9
Fees deducted 4) 1) 4 (1)
Accretion of iInvestment income or change In unit prices 6 12 6 12
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
— Mortality/morbidity 16 {3) 16 (3)
- Investment return (23) i2 {23) 12
- Expense (1) 4) 1) (4)
- Lapse and surrender rates {(17) (3) @an (3}
— Other basis changes {10} (32) {10) (32)
Model changes 27 2 27 2
Other 2 (9) 2 (9}
Balance at 31 December 273 253 273 253

25 Net (increase)/decrease in long-term contract habslities and non-participating value of in-force business

Group Society
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated - Restated —
see Note 1 see Note 1
£m £m £m £m
Gross Increase in long-term contract liabilities
Increase In long-term insurance contract labilities (209) (801) {211) (604) o
Increase in long-term linked insurance contract liabiities {17) (11) (17) (11) g
Increase in investment contract habilities — participating {38) (53) (38) (53) %
Increase in investment contract iabilities — non participating {120) {81) {120) (81) 2
(384) (746) (386) {749) §
Mutual bonus (disclosed separately in Note 15} 22 21 22 21
(362) (725) (364) (728)
Increase in long-term contract liabillties ceded to reinsurers
Increase in long-term insurance contract habilities 63 62 63 62
Ingrease in long-term linked insurance contract habihties 12 12 12 12 o
75 74 75 74 3
g
Increase in non-participating value of in-force business 20 14 20 14 &

Net change in contract liabilities (267) (637) {269) (640)
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26 Deferred acquisition costs

Accounting for deferred acquisition costs Q
For business other than long-term insurance business, the costs of acquinng new business which are incurred dunng the financal

year, but where the benefit of such costs will be obtained in subseguent accounting periods are deferred and recognised as an
asset to the extent that they are recoverable out of margins in future matehing revenues

In respect of insurance contracts, acquisition costs compnse all direct and indirect costs incurred 1n wrting new contracts
Deferred acquisition costs for insurance contracts are amortised over a period which 18 consistent with the assessment
of the expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins for each product type

All deferred acquisition costs are tested for recoverabtlity at each reporting date The carrying values are adjusted to recoverable
amounts and any resulting impairment losses are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive income

Group £m
At 1 January 2013 100
Acquisition costs deferred 199
Amortisation and impairment {201)
At 31 December 2013 98
At 1 January 2012 a5
Acquisition costs deferred 199
Amortisation and impairment (194)
At 31 December 2012 100
Deferred acquisition costs are all due within one year for both 2012 and 2013 They relate to general insurance contracts
Acquisition costs are costs of acquiring new business and include commissions, underwriting expenses and policy 1ISsue expenses
There were no deferred acquisition costs held by the Society in 2013 (2012 £nul)
27 Reinsurance assets
Accounting for reinsurance assets C)\
The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for its long-term and general insurance businesses
Reinsurance assets represent balances recoverable from reinsurance companies Recoverable amounts are estimated in
a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision Reinsurance premiums are recognised in the same period as
the underlying contract that they relate to
Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note £m £m £m £m
Reinsurers' share of provision for unearned premiums 23a 13 15 - -
Reinsurers’ share of long term insurance contract liabiiities 23a 325 262 325 2862
Reinsurers’ share of long-term linked Insurance contract habilities 23a 47 35 47 35
Reinsurers' share of claims liabiities 23 a 130 135 - -
515 447 372 297
Withmn one year 24 28 (6) (6)
Qver one year 491 419 378 303
515 447 372 297

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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28 Long-term msurance and investment contract habihities valuation assumptions

The basis of the calculation of the long-term insurance contract
habilities 1s described n the accounting policies The hability 1s
calculated separately for each life operation Matenal judgement
15 required In calculating the hability In particular there 1s
discretion gver the assumptions used For participating business,
the hability 1s calculated in accordance with the PRA’s realistic
capital regime Non-participating habilities are valued using

a gross premium method

In calculating the realistic habilities, account has also been
taken of future management actions consistent with those

set out In the Princtples and Practices of Financial Management
The most significant of these are changes to bonus assumptions
and level of payouts

The assumptions used to calculate the [lability depend

on the circumstances prevailing in each of the life operations
The assumptions used in determining the hiablity are estimated
to give a result within the normal range of outcomes

a) Society
1} Participating insurance contracts

To the extent that the ultimate cost differs to the amounts
provided, for example where experence 1s worse than that
assumed, the surplus or deficit will be credited or charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income n future years

When valuing options and guarantees the asset model

used was the Barne and Hibbert Market-Consistent Asset Model
This 1s a deflator model hased on published financial economic
theory that I1s capable of market-consistent valuations for
multiple asset classes in multiple currencies For this valuation
it was calibrated to market data as at 31 December 2013
representative of the nature and term of the guarantees inherent
In participating insurance contracts within the participating
insurance contract funds

The accounting polictes for long-term insurance and investment
contract habilities are included within Notes 23 and 18
respectively, sensitmties to changes in assumptions are
included within Note 4

For participating insurance contracts, a market consistent valuation 1s used to calculate the habihty This involves placing a value
on liabilities similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used n this valuation are

set out below

Interest rates
The nisk-free Interest rates assumed are

Year 2013 2012

5 198% 091%
15 369% 260%
25 383% 33%%
a5 375% 362%

Other assumptions

Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption
15 modelled as RPI plus 0 5% (2012 RPi plus 0 5%), where RPI in both 2013 and 2012 1s modelled stochastically

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares at the valuation date

2013 2012

Cash

Fixed interest
Equties
Property

204% 238%
38 75% 4068%
5070% 4879%

851% 815%

1i0day vigalens
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28 Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

Mortality rate tables

2013 2012

Conventional Life Business
Conventional Pensions Business
Conventional Industnal Branch Business

75% AM80 Females -3
120% AMCOO/AFCQO0 CMI_2013_1 5%
80% up to age 80, nising linearly to
100% at age 100 ELTi6

75% AMB0 Females -3
60% AM&0 Females -3
80% up to age 80, rising linearfy to 100%
at age 100 ELT16

Non Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business 65% AMBO 65% AMBO
Unitised Accumulating Life Business 80% AMBO/AFS0 80% AMBO/AFBO
Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business 80% AMBO 80% AMBO
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business 80% AMBO 80% AMBO

Unitised Accumulating Life 1SA Business
Annuities in Payment

80% AMSBO select/AFS80 select
Mates- RMVOO0 CMI_2013 1 5% LT
Females RFVD0 CMI_2013 1 5% LT

80% AMSO select/AF80 select
Males RMVQOO CMI_2009 2% LT
Females RFVOQ CMI_2009 1 5% LT

Per policy expenses - regular premlums 2013 2012

Conventional Life Business £39 10 £34 90
Conventional Pensions Business £44 30 £45 30
Conventional Industrial Branch Business £6 80 £6 80
Non Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £38 00 £28 30
Unitised Accumulating Life Business £44 50 £4050
Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £44 30 £45 30
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business £41 Q00 £42 80
Unrised Accumulating Life 1SA Business £48 50 £48 20
Annuities in Payment £53 20 £48 20

A percentage of these amounts 1s used for single prem:um and paid up policies

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and paid up rates

A review of persistency I1s carrned out annually Assumptions for
each product class are adjusted where necessary to reflect more
recent expenence as evidenced in the persistency trend analysis,
or to reflect expected future trends as a result of anticipated
future events

Options and guarantees

There are no guaranteed annuity or financial options within the
Society participating contract funds There 1s an additional reserve
calculated on a market consistent basis to cover market value
restricter (MVR) free guarantees on with-profits bonds

Bonuses

The cost of bonuses incurred dunng the year ended 31 December
2013 was £82m (2012 £96m) of which £19m (2012 £19m)
was included in the long-term insurance contract liabiiies and
£83m (2012 £77m) was included in Gross benefits and claims
paid in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
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28 Longterm insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions {continued)
ii) Non-participating insurance contracts

interest rate 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances {criginal LVFS) 320% 2 40%

Non-profit temporary assurances 2 41% 1 66%

Whole of Iife assurances 2 41% 1 66%

Permanent health insurance

a} active hives 301% 207%

b} claims reserves 2 31% 142%

Cntical iiness 301% 207%

Other assurances 2 41% 1 66%

Annuities in payment 373% 327%

Protected retirement plan 373% 1 86%

Mortality rate tables 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances (original LVFS) AMSO/AFBO AMBO/AFB0O

Non-profit temporary assurances TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00 TMNOO/TMS0O0 TFNOO/TFSQ0

Whole of life assurances AMCOO/AFCO0 AMCOO/AFCOO

Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMS2/AF32

Anmnties in payment 80 75% RMVOO/RFV00 CMI_ 2013 80% RGA 2011 tables with CMI_2009
1 5%LT* 1 25% LT males/1% females

Protected retirement plan 80 75% RMV00/RFV00 CMI_2013 80% RGA 2011 tables with CMI_20089
1 5%LT 1 25% LT males/1% females

* Mortality improvement rates for enhanced annuity contracts include convergence factors based on expert advice

Morbldity rate tables 2013 2012
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives CMIR12 CMIR12

b) claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Cnitical illness Reinsurer rates Reinsurer rates

Appropnate adjustments were made to the standard mortality and morbidity tables to take account of actual experience and publicly
avallable market data

Per policy expenses — regular premiums 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances £22 55 £1997 %
Whole of ife assurances £16 83 £16 18 u"é
Permanent health mnsurance ;
a) active lives £30 36 £30 29 §
b) claims reserves (per policy in claim) £754 38 £715 54 -
Critical iliness £32 34 £30 37

Other assurances £44 44 £38 43

Annuities in payment £54 78 £52 80

Protected retirement plan £54 78 £52 80

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees tn the non-participating business

o
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28 Longterm insurance and investment contract labilities valuation assumptions (continued)

ill) Investment and iong-term linked Insurance contracts

The provision for unit linked pensions 1s equal to the value

of the assets to which the contracts are inked This is classified
as an investment product and the habitity I1s included within the
long-term investment contract habilities

b} Liverpool Victoria Life Company Limited
- Ordinary Long Term Fund

i) Participating insurance contracts
Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited has no
participating business

if) Non-participating insurance contracts

The provisions for index-linked permanent health insurance claims,
index-inked temporary assurances and index-linked annuities

in payment have been calculated using the same montality and
morbidity assumptions as used for the corresponding non-linked
habilities for both 2013 and 2012

Interest rate 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances 2 41% 1 66%

Other assurances 153% 167%

Mortality rate tabl 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances TMINOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFSO0 TMNOO/TMSO0 TFNOO/TFSO0
Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMO2/AF92
Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actual expenence

Per policy expenses — regular premiums 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances £22 55 £19 97

Other assurances £26 95 £27 17

c) RNPFN fund

RNPFN denotes Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses,

which 1s a ning-fenced fund The free assets attnbutable to this
fund are reported as insurance contract labilties of the Society

1) Participating business

For participating business, a market-consistent vatuation 1s used
to calculate the hability This involves placing a value on habilities
similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow
patterns The key assumptions used in this valuation are set

out In the tables below

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares

Interest rates
The interest rates for RNPFN are set using an approach
consistent with that described for the Society In section a(1)

Other assumptions

Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality,
expenses and persistency The future expense inflation
assumption ts modelled as RPi plus O 5% (2012 RPI plus 0 5%},
where RPI in both 2013 and 2012 1s modelted stochastically

at the valuation date 2013 2012
Cash 2 99% 16 32%
Fixed interest 60 49% 57 59%
Equities 34 71% 2347%
Property 1 81% 262%
Mortality rate tables 2013 2012
Conventionai Life Business 60% AM/F0O0 ult 60% AM/FOO0 ult
Life Deferred Annuities 50% AM/F00 uit 50% AM/FOO ult

Pension Deferred Annuities
Unitised with-profits Business

50% AM/FOO0 ult
60% AM/F00 ult

50% AM/FOO ult
60% AM/FOO ult
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28 Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2013 2012

Conventional Life Business £3720 £34 84

Pensions Deferred Annuities £42 10 £45 34

Life Deferred Annuities £37 20 £34 84

Unitised with-profits ISA £46 10 £49 30

Unitised with-profits Bond £3740 £41 18

Persistency — lapses, surrenders and paid up rates The total amount provided in respect of the future costs

A review of persistency 1S carned out annually Assumptions of the guaranteed annuity options was £77m (2012 £92m)

are adjusted where necessary to reflect more recent experience

as evidenced In the persistency trend analysis or to reflect Bonuses

expected future trends as a result of anticipated future events The cost of bonuses incurred dunng the year ended 31 December
2013 was £17m (2012 £15m) of which £ml (2012 £nil) was

Options and guarantees included in the long-term insurance contract habilities and £17m

The provisions held in respect of guaranteed annuity {2012 £15m) was included in gross benefits and claims paid

options are determined oh a market consistent basis in the Statement of Comprehenstve Income

liy Non-participating business

Interest rate 2013 2012
Non-profits assurances 2 48% 168%
Non profits general deferred annuities 2 48% 168%
Annutties In Payment (Life) 2 48% 168%
Annuities in Payment (Pension) 3 10% 2 10%
Pension Deferred Annuities 3 10% 210%
Mortality rate tables 2013 2012
Non-profits assurances 72 0% AM/F0O0 ult 72 0% AM/FOQ ult
Non-profits general deferred annuities 42 5% AM/F0OO0 ult 42 5% AM/FOO ult
Annuities in Payment {Male) 61 2% IMLOO with CMI_2009 61 2% CMI_2009,
LT 1 75% LT 2 0%
Annuities In Payment (Female) 72 3% IFLOO with CMI_2009 72 3% CMI_2009,
AT 1 5% LT 1 5%
Pension Deferred Annuities 42 5% AM/F0O0 ult 42 5% AM/FQO ult
Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actual expenence and publicly available %
market data &
[+]
el
ill) Linked fund the hability 1s included within the investment contract habiities §
There are two main classes of contract included within the linked The prowvision for unit hinked contracts 1s equal to the value of the =
fund, one 1s classified as an insurance contract and the habiity units A non-unit hiabihty consisting mainty of a sterling reserve
1s included within the long-term unit linked insurance contract calculated by carrying out cash flow projections on appropniate
lhatilities, the other 1s classified as an tnvestment product and bases s included within the liability for insurance contracts only
interest rate 2013 2012 2
Unit linked assurances 2 48% 168% §
Mortality rate tables 2013 2012

Unit linked assurances 72% AM/FO0 ult 72% AM/FOO ult
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29 Non-participating value of in-force business valuation assumptions

a) Soclety

Non-participating contracts

Interest rates

The earned rate and discount rate are set by reference to the risk with the exception of Annuities in payment and the Protected
free yield curve applicable at the valuation date with appropriate retirement plan where the earned rate 1s based on the IRR
adjustments for nsk premium and margins for nsk and uncertainty,  of the backing assets adjusted for nsk and uncertainty

Mortality rate tables 2013 2012

Non-profit temporary assurances (onginal LVFS) AMBO/AFBD AMBO/AFB0

Non-profit temporary assurances TMNOO/TMS00 TMNOO/TMSO00

TFNOO/TFSQO TFNOO/TFSOOQ

Whole of Life Assurances AMCOO/AFCO0 AMCCO/AFCQO

Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMO2/AFO2

Annuities in payment RMVOO/RFVQ0 CMI_ 2013 RGA 2011 tables with CMI_2009 LT
15%LT* 1 25% males/1% females

Protected retirement plan RMVQO/RFV0OQ CMI_2013 RGA 2011 tables with CMI_2009 LT
15%LT 1 25% males/1% females

Unit linked pensions {onginal LVFS) AM92C20/AFS2C20 AMS2C20/AF92C20

* Mortality improvement rates for enhanced annuity contracts include convergence factors set based on expert advice

Morbldity rate tables 2013 2012
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives CMIR12 CMIR12

b) claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Critical Hllness Relinsurer rates Reinsurer rates

Appropnate adjustments were made to the standard mortahty and morbidrty tables to take account of actual experence and publicly
available market data

Persistency and unit costs
Persistency and unit costs assumptions are based on our best estimate of future expenence

A review of persistency IS carned out annually Assumptions for each product class are adjusted where necessary to reflect more recent
experience as evidenced in the persistency trend analysis, or to reflect expected future trends as a result of anticipated future events

b} Liverpool Victoria Life Company Limited - Ordinary Long Term Fund
There 1s no non-participating value of in-force business recognised in the WVLC fund

¢) RNPFN fund
There 1$ no non-participating value of in-force business recognised 1n the RNPFN fund
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Fixed assets and investments

This section gives detail on the tangible, intangible and investment assets of the Society and Group that are used to generate profit for

the business

30 Intangible assets

Accounting for goodwlll and other intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwlll represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the acquisition
date and 1s included in intangible assets Goodwill 1S reviewed
for impairment at the end of the first full year of acquisition
Thereafter, it 1s tested at each Statement of Financral Position
date for impairment against the recoverable amount

{beng the higher of value in use or far value less cost)

of the relevant cash generating unit and carned in the
Statement of Financial Pasition at cost less accumulated
impairment losses Gains and losses on the disposal

of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwil]

relating to the entity sold

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been
eliminated against the Unallocated divisible surplus
This goodwill would be recogmsed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income should there be a subsequent
disposal of the business to which it relates

Other intangibles

Where an acquisition takes place that gives access to existing
customers, distribution channels or the nght te charge for
investment or policy administration services, the present
value of these Is recognised as an intangible asset

The carrying value of the asset Is amortised, on a straight
ine basis over Its expected economic life, and 15 assessed
annually for imparrment

The expected economic Iife of other intangibles carned by

the Group 1s determined by reference to acquired business,
considenng factors such as the remaining terms of agreements,
the normal lives of related products and the competitive
pesition, and lies within the range of 10 to 20 years

Present value of acquired inforce business (PVIF)

an acguisition of a portfolio of long-term insurance contracts,
the net present value of the Group’s interest in the expected
cash flows of the n-force business Is capitalised In the
Statement of Financial Position as an asset and 1s amortised,

Q

In ine with the oniginal expected run-off of 20 years,
based on the anticipated lives of the related contracts

The carrying value of the asset IS assessed annually
using current assumptions in order to determine whether
any Impairment has ansen, compared to the amortised
acquired value

Any amortisation or impairment charge 1s recorded in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income within Other operating
and admimistrative expenses

Significant accounting estimates and jJudgements

The Group determines whether goodwill and other intangible
assets are impaired at least on an annual basis This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill 1s allocated The Group has allocated
the goodwill to two single cash generating units based on the
key operating segments of the Group

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually for impairment, or more
frequently when there are indicators that impairment may have
occurred, by comparing the carrying value to its recoverable
amount The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
1s based on value-in-use c¢alculations The calculations are
based upon discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a
risk-adjusted interest rate appropriate to the cash generating
unit, the determination of both of which requires the exercise
of jJudgement The estimation of pre-tax cash flows 1s
sensitive to the penods for which forecasts are availlable and
to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash
flows While forecasts are compared with actual performance
and external economic data, expected cash flows reflect
management'’s view of future performance

Details of the key assumptions used Iin the estimation of the
recoverable amounts and the carrying value at the reporting
date are contained at the end of this note
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320 Intangible assets (continued)

Other

intangible
Goodwill assetls PVIF Total
Group £m £m im £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 239 95 63 397
Decrease n huy out value (see Note 44) (6) - - (6}
At 31 December 2013 233 95 63 391
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2013 21 76 48 145
Charge for the year - 3 4 7
Impairment in year - - 11 11
At 31 December 2013 21 79 63 163
Net hook value at 31 December 2013 212 16 - 228
Cost
At 1 January 2012 237 95 63 395
Increase in buy out value 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2012 239 95 63 397
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 21 68 44 133
Charge for the year - g 4 12
At 31 December 2012 21 76 48 145
Net book value at 31 December 2012 218 19 15 252
Present Value of acquired In-Force business (PVIF) was fully 10 and 20 years from the onginal acquisition date
wntten off in 2013 These intangible assets will be fully amortised by 2027
Other intangible assets comprise the value of the future benefit Amortisation of £7m (2012 £12m) s presented within
derived from the customer bases of RNPFN (in the Society) Other operating and administrative expenses in the
which has been fully amortised, Britannia Road Rescue, Highway Statement of Comprehensive Income There was
and the value of the Tomorrow/Retirement Solutions distribution an £11m impairment charge in 2013 (2012 £nil}
channel, which are being amortised over perods varying between
Goodwill has been allocated to the individual cash generating units which are based on the key segments of the Group as follows
Group
2013 2012
£m im
Long-term insurance business 67 67
General insurance business 166 172

233 239
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30 Intangible assets (continued)

Other

intangible
assets

Soclety £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 51
Additions -
At 31 December 2013 51
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2013 51
Charge for the year -
At 31 December 2013 51
Net book value at 31 December 2013 -
Cost
At 1 January 2012 51
At 31 December 2012 51
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 46
Charge for the year 5
At 31 December 2012 51

Net book value at 31 December 2012

Key assumptions used In the annual impalrment testing

of intangible assets

The key assumptions used for impairment testing are set

out betow for both the long-term insurance business and the
general Insurance business The longterm insurance business
corporates both the Hentage and Life businesses

Long-term insurance business

The recoverable amount of the longterm insurance business

has been determined using cash flow predictions based on
financial plans approved by management covering a five-year
period, with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter

The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax rate

of 10% Both the growth rate and the discount rate are consistent
with the ranges observed in the market place Based on the above
assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying
amount including goodwill by £286m A two percentage point
increase In the discount rate would reduce the recoverable
amount by £70m, the discount rate would need to be increased
to 65% to reduce the excess of the recoverable amount over

the carrying value to zero

A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would
reduce the recoverable amount by £49m, the forecast cash flows
would need to be reduced by 57% per annum to reduce the excess
of the recoverable amount over the carrying value to zero

General Insurance business

The recoverable amount of the general insurance business

has been determined using cash flow predictions based on
financial plans approved by management covening a five-year
perod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter

The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax rate

of 10% Both the growth rate and the discount rate are consistent
with the ranges observed in the market place Based on the above
assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying
amount includmg goodwill by £1,098m A two percentage point
increase In the discount rate would reduce the recoverable
amount by £312m, the discount rate would need to be increased
to 32% to reduce the excess of the recoverable amount over

the carrying value to zero

For the genera! Insurance business the cash flows used in the
financial plans are most sensitive to changes In the loss ratio
A 1% increase In the loss ratio would reduce the recoverable
amount by £203m, the loss ratio would need to increase by

5 5% to reduce the excess of the recoverable amount over the
carrying value to zero HKey loss ratio assumptions are based
on a comnauon of lustone and ¢urrent market place trends,
and management judgement
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31 Property and equipment

Leasehold property enhancements”
Fixtures, fittings and motor vehicles
IT systems (typical spend over £1m)

Accounting for property and equipment
Operational property and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the onginal purchase price
of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for 1ts intended use Both property and

eguipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over thewr esumated useful lives The perieds used are as follows

Freehold bulldings and finance lease property”

50 years

10 years or lease term f shorter

3to0 10 years

3 years

Provision 1s made for any impairment in property and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each Statement of Financial Position date

Assets under construction represent the cost of assets under development These assets are not deprecitated The total cost 1s
transferred to the appropnate asset ¢lass on completion and then depreciated over their estimated useful lives

Q

“These are properties used by the Group for operationa! purposes and are not investment properties which are deait with in Note 32

Freehold and Leasehold Fixtures,
leasehold property fittings and Assets under

property ts  motor vehicl IT systems construction Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 41 12 10 3 - 66
Additions - 2 1 - 4 7
At 31 December 2013 41 14 11 3 4 73
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 33 4 4 1 - 42
Provided in the year 1 2 1 1 - 5
At 31 December 2013 34 [ 5 2 - a7
Net book value at 31 December 2013 7 8 ] 1 4 26
Cost
At 1 January 2012 41 2 8 2 - 60
Additions - 4 2 1 - 7
Disposals - (1) - - - (1)
At 31 December 2012 41 12 10 3 — 66
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 32 3 4 - - 39
Prowded in the year 1 1 - 1 - 3
At 31 December 2012 33 4 1 - 42
Net book value at 31 December 2012 8 8 6 2 - 24

Included within the Freehold and leasehald property category are assets held under finance leases with a net book value

of £5m (2012 £5m)

Assets under construction relate to the caprtalisation of strategic investment in IT systems
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31 Property and equipment (continued)
Laasehold Fixtures,
property fittings and

gnhancemants  motor vohicles Total
Soclety £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 6 7 13
Additions - - -
At 31 December 2013 6 7 13
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 3 3 5]
Prowided in the year - 1 1
At 31 December 2013 3 4 7
Net book value at 31 December 2013 3 3 6
Cost
At 1 January 2012 5 5 10
Additions 2 2 4
Disposals (1) - (1)
At 31 December 2012 6 7 13
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 lanuary 2012 2 3 5
Provided in the year 1 - 1
At 31 December 2012 3 3 6
Net book value at 31 December 2012 3 4 7
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32 Investment properfies

Accounting for investment properties

Q

Investment properties are freehold and leasehold land and buildings held for long-term rental yields and capitat growth They are
heid at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded as fair value gains or losses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Fair value 1s determined annually by independent professional valuers based on market condiions

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Freeholds 58 129 58 96
Long leaseholds 21 36 21 36
79 165 79 132

All investment properties held by the Group and Society are occupied by third party tenants Al properties occupied by Group

undertakings are shown separately within Note 31

The market value movements in the year on land and bulldings were

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£Em £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 165 220 132 151
Additions 1 - 1 -
Disposals (87) 49) (54) (16)
Net fair value adjustment - (6) - {3)
Balance at 31 December 79 165 79 132
Due within one year 79 48 79 15
Qver one year - 117 - 117
79 165 79 132
The Group and Society enter into operating leases for all At 31 December 2013, the Society was actively divesting its
investment properties All rents are payable in advance and investment property portfolio, as a consequence 1t has all been
the rental income ansing duning the year amounted to £6m disclosed as due within one year in the table above
{2012 £8m) for the Group and Society, which is included
In investment income In 2012 investment properties due within one year represented
£33m of properties held within the Threadneedle UK Property
Non recoverable expenses are deducted from rental income Fund Il ICVC that was 1n the process of being wound up
for investment properties and amounted to £2m (2012 £2m) {refer to Note 49) and an additional property held directly
for the Group and Society by the Society that was sold in 2013
The future aggregate mirimum lease payments expected
to be receved In respect of these |eases are
Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 5 6 5 6
Between one and five years 21 23 21 23
Over five years 33 35 33 35
59 64 59 64
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32 Investment properties (continued)

Fair values of investment property

Valuation processes

The Group’s Investment properties were valued at 31 December
2013 by qual:fied professional valuers working for Colliers
International (UK) Plc who are professional, third party,
independent Chartered Surveyors All valuations were carned out
in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards
For all investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use The following table analyses the non-
financial assets carrnied at fair value, by valuation method

The different levels have been defined in Note 19

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 3 fair values
For UK properties, the valuation was determined using an income

approach Properties are valued using rental income and yield
assumpttons and take into account comparable properties in
close proximity These values are adjusted for differences In
key attributes such as property size and lease length The most
significant inputs into this valuation approach are the rental
income and yield assumptions

The Group's policy Is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
In cireumstances that caused the transfer There were no transfers
between levels during the years

There were no changes to the valuation techniques dunng the vear

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3}

Falr value at 31

December 2013 Range of unobservable Relationship of unobservable
GFOHP {Level 3) Valuatlon technique Unobservable inputs Inputs nputs to fair value
Description £m £m

Investment property
The higher the price per square
Office buldings 3  Income approach Rental income £15-£f16psf foot, the higher the farr value
Yields 11 87% The higher the yield,
the lower the far value
The higher the price per square
Retait units 55 Income approach Rental income £7-£17Qpsf foot, the higher the farr value
Yields 4 45%-16 80% The higher the yield,
the lower the fair value
- Manufacturing sites 21 income approach Rentai income £4-f6psf The higher the price per square
foot, the higher the fair value
Yields 7 26%- 11 20% The higher the yield,
the lower the fair value

79
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33 Investments in group undertakings

Accounting for investments in group undertakings
Shares in subsidiaries

Loan stock In subsldiaries

Loan stock in subsidiaries 1s initially measured at fair value Subsequent to initial recognition 1t 1s measured at amortised cost

Q

The subsidiaries are held in the Society's Statement of Financial Position at cost less any proviston for impairment An assessment
of the realisable value ts made at the year end and, if the Directors assess that there has been a permanent fall in that value betow
the carrying value, a provision 1s made to bring the carrying value down to the assessed realsable value

2013 2012
Soclety £m £m
Shares in subsidiaries
Cost iess provisions at 1 lanuary 551 723
Additions - 400
Sale of LVGIG Group to subsidiary undertaking - (484)
Increase / (reduction) in buy out provision (refer to Note 44) {6) 2
Impairment wnite off (79) (30}
466 551
Loan stock In subsidiaries
Cost at 1 January 351 234
Additions - 300
Redemption {51) {183)
300 351
Shares and loan stock in subsldlarles at 31 December 766 an2

The Society has examined the carrying value of its subsidianes

and concluded that a provision for tmpairment of £79m was
necessary (n regard to these investments (2012 £90m)
These impairments primanly arose due to the payment

of dividends to the Society thereby reducing the value

of the subsidiary companies

In December 2012 the Society sold its investment in Liverpool
Victoria General Insurance Group Limited (LVGIG) to LV Capital PLC,
a subsidiary undertaking at cost, in addition the Society invested

In £300m of loan notes 1ssued by LV Capital PLC

Further details of the Group's loan stock are given in Note 51

and the Group's iInvestments in Notes 47 and 48
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Other assets and liabilities

This section describes the other assets and habilities ansing from the life insurance business within the Society and the hfe insurance
and general insurance businesses within the Group

34 Insurance recelvables

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m im
Due from policyholders 144 148 1 1
Due from agents, brokers and intermediaries 69 67 - -
Due from reinsurers 10 12 10 12
223 227 11 13

Insurance receivabtes are all due within one year for both the Group and the Society

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

35 Prepayments and accrued income

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m im
Accrued dividends 6 4 3 2
Accrued interest 86 83 58 52
Other prepayments and accrued (ncome 22 20 9 10
114 107 70 64

Prepayment and accrued income balances are all due within one year for both the Group and the Society

36 Insurance payables

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m im £m £m
Due to policyholders 26 33 20 25
Due to brokers and intermediaries 1 1 1 1
Due to reinsurers 11 11 2 -
38 45 23 26

The carrying amounts disclosed ahove reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

37 Trade and other payables

Accounting for trade and other payables CD\ @
Trade and other payables are recognised as they fall due They are measured imitially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost =
@
2
1]
Group Soclety B
2013 2012 2013 2012 =
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 18 16 18 16
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 45 37
QOther taxes and soceal secunty costs 28 31 7 9
Gther creditors 52 50 27 16
Deferred rental income 3 3 2 3 @
Finance lease habilities 5 5 - - <‘§
Accruals and deferred income 107 90 67 57 §
213 195 166 138 w®

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Taxation

This sectton presents information relating to the tax charge and movements in the corporation and deferred tax assets and llabilities
held by the Society and Group

38 Income tax expense

Current income tax O\
Current income tax habilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the

taxation authonttes The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively

enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax I1s recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets

and liabihbies and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset I1s realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s settled Deferred income tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax llabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and labilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

a) Current year tax charge Group Soclety

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Current tax charge
Current year 8 20 - 8
Adjustment in respect of pnor years ~ (3) - -
Total current tax 8 17 -
Deferred tax
Excess of depreciation 1 - - -
Temporary differences 1 13 - 5
Tax losses - 4 - -
Total deferred tax 2 17 - 5
Total income tax expense 10 34 - 13
b) Reconciliation of tax charge Group Soclety

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer (*) 156 103 104 3
Tax calculated at the average standard rate of corporation tax in the UK at
23 25% (2012 24 5%) 36 25 24 1
Permanent differences
Income and expenses not subject to tax (3) (2} - {3}
Mutual profit not subject to tax at standard rate (24) - (24) -
Impact of change in UK corporation tax rate on deferred tax - 1 - -
Unprovided deferred tax movement 22 {11} 21 (11)
Transfer pricing - - - 2
Policyholder |-E tax {21) 24 (21) 24
Adjustment to current tax charge in respect of prior years - (3) - -
Total charge 10 34 - 13

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 Accordingly, the profits for this
accounting pericd are taxed, where applicable, at an effective rate of 23 25%

* As a Fnendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating pohcyholders and are carned forward within the Unallocated
divisible surplus, resulting in the profit for each financial year being zero Therefore the resulting Profit before tax required to be
disclosed under IAS 12 will always be equal to the tax charge being £10m (2012 £34m) and £nil (2012 £13m) for the Group
and Society respectively In order to present a more meaningful disclosure the Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer
1s disclosed n the tables above
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38 Income tax expense (continued)
The current year’s tax charge in the Society has been calculated
under the new UK tax regime applicable to life insurance business
from 1 January 2013 The fundamental changes included
- moving the basis of taxation for life Insurance companies
from a regulatory return basis to an accounts basis,
- altering the basts on which investment income and gains
are allocated to differing business types, and
— changing the classification for tax purposes
of protection business

39 Corporation tax asset

The effect of the changes has also been taken into account in the
calculation of deferred tax It 1s expected that the new regime may
lead to an acceleration of tax paid on chargeable gains over the
next 4-6 years compared to the old regime, but that the overall
effective tax charge should remain unaffected

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m im £m £m
Corporation tax receivable - - - 2
- — - 2
40 Deferred tax asset
Group Society
Em £m
Balance at 1 January 2013 14 13
Amounts recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income {2) -
Balance at 31 December 2013 12 13
Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
i) Analysis of deferred taxation temporary differences £m £m £m £m
Excess of depreciation 3 3 1 1
Temporary differences on expenses 37 11 40 12
Temporary differences arising on consofidation - (2) - -
Temporary differences on unrealised gains (28) 2 (28) -
Deferred tax asset 12 14 13 13
ii} Deferred taxation asset not recognised
Temporary differences on expenses - 22 - 22
Temporary differences on unrealised gains - (15) - {15)
Temporary difference on re-measurement of defined benefit scheme 1 i 1 1
Tax losses unrecogmsed 4 19 — 14
5 27 1 22

The value of deferred tax assets expected to be recovered
after more than 12 months 1s £7m in the Group {2012 £8m)
and £7mn the Society (2012 £8m)

The calculation of deferred tax balances at the year-end also takes
into account the reduction in the UK main corporation tax rate to
23%, effective from 1 Apnl 2013, and the two further reductions
to 21% and 20% substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 that will

be effective from 1 April 2014 and 1 Apnl 2015 respectively

The valuation and recoverability of deferred tax assets relating
to capital aliowances in excess of depreciation, differences

41 Corporation tax habihty

on expenses and gains and tax losses, 1S dependent on the
avallability of future taxable profits within the Society and Group
Management forecasts currently support the future recoverability
of the deferred tax asset recognised in the balance sheet as

at 31 December 2013

Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets totalling £22m

were recognised during the year due to a number of factors

These included an increase in the market value of equity
investments, changes to management forecasts on the emergence
of future taxable income and the utiisation of brought forward

tax losses dunng the year

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Corporation tax 2 8 - -

2 8 - -
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Employee benefits

This section details the costs and commitments associated with employing our staff

42 Employee benefits expense

Accounting for staff costs under IAS 19 Q
The Society and Group apply IAS 19 Employee benefits in accounting for staff costs

Short-term employee benefits

Salanes, accrued bonuses and social secunty costs are recognised over the penod in which the employees provide the services
to which the payments relate

Post-retirement benefits
The accounting policies and significant accounting Judgements refating 1o pensien benefits are disclosed within Note 43

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m Im
Wages and salares 204 182 204 182
Social security costs 18 17 i8 17
Defined benefit and defined ¢contnbution pension costs 25 17 25 17
247 216 247 216

The number of employees dunng the year, including executive directors, calculated on a monthly average basis, was as follows

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
Number Number Numbar Number
Member and customer contact 3,893 3,782 3,893 3,782
Administration 1,870 1,670 1,870 1,670
5763 5,452 5,763 5452

43 Pension benefit ablhigation

Accounting for penslon benefits under 1AS 19 q
For defined benefit schemes, the net surplus or deficit 1s calculated annually with the assets measured at the fair value at the
Statement of Financial Pasition date and the habihties discounted at the rate of return avaifable on high guality corporate bonds

The net surplus, to the extent recoverable, or deficit 15 recognised as a pension benefit asset or hality in the Statement
of Financial Position

The pension cost for the schemes 15 analysed between current service cost, past service cost, net interest on the net defined
benefit lability and any gain or loss on settlement Current service cost 1s the actuanally calculated present value of the benefits
earned by the active employees in each pertod Past service costs, relating to employee service in prior periods ansing in the current
penod as a result of the introduction of, or Improvement to, retirement benefits, are recogmsed in Other operating and admunistrative
expenses on a straight-ine basis over the perniod In which the increases in benefits vest or are earned

All movements other than re-measurements m respect of the pension benefit ebligation are recognised in Other operating and
admimistrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Actuanal gains and losses ansmg from experience adjustments

and changes in actuanal assumgptions are recognised as re-measurements 1n the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the penod
in which they anse

Far defined contrnibution plans, the Group pays contnbutions to an independently administered pension fund The Group has no further

payment obligations once the contnbutions have been paid The contnibutions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
they are due

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The valuations of the penston benefit obligations for the Group’s two defined benefit schemes require actuanal assumptions about
discount rates, infiation, future salary increases, longewity and future pension increases Due to the long-term nature of these
obhgations, the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

Details of the principal assumptions used for each of the defined benefit schemes are disclosed within the valuations of the
individual schemes disclosed in sections (1) and {) below
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43 Pension benefit obligation {continued)

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, the
LV= Employee Pension Scheme ( LV Scheme’) and the Ockham
Pension Scheme (acquired as part of an earlier acquisiion)

The Society 1s the principal employer for both of these schemes

Further details of the LV and Ockham schemes are disclosed
separately within sections (11} and {in} of this note respectively

i) Summary of defined benefit schemes

Defined contribution penslon schemes

All employees are eligible to join the defined contribution scheme
Employees contribute a mmmum of 3% of salary The emplovee
contribution 1s double matched by the Society up to a maximum
employer contribution of 14% The assets of this scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund The Group’s contribution under this scheme
during the year amounted to £13m (2012 £6m)

2013 2012
LV Scheme Ockham Total LV Scheme QOckham Total
Penslon benefit obligation £m £m £m £m £m £m
Obligation (12) 4) (16} (8} ] (10}
(12) @ (16} (8} 2) (10
2013 2012
LV Scheme Ockham Total LV Scheme Ockham Total
Rae-measurements £m £m £m £m £m £m
Re-measurements (s} (4) (9) (138} {7 (145)
Amount charged to Total Comprehensive Income (5) (4) (9) (138) {7} (145)
Cumulative re-measurements recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income 39 (5) 34 44 (1) 43

li) LV Scheme

a) Information about the scheme

The LV scheme s a final salary pension scheme, which provides
benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension
payable for life The level of henefits depends upon the member’s
length of service and their final salary

The scheme assels are held in a separate trustee-administered
fund to meet long-term pension liabilties to past and
present employees

The liabilities of the scheme are measured by discounting the
hest estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by the scheme
using the projected umit method, which 1s an accrued benefits
valuation method

The scheme has a Corporate Trustee required to act in the
best interests of the scheme’s beneficlanes The trustee may
be removed at the discretion of the Society, In its capacity as
principal employer, provided that the board of any new trustee
company comprises three directors representing the members,
including one director who must be a pensioner and up 1o a
further five directors selected by the Society

The scheme 1S closed to new entrants and was closed to future
accrual for existing members on 30 June 2013, at which time
they were eligible to join the defined contribution pension scheme
Allowance was made for the closure to future accrual within the
31 December 2012 year end figures with a curtailment gain of
£13m being recognised in 2012

2013 2012
b) Net Statement of Financlal Position £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation (1,061} {1,059)
Fatr value of plan assets 1,049 1,051
Pension benefit obllgatlon at the end of the year {12} {8}
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43 Pension benefit obligation (continued)

Present value Fair value of
of obligation plan assets Total
c) The movement In the net deflned benefit obligation over the year 1s as follows £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 (1,059) 1,051 (8)
Penslon costs
Current service cost {12) - (12)
Interest (expense)/income (43) 43 -
(55) 43 (12)
Re-measurements
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (expense)/income - {15} (15)
— Gain from changes n financial assumptions 8 - 8
— Experience gains 2 - 2
10 {15) {5)
Other movements
— Contributions by employer - 13 13
— Benefits paid 40 (40) -
— Administrative expenses paid 3 (3) -
43 (30) 13
At 31 December 2013 {1,061) 1,049 (12)
At 1 January 2012 (942) 1050 108
Pension costs
Current service cost {22) - (22)
Interest {expense)/income {44) 43 {1)
Gain on curtailment 13 - 13
(53) 43 (10)
Re-measurements
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest {expense)/income - (34) {34)
- Gain from changes in demographic assumptions 40 - 40
- Loss from changes in financial assumptions (127) - (127)
- Experience losses (17) - 17)
{104) (34} {138)
Other movements
— Contributions by employer - 32 32
— Benefits paid 37 (37) -
— Administrative expenses paid 3 (3) -
40 (8) 32
At 31 December 2012 {1,059) 1,051 {8)
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43 Pension benefit obligation {continued)
if) LV Scheme (continued)

d) Princlpal assumptions used 2013 (%) 2012
Discount rate 4.6% 4 1%
RPI inflation 3.6% 30%
CPlinflation 26% 20%
Rate of salary increase 36% 3 0%
Pension increases for in-payment benefits
— RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa, floor of 3% pa 36% 3 5%
-~ RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa 3 6% 30%
— RPI price inflation capped at 2 5% pa 25% 22%
— CPI pnice inflation capped at 3 0% pa 26% 19%
Rate of {(non-guaranteed mintmum pension} increases in deferment 26% 20%
Cash commutation Active 100% 100%
Deferreds 20 0% 20 0%

Scheme member valuation date

31 March 2012

31 March 2012

(*) - The discount rate and inflation rate assumptions for 2013 have been set with reference to yield curves The single rates disclosed

above represent the weighted average equivalent rate based on the yeld curve used

Mortality for members is assumed to follow the tables

below as at 31 December 2013 2012
Pre-retirement mortality Deferred pensioners

- Males 1NMA x 0 95 table 1NMA x 0 95 table
- Females ANFA x 0 98 table 1NFA x O 98 table
Post-retirement mortality Non-pensioners

- Males LV specific tables from Club Vita LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

— Females {former employees)

— Females (dependants)

Post-retirement mertality current pensioners and dependants
- Males LV specific tables from Club Vita
— Females {former employees) LV speclfic tables from Club Vita
- Females (dependants) LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV spectfic tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

In all cases, as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, CMI Core 2011 projections with a long-term trend of 1 25% have

been apphed

e) Sensitivity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions

Change In b on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Increase by 0 25% Decrease by £49m (4 6%}
RPI rate Increase by 0 25% Increase by £31m (2 9%)
Cash commutation Nil Increase by £24m (2 2%)

Mortality improvements long-term rate Increase by 0 25%

Increase by £14m (1 3%)

The methodology and types of assumptions used In preparing the sensitivity analysis has not changed compared to the prior penod
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43 Pension benefit obligation (continued)

il) LV Scheme (continued)

f) Plan asset information

The following table shows a breakdown of the plan assets

2013 2012
Quoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

£m £m Im % £m £m £m %
Equities 139 14 153 15% 125 17 142 14%
Debt securities 720 - 720 68% 770 - 770 2%
Cash and cash equivalents 125 - 125 12% 31 - 31 3%
Real estate/property - 39 39 4% - 91 91 9%
Other - 12 12 1% - 17 17 2%
Total 984 65 1,049 100% 926 125 1,051 100%

The investrment objectives of the Scheme remain the maximisation

of income and capital growth consistent with the principles of
prudent management Investment managers have been appointed
by the trustee to exercise all or any of the trustee’s powers and
discretion in relation to investment of the scheme's assets

The principal cbjectives are stated below

+ To maintain a portfolio of assets of appropriate Iiquichty and

diversification to generate income and capital growth to enable

the scheme to meet the cost of current and future benefits
as set out in the Trust Deed and Rules,

+ To limit the risk of the assets failing to meet the habihties
over the long term and In relation to the scheme specific
funding measure intreduced by the Pensions Act 2004
in the shorter term, and

* To control the long-term costs of the scheme by maximising
the return on the assets whilst having regard to the objectives
stated above

Following the triennial scheme vaiuatton that took place as

at 31 March 2012, the Society as princtpal employer agreed,

on behalf of participating employees, to make monthly
contributions of 18 6% of pensionable sataries from 1 Aprd 2013
unti the date of closure to future accrual on 30 June 2013

Prior to 1 Apnil 2013 the monthiy contribution rate was 17 9%

of pensionabie earnings From 1 Apni 2013 no additional deficit
contributions have been made by the Society Prior to this date
additional deficit contnbutions of £0 9m per month had been
made in addition to these funding contnbutions the Society has
agreed to make payments of £148,000 per month towards the
regular expenses of administenng the defined benefit section of
the Scheme plus payments equal to the pension protection fund
(PPF) levies The next formal valuation of the scheme 1s due no
later than 31 March 2015

g) Pension scheme risks

Through its defined benefit pension schemes the Group 1s
exposed to a number of nsks, the most significant of which
are detalled below

Asset volatility

Changes in
bond yields

Inflation risk

Life expectancy

The plan habihties are calculated using a
discount rate set with reference to corporate
bond yields, If plan assets underperform this
yield, this will create a deficit The plan assets
are predominantly held in debt secunties which
match the liabiltties with a smaller holding

of equities that are expected to cutperform
corporate bonds in the long-term

A decrease Iin corporate bond yieids will
increase plan liabihties, altheugh this will
partially be offset by an increase 1n the
value of the scheme's bond holdings

The majority of the scheme’s benefit obligations
are linked to inflation, therefore an increase

in inflation will fead to an increase n habilities
In most cases, caps on the level of inflationary
Increases are in place to protect the scheme
agamnst significant nses in inflation

The scheme's obligations are to provide
benefits for the life of the member, so any
increases In {ife expectancy will result in
an increase In the scheme’'s habilities

in December 2012 the trustees of the

LV Scheme entered into a longevity swap
which mitigated the majonty of this nsk
for the LV scheme

h) Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension beneflts Less than Botweon Between
a year 12 years 2.5 years Over § years Total
£im £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013 40 42 176 2,741 2,999

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1s 18 years

The expected contributions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2014 are £2m
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43 Pension benefit obligation (continued)
in) Ockham Scheme
a) Information about the scheme

The Ockham scheme I1s & final salary pension scheme, The scheme has a Board of Trustees who are required to act
which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed In the best interests of the scheme's beneficiaries Two of the
level of pension payable for ife The level of benefits depends trustees are nominated by the members under the rules notified
upon the members’ length of service and their final salary to the members of the scheme, to serve for a period of three
The scheme 15 closed to new entrants years [n accordance with the trust deed, the Society, as prnincipal
employer, has the power to appoint and remove the other trustees
The scheme assets are held in separate trustee-administered of the scheme The member-nominated trustees may be removed
funds to meet long-term pension habilities to past and before the end of their three year term only by the agreement
present employees of all the remaining trustees

The llabilities of the scheme are measured by discounting the
best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by the scheme
using the projected umit method, which 1s an accrued benefits
valuation method

2013 2012
b) Net Statement of Financlal Position £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation (120) (117)
Falr value of plan assets 116 115
Pension benefit obligation at the end of the year {4) (2)
Present value Falr value of
of obligation plan assets Total
c) The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 {117) 115 (2)
Penslon costs
Interest (expense)/INncome {5) 5 -
{5) 5 -
Re-measurements:
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest {expense)/income - {2} {2)
- Loss from changes in financtal assumptions (2) - (2)
2) (2) )
Other movements
— Contnbutions by employer - 2 2
— Benefits paid 4 4) - w
4 (2) 2 d
At 31 December 2013 (120) 116 {4) ﬂgi
s
[1]
At 1 January 2012 (107) 106 1) §
Pension costs
Interest (expense)/income (5) 4 (1)
(5) 4 (1)
Re-measurements
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (expense)/income - 2 2
— Gan from changes 1in demographic assumptions 4 - 4 o
— Less from changes n financial assumptions {11) - (11) ?'g
— Expenence losses {2) - ) &
{9) 2 (7) @
Other movements
- Contnibutions by employer - 7 7
- Benefits pad 4 (C)) -
4 3 7

At 31 December 2012 {117) 115 (2)
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43 Pension benefit obligation (continued)
ili) Ockham Scheme {continued)

d) Principal assumptions used 2013 () 2012
Discount rate 4 5% 4 1%
RPI inflation 35% 3 0%
CPl inflation 2 6% 2 0%
Rate of salary increase 35% 30%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
- hnked to inflatton 35% 30%
- fixed rate In line with scheme rules In ine with scheme rules
Rate of (non-guaranteed mimimum pension) increases In deferment 2 6% 20%
Active 10 0% 10 0%

Cash commutation Deferreds 20 0% 20 0%

(*) - The discount rate and inflation rate assumptions for 2013 have been set with reference to yield curves The single rates disclosed
above represent the weighted average equivalent rate based on the yield curve used

Mortality rate assumptions are based on the same mortality tables as disclosed within the LV Scheme

e} Sensitivity analysls Impact on defined benefit cbligation of making changes to key assumptions

Change In assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Increase by 0 25% Decrease by £4 8m (4 1%)
RPI rate Increase by 0 25% Increase by £3 3m (2 8%)
Cash commutation N1l Increase by £4 5m (3 7%)
Mortality improvements long-term rate Increase by 0 25% Increase by £1 6m (1 4%}

The methodology and types of assumptions used in prepanng the sensitivity analysis has not changed compared to the prior period

f} Plan asset information
Plan assets are compnsed as follows

2013 2012

Quoted Unquoted Total % Quoted Unguoted Total %

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Equities 33 - 33 28 30 - 30 26
Debt secunties 67 - 67 58 67 - 67 58
Dernwvative swaps - 15 15 13 - 17 17 15
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - 1 1 1 - 1 1
Total 101 15 116 1.00 98 17 115 100

The overall investment objective of the Ockham pension scheme 1S Following the tnenmal scheme valuation that took place as
to obtain a rate of return, net of investment management charges, at 31 March 2012 the trustees and the Society agreed that

that 1s 2 5% p a In excess of the return available on securities no additional employer funding contributions would be required
that broadly match the term and nature of the scheme’s future from 1 Apnil 2013, other than the expenses of admimistenng
benefit payments within a risk budget that the trustees consider the scheme, including PPF levies Pnor to this date the Society
to be appropriate This involves the use of denvative (a ‘swap had been making additional deficit funding contributions of
overlay') to reduce the nsks of the assets not matching the nature £0 6m per month The next formal valuation 1s due no later
and term of the scheme's future benefit cbhgations than 31 March 2015

g) Penslon scheme risks
Detalls of the pension scheme risks that the Group Is exposed to are disclosed within the LV Scheme

h) Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits B Lavemn 2o overS years Total
£m £m £m £m im
At 31 December 2013 4 4 20 261 289

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation 1s 16 years
No contributions are expected to be made to the Ockham pension scheme for the year ending 31 December 2014
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

This section describes the provisions, contingent habilities and commitments of the Society and Group ansing from the ongoing hife and
general insurance businesses and the exit from the banking and asset management businesses In prior years

44 Provisions

Accounting for provisions Q
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 15 more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been rehiably estimated Where the
Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed it 1s recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement 1s certain

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the tme value of money and the rnisks specific to the obligation

The expense relating to provisions 15 presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Onerous contracts

A provision 1s made for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation exceed the expected future
economic benefits

Movement during the year on provisions

Group Soclety
Buy out PPl Other Buy out PPl Other
payments provision provisions Total payments provision provisions Totad
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2013 41 13 12 66 q1 13 9 63
Charge to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income - - 1) ) - - & @
Reduction to goodwill (6) - - (6} (6) - - (6)
Provided during the year - - q 4 - - 2 2
Utiised during the year {35} (5) (8} {48) (35) (5) (6) (46)
Balance at 31 December 2013 - 8 7 15 - 8 4 12
Other provisions relate to
Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Employer taxes - 6 - 5]
Onerous contracts on property leases 2 3 1 2
Compensation payable on customer complaints 1 2 - -
Qther 4 1 3 1
7 12 4 9
The buy out payments provision related to the acquisition in There are a large number of inter-dependent assumptions 2]
2006 by the Society of 95% of LV Insurance Management Limited underpinning the PP| provision When considering the key %
(then known as ABC Insurance Solutions Limited} The hability was assumptions separately, the most significant driver of the provision %
settled in full in May 2013 Further details are contained within is complaint flow If the level of complaints were 10% higher (lower) F3
the related party disclosures within Note 51 than the estimated level for all policies, assuming no change §
in other assumptions, then the provision would have increased
The payment protection insurance (PPl} provision 1s held to {decreased) by approximately £1m
cover future payments in respect of claims refating to PPI
policies potentially mis-sold to customers Following a review of The Group will re-evaluate the assumptions underlying 1ts analysis
outstanding PPI claims carried out during the year, the current level  at each reporting date as more information becomes available
of provision held 15 expected to be sufficient 1o cover the costs ©
of expected future redress and administration At 31 December %
2013, following payments made dunng the year of £5m, the 3
provision was £8m Given the assumptions made 1t 1s expected ﬁ

that up to £2m of payments will be set agamst this provision
dunng 2014, with the remainder of the provision utihsed within
four years
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45 Contingent habilities

Accounting for contingent liabllitles Q
Contingent liabilities are disclosed if there 15 a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present
obligation as a result of a past event but either a payment is not probable or the amount cannot be reasonably estimated

The Society has granted a contingent loan facility to the RNPFN with this facility only to be considered as a short-term emergency

fund, a closed fund within the Society, up to a maximum of £100m,  facility in the event of sudden and severe investment shocks

to be used in the event of a shortfall in the capital resources of or an insurance catastrophe event

that fund The RNPFN fund 1s required to manage its capital in a

manner s¢ as not to require use of this facility and, if 1t 1s used, As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 a contingent hability of

1o repay It to the Society as soon as possible While undrawn, £24m existed in respect of a fixed charge over certain assets of

a charge for the facility 1s made at 1% per annum the Group which have been charged to the trustees of the Ockham
pension scheme as part of its deficit funding arrangements agreed

The Society has also granted a capital facility of £20m to the with the Society The charge wilt only crystallise in the event of the

board of LVGIG to be used n the event of a shortfall in the capital insolvency of the Society or Liverpool Victeria Insurance Company

solvency of LVGIG's regulated subsidiaries This would take the Limited or proceedings being started by their creditors

form of a permanent capital contribution and repayment woutd

therefore be dependent on the future solvency position of LVGIG No claims under this hability have been made and no insolvency

The risk appetite adopted by the LVGIG board requires the proceedings have commenced against either LVFS or the Group

directors to manage its affairs within 1ts agreed capital budget, during the course of 2012 and 2013

46 Commitments

Accounting for assets held under leases C)\
Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements and the rnisks and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group,

such finance leases are treated as If the assets had been purchased outrnight and the corresponding hability to the lessor 1s in¢luded
as an obligation in trade and other payables Depreciation on leased assets 15 charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

on a straight ine basis over the lower of the term of the lease or its estimated useful hfe The capital element on finance leases

1s shown n the property and equipment note

Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest 1s charged to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

All other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight ine basis over the
lease term The value of any lease incentive recewved to take on an operating lease (for example, rent free periods) is recognised
as deferred income and 1s released over the life of the lease

a) Capital commitments Group Soclaty
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Authornised and contracted commitments payable after 31 December not
provided for i respect of

— property investments - 1 - 1
- other financtal investments 27 35 27 35
— property and equipment 1 - 1 -

28 36 28 36
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46 Commitments (continued)

b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various properties under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal nghts The future aggregate

minimum lease payments nét of income under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows

Group Soclaty
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 6 7 4 5
Between one and five years 15 19 10 14
Over five years 1 3 1 2
22 29 15 21

The Group has entered Into commercial subleases for scme of Hs
properties that are unoccupied These leases have varying terms
and escalation clauses Where these subleases are insufficient
to cover the Group’s operating lease agreements an onerous
contract provision for unused premises Is set up

The future aggregate minimum sublease payments expected
to be recewved under operating subleases are

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 1 1 - 1
Between one and five years 2 3 2 2
3 4 2 3

¢) Flnance lease commitments

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its properties under
finance leases The average lease term 1s 99 years Interest rates
are fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment

basis and no arrangements have been entered mto for contingent
payments The Group’s obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

Group
2013 2012
£m £m
Gross finance lease habiities — mimimum tease payments
Within one year 1 1
Between one and five years 5 5
Over five years 87 88
93 94
Future finance charges on finance leases (88) (89)
Present valye of financial fease habilities 5 5
Group
2013 2012
£m £m
The present value of finance lease liabilities 15 as follows
Between one and five years 1 1
Qver five years 4 4
5 5

d} Other financial commitments
The Group has entered into several long-term contracts following
service outsourcing These contracts will end no later than 2018

The present value of the remaining commitment

1s estimated at £30m (2012 £89m) for the Group

and the Society These amounts have not been provided
for in the financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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Scope of consolidation |

This section presents infermation on the Group's iInvestments tn substdianes, joint ventures, assoclates and open ended
Investment companies (OEICs) Detail 1s also given of the Unaliocated divisible surplus of the Society and Group

47 Subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Society at 31 December 2013 are shown below
The Group and all principal undertakings are incorporated and domicited in England and Wales

All holdings are In relation to ordinary shares
The registered office 1s County Gates, Bournemouth BH1 2NF

Name

Principal activity Percentage held

Subsldlaries

Frizzell Financial Services Limited

Highway Insurance Company Limited*

Highway Insurance Group Ltd* (Note 1)

Liverpool Victoria Financial Advice Services Limited (Note 1)
Liverpool Victoria General Insurance Group Limited*
Liverpool Victoria Insurance Company Limited*
Liverpool Victena Life Company Limited

Liverpool Victona Portfolio Managers Limited

LV Capital PLC {Note 1)

LV Equity Release Limited (Note 1}

LV Insurance Management Limited* {Note 1}

LV Life Services Limited {Note 1)

NM Pensions Trustees Limited (Note 1)

* Owned by a subsidiary undertaking of the Society

Note 1 - The financial statements of these subsidiary undertakings
have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2013
These subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual
accounts by virtue of Section 479A of the Compames Act 2006
The following other subsidiaries are also taking advantage of

48 Associates and joint ventures

Property management 100%
General insurance 100%
General insurance holding company 100%
Financial advice services 100%

General insurance holding company 99%

General insurance 100%
Life insurance 100%
Investment management 100%
Holding company 100%
Equity release lifetime mortgages 100%
Management services 100%
Management services 100%
Selfinvested personal pension 100%

(SIPP) adminustrator

thes exemption from the audit requirement LV Protection Limited,
Liverpool Victonia Asset Management Limited, Ayresbrook Limited,
NLC Name No 2 Limited, NLC Name No 7 Limited and Liverpool
Victona Banking Services Limited

All the principal subsiciaries have the same year end as the
Society and all have been included in the consohdation

The associates and joint ventures of the Society at 31 December 2013 are shown below

They are incorporated and dormiciled in England and Wales

Name Class of shares Year end Principal activity Percentage held
Joint ventures
Great Victona Partnership * 31/03/2013 Investment property 50 0%

* The percentage held represents the share of the partnership capital and partner loans held by the Society as at 31 December 2013
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49 Open ended investment companies
The open ended investment companies (OEICs) of the Society and Group at 31 December 2013 are shown below

All OEICs are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales and included within the Group consolidation

Name Principal activity Year end P tage of units held *
Threadneedle Investment Funds |l ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2013 93 20%
which consists of

Threadneedle European ex-UK Growth Fund 97 40%
Threadneedle Japan Growth Fund 100 00%
Threadneedle Pacific ex-Japan Growth Fund 100 00%
Threadneedle UK Equity Income Fund 88 45%
Threadneedle US Equity Income Fund 98 26%
Threadneedle UK Growth Fund 60 96%
Threadneedle Investment Funds |l ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2013 7073%
which consists of

Threadneedle UK Corporate Bond Fund 93 68%
Threadneedle UK Fixed Interest Fund 99 66%
Threadneedle UK Index Linked Fund 93 16%
Threadneedle UK Short-Term Money Market Fund 99 58%
Threadneedle Balanced Managed Fund 95 59%
Threadneedle UK Medium and Long-Dated

Corporate Bond Fund 41 35%
Threadneedle UK Short-Dated Corporate Bond 69 74%
Threadneedle Worldwide Sefect Fund 78 87%
Threadneedle Investment Funds IV ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 3170372013 8070%
which consists of

Threadneedle Diversified Income Fund 41 31%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 3 76 70%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 4 81 28%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 5 83 05%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 6 85 57%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 7 83 12%

in December 2012 1t was announced that the Threadneedle UK Property Fund Il ICVC was to close Threadneedle consequently obtained
permission from the regulatory authorities to close the Company The winding up process was completed in 2013 with
the final distnbution being made to unit holders in June 2013

* excludes units held by the LvV= Employee Pension Scheme
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued
Year ended 31 December 2013

50 Unallocated divisible surplus

Accounting for the Unallocated divisible surplus O\ f
The Unallocated divisible surplus represents the excess of assets over and above the long-term insurance contract habihities and other
habilities It represents amounts that have yet to be formally declared as bonuses for the participating contract policyhaolders together
with the free assets of the Society and Group Any profit or loss for the year ansing through the Statement of Comprehensive Income
(for the Society and for the Group) 15 transferred to or from the Unallocated divisible surplus

UK regulations, the Group's Principles and Practices of Financial Management, and the terms and conditions of participating contracts
set out the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the participating additional discretionary contract benefits are based
and withuin which the Group may exercise ts discretion as to the quantum and timing of their payment to contract holders

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 861 a58 879 1,065
Transfer included within profit for the penod 124 48 82 (31)
Transfer included within other comprehensive income (9) {145} {9) (145)
Balance at 31 December 976 861 952 879

Cumulative goodwill of £200m in the Group (£62m in the Society} ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been eliminated against
the Unallocated divisible surplus This goodwill would be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income should there be
a subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates
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Other disclosures

This section details other disclosure matters, compnsing related party transachions, directors’ emoluments, with-profits actuary details

and other relevant Society information
51 Related party transactions

a) Key management compensation

Key management personnel of the Group compnise all executive and non-executive directors and senlor management
The summary of the compensation of key management personne! for the year is as follows

Group

2013 2012

£ 000 £000

Short-term emptoyment benefits 6,220 6,139
Other long-term benefits 3,368 2,865
Post-employment benefits 240 216
Termination benefits 510 -
10,338 9,220

Total compensation of key management personnel

The Society made contributions to the LV= Employee Pension
Scheme of an average of 18 3% of pensionable salaries for the
period to 30 June 2013 (2012 17 8% of pensionable salanes),
subject to annual allowance limits, 1n respect of all permanent
staff, iIncluding executive directors The defined benefit section
of the scheme closed to future accrual on 30 June 2013 at
which point existing members were eligible to join the defined
contrnibution scheme

Included within key management personnel are all the vendors
(tncluding John O'Roarke, a director of the Society) of ABC
Insurance Solutions Limited ('ABC’) who, as part of the acquisition
by the Society of 95% of ABC in 2006, entered into a contract
with the Society, whereby the Society undertook to purchase the
remaiming 5% for & price based on the market value of the general
insurance business at 31 December 2012 This habihity was
settled in full in May 2013 for a consideration of £35m, of which
£7 8m was paid to Mr O’Roarke Further details are disclosed
within Note 44

During May 2013 the vendors of ABC invested £4 5m in new '8’
ordinary share capital of Liverpool Victoria General Insurance
Group Limited, a subsidiary undertaking of the Society, as part of
a new arrangement covering the three year penod from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2015 Mr O'Roarke invested £1m as part
of this arrangement This new arrangement allows certain key
management personnel to benefit from the total shareholder
return (being the equity increase in the market vaivation of the
general insurance business plus ordinary dividends paid) over
this three year pericd This arrangement has been accounted for
as a cash-settled share-based payment transaction under IFRS 2,
details of which are disclosed in Section d) below

The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Group
Executive and Non-Executive Directors in respect of the Group's
products was £64,398 (2012 £57,827)

2013 2012
b) The following transactions have taken place between the Saclety and other group companies £m £m
Management charge by the Society 216 191
Movement in deferred margin {(included In other financial habilities) (3) {10)
Beneficial interest of subsidiary in foans sold to the Society 139 226
Investment expense charge to the Sociely (7) (6}
Interest income from group undertakings 3s 7
Dividend income from group underiakings 47 94
Balances outstanding between the Society and other Group companes
2013 2012
£m £m
Payabfe by the Society (64) (53)
Recewvable by the Society 97 87
Loans owed to the Society 300 351
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Year ended 31 December 2013

51 Related party transactions (continued)

c) Loans to related parties

Loans owed to the Scciety represent two subordinated loan
notes totalling £300m (2012 £300m} to LV Capital PLC 1ssued
in December 2012 and secured loans of £n1l (2012 £51m)

to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited These foans are
disclosed within loan stock in Note 33 The £51m loan balance
with Liverpool Victoria Equity Release Limited was repaid

in March 2013

The terms of the loans to LV Capitat PLC are

() A £130m unsecured subordinated lcan note repayable
in 2015 with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 8 5%, and

{n A £170m unsecured senior loan note repayable in 2047
with an interest rate of 9%

LV Capital may, subject to one month's notice and obtaining
written agreement of the Society, repay all or part of these loans

In addition to the loan notes disclosed above, a £300m loan note
was issued to LV Capital PLC hy the Society on 10 December 2012
and subsequently cancelled on 21 December 2012

Previous loans owed to the Society by Liverpool Victona Equity
Release Limited and Lwerpoo! Victoria General Insurance Group
Limited were repaid in December 2012 These related to loans
designated at fair value through income and subordinated loan
notes respectively The subordinated loans to Liverpool Victona
General Insurance Group Limited bore interest at 1% above UK six
month LIBOR and were of a medium to long-term nature The loans
to Liverpool Victonia Equity Release Limited repard in Decemnber
2012 and March 2013 had fixed interest and repayment terms
established at the outset of each advance

d) Share schemes

During the year, certain key management personnel within the
general insurance business {refer Section a) above)} subscnbed
for 4 5 milhon £1 'B” ordinary shares in Liverpool Victona General
Insurance Group Limited {LVGIG) Pursuant to the Articles of
Association of LVGIG, the Society i1s required to purchase these
shares 1n 2016 for a price equal to par plus rolled-up interest
plus a percentage of the increase in the total shareholder return
{plus ordinary dividends paid) of the General Insurance business
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015, as set out below

a) 0% if the growth rate s less than 9%,

b) 5% if the growth rate 1s 9%,

¢) Between 5% and 15% on a straight line basis to the extent
the growth rate 1s between 9% and 19%, or

d) 15% if the growth rate s greater than 19%

The purchase in 2016 1s contingent on the key management
personnel remaming with the Group until 31 December 2015,
any leavers prior to this date will have therr shares purchased
for a lesser amount based on the proportion of the three year
period from 1 January 2013 to their date of leaving

The table below shows the amount of shares included n this

share scheme arrangement, the current best estimate of the

fair value of the goods and services that the Group will receve {
as a part of this arrangement and the potential final valuation

of the shares

The fair value of the goods and services received by the
Group 15 being accrued evenly over the three year term of the
arrangement resulting in a £10m charge to Staff costs within
the 2013 financial statements The current hability to the key
management personnel of £14 5m 1s included within Trade
and other payables Mr O’'Roarke, a director of the Society,
has a 22% interest in this iabihty

Shares subscribed  FV of goods and Estimated final share
for (£'000) services (£'000) valuation (£'000)
4,500 10,000 14,500

The market valuation of the general insurance business used
for the purpose of calculating the estimated final share valuation
above is based on an internal estimate The final valuation at
31 December 2015 will be based on an independent third party
valuation 1n the event that a value cannot be agreed between
the parties

e} Other related party disclosure

As disclosed in Note 45, the Society has granted a contingent
loan facility to the RNPFN fund, a ctosed fund within the Group,
which 1s disclosed in contingent habilities

52 With-Profits Actuary
The following information has been provided in accordance

with section 77 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992

a) The With-Profits Actuary duning the year was Mr N J Dumbreck,
a Principal with the London office of Miliman LLP, an external
consultancy firm The Society pad fees of £262,210 inclusive
of VAT and expenses, to Miliman LLP dunng 2013 (2012
£388,491) in respect of Mr Dumbreck’s professional services
It also paid fees of £21,390, inclusive of VAT and expenses,
to Milltman LLP durning 2013 (2012 £54,000) in respect
of services unrelated to Mr Dumbreck's role as With-

Profits Actuary

b

=

Mr Dumbreck holds two (2012 four) insurance policies
1ssued on standard terms by one of the Society s subsidiaries
He had no other pecuniary interest in any transactions with
the Society at any time durning the year

¢} Mr Dumbreck was appointed as With-Profits Actuary of the
Soclety on 16 February 2012 The With-Profits Actuary of the
Society until 16 February 2012 was Mr P M Downey, who IS
employed by the Society The total emoluments of Mr Downey
during this period 1in 2012 on a pro rata basis were £23,604
Including car allowance and medicat benefits Mr Downey
IS a participant in the Society’s long-term incentive plan
and he!d one insurance policy issued on normal staff terms
by a subsidiary of the Society
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53 Directors' emoluments
The aggregate amount of directors’ emoluments was as follows

a) Emoluments of individual directors, including emoluments of the Chairman and highest pald director were as follows for the Soclety

Annual r tion £000 Total remuneration £000
2013 2012 2013 2012
Pension
Deferred ratated Other LTIF

Salary Bonus bonus henefits*  benefits Total Total 201113 Total Total

M J Rogers 518 378 46 114 17 1,073 1,191 1,291 2,364 2,622
PW Moore 353 202 38 49 14 656 661 661 1,317 1,393
R A Rowney 313 190 - 87 is 605 642 574 1,179 1227
J B Q'Roarke 288 150 - 80 14 532 593 - 532 593
M E Austen 135 - - - - 135 72 - 135 72
J Edwards 69 - - - - 69 62 - 69 82
C Keers 65 - - - - 65 61 - 65 61
D Holt {resigned 23 May 2013) 65 - - - - 65 153 - 65 153
C Burton 61 - - - - 61 56 - 61 56
J Dean (appointed 26 July 2012} 61 - - - - 61 22 - 61 22
D Neave (appointed 1 June 2013) 39 - - - - 39 - - 39 -
D I W Reynolds (resigned 31 October 2012) — - = - - - 60 - - 60
Total 1,967 920 84 330 60 3,361 3,573 2,526 5,887 6,321

{ ) Pension related benefits, include payments made to the Group's

defined contnbution pension scheme, the equivalent value of
deferred benefit accrued benefit increases calculated using the
HMRC method and payments in lieu of pension contributions

Deferred bonus represents the amount of the 2013 performance
bonus payable over the next three years Further details are
disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report

J B O’Roarke does not participate in the Group LTIP scheme but
has entered into a separate share scheme arrangement which
15 disclosed further within the related party transaction Note 51
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Other benefits include car allowances, medical, relocation,
Iife assurance and other benefits in kind or therr equivalent
monetary value

b} Pension arrangements

R A Rowney and J B O’Roarke are members of the LV=
Employee Pension Scheme, which 1s a defined benefit scheme
PW Moore left the defined contribution scheme durning 2012

The Society made contnbutions to the V= Employee Pension
Scheme of an average of 18 3% of pensionable salaries for the
period to 30 June 2013 (2012 17 8% of pensionable salanes),
subject to annual allowance mits, in respect of alt permanent
staff This included amounts on behalf of executive directors

of £25,076 (2012 £48,102)

The Society has made no contributions to personal pension
arrangements during 2013 (2012 £rul) .

There were £27,350 of contributiens to defined contnbution
pension schemes 1n 2013 (2012 £8,500)

2013 2012
Accrued pension at end of period £ 000 £ D00
R A Rowney 30 27
J B O'Roarke 33 30
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54 2014 Budget statement

In his Budget Statement on 19 March 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a number of proposed changes to the
UK pension regime from Apnil 2015, including an intention to introduce legistation to allow those with defined pension savings

to draw down from them from age 55, subject to their marginal rate of iIncome tax and therr pension scheme rules

Until the legistation 15 published, 1t 1s not possible to determine the effect of these proposed changes on the retirement choices
customers may make and hence the impact on the Group's pensions and annuities business, however these are not expected

to have a matenal impact on the Group’s financial position or regulatory capital

55 Cash generated from operating activities

Group Soclety
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m Lm £m £m

Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 156 103 104 3
Investment income (346) (320) {348} (337)
Net gains on investments {112) {375} (94} (304)
Finance costs 15 1 14 -
Net decrease In derivatives 21 g2 20 100
Non-cash items

Expenses deferred during the year 2 {5) - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 12 - 5
Depreciation on property and equipment 5 3 1 1
Impairment losses on intangible assets 11 - - -
Decrease/(increase) in capitahised goodwill 6 2) [ {2)
Decrease in provisions and pension obligation (54) (18) (54) {17}
Impairment write offs In subsidiaries - - 79 90
Mutual bonus (22) (21) (22) (21}
Changes in working capltal

Decrease n loans and receivables 38 13 a 26
Increase In rensurance assets (68) (110) (75) {75)
Decrease/(increase) in insurance recevables 4 {11) 2 {2)
{Increase)/decrease in other prepayments and accrued ingcome {2) (8) 1 {2)
increase in insurance contract habilities 259 872 224 619
increase in non-participating value of in-force business (20) (14) (20) (14)
Increase tn Investment contract llabthties 328 211 328 211
{Decrease)/increase in other financial habilities (19) {2) {25) =}
(Decrease)/increase ininsurance payables (7) 3 (3} (5)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 4 (12} 14 (12)
Cash generated from operatlng_actlvltles 206 412 156 273

56 Valuation

The |atest published report on the valuation of Assets and Liabihities of the Society (the Annual PRA Insurance Return) was made at

31 December 2013 and 1s available on request from the Group Company Secretary, County Gates, Bournemouth, BH1 2NF and LV com

57 Society information

Liverpool Victona Friendly Society Limited 1s a UK-incorporated and dormiciled Friendly Society registered under the Fnendly Societies

Act 1892

W= and Liverpool Victoria are trademarks of Liverpool Victona Friendly Society Lirited  Lv= and LV= Liverpool Victona are trading styles
of the Liverpool Victona group of companies Liverpool Victoria 1s authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authonty and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authonity and Prudential Regulation Authority, and 1s a member of the ABI, AFM and ILAG

Registered office

County Gates
Bournemouth

BH1 2NF

Telephone 01202 292333




